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Official release of a new brand image film

At the press conference for the brand upgrade of Times
Neighborhood, “Create Service”, a new brand image film, was
released. The film describes that Times Neighborhood has an
all-round insight into existing potential demands and future
possible demands yet to be perceived, and meets people’s
yearning and expectation for a better life through creating
services.
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Launch of Neighborhood Services Pro APP

Neighborhood Services Pro APP is newly launched to meet the
demands of property owners in property fee payment, house
maintenance, call for housekeeping, vehicle management, etc.,
and provide “one-stop” services including resident services such
as tourism housekeeping and online shopping malls.

New App Launched

BE3BPro

E%ﬂﬁ%@ﬂnﬂeﬁ:mu
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Inclusion in the Hang Seng Property Service and
Management Index

Being one of the companies in the first batch to be included
as constituent stocks of the Hang Seng Property Service and
Management Index reflects that Times Neighborhood's leading
position among peers listed in Hong Kong has been fully
recognized by the market.
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Opening of the first four lease and sales centers of
Neighborhood Real Estate (32 B %)

Times City Phase IV Store in Sanshui, Foshan, the fourth lease
and sales center in the first batch of Neighborhood Real Estate,
grandly opened. The first four lease and sales centers successfully
completed include Times Shuian Store in Jinshazhou, Xianghai
Bian Store in Chancheng, Times Qingcheng Store in Luocun and
Times City Phase IV Store in Sanshui. The opening of the first four
lease and sales centers of Neighborhood Real Estate indicates the
upgrading of Neighborhood Real Estate and its determination to
be deeply engaged in the market in Foshan.
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Equity cooperation with Hitachi Elevator

Guangdong Neighborhood Electrical & Mechanical Co., Ltd. (&
HAPEMEAFRAR]), a subsidiary of the Group, and Guangzhou
Gangli Elevator Engineering Co., Ltd. (EMNBYEHTEA
[R/A7]), a subsidiary of Hitachi Elevator, jointly funded the
establishment of “Guangzhou Times Gangli Elevator Technical
Service Co., Ltd. (BEMMRARBLEBTMREERAT])". The
parties started a new era of the service ecosystem through a new
cooperation model of mutual complementation and resource
integration. The cooperation will deepen the pursuit of high
quality by Times Neighborhood and facilitate rapid and healthy
development of the Company.
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Agreement with China Lesso Group

Times Neighborhood signed a cooperation agreement with China
Lesso Group to start in-depth cooperation in diversified property
services, and to carry out in-depth exploration and practice on
service cooperation models for residential and commercial business
forms in core urban agglomerations in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-
Macao Greater Bay Area and the Yangtze River Delta Regions.
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Agreement with Xiong Feng Group

Times Neighborhood signed a cooperation agreement with
Xiong Feng Group Co., Ltd. (#IE%£BEAHR A7), which will
further the requirements of Times Neighborhood for high quality
services. In the future, based on high-quality property services
and combined with the introduction of advantageous resources
such as intelligent technology and value-added services, Times
Neighborhood will gain insight into the different development
needs of different business forms and create more beauties.

BARMEERERDT /2021 £F®% 5
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Cooperation with Huamei International Education
Group in school property services

A signing ceremony for cooperation between Times Neighborhood
and Huamei International Education Group was successfully
held in Guangzhou. Upon entering into the cooperation by
both parties, Times Neighborhood will make full use of its rich
experience in campus property management, give full play to
the advantages of industry-leading logistics support resources
and channels, and inject better humanistic strength into
schools through high-quality services provided by using digital
and intelligent technological methods in accordance with the
philosophy of “create service”.
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Successful holding of the first “Beauty Creation
Festival”

Times Neighborhood held “Beauty Creation Festival”, the first
large cultural activity of communities, during the Mid-Autumn
Festival. Times Neighborhood, with more than 300,000 families in
China, created daily warmness, surprise, festive harmony and joy
through a rich and diverse series of activities. Times Neighborhood
completed its first successful exploration of “operation supported
by services” in response to the national call for “co-construction,
co-governance, and sharing” of communities.
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“Neighborhood Carbon Reduction Officer” series of
low-carbon and environmental protection activities

Times Neighborhood led its member enterprises to actively
promote the “national green and low-carbon action” and
officially published the “Carbon Reduction Convention of Times
Community” in all major Times communities in China. Times
Neighborhood also organized a series of online and offline
activities such as “Neighborhood Carbon Reduction Officer”
community-based environmental protection activities and
“flea market” barter activities, which aimed to spread relevant
knowledge of “carbon peaking” and “carbon neutrality”, and
encourage property owners to carry out practical and effective
carbon reduction in eight aspects including low carbon travel,
water and electricity saving, and waste reduction, so as to create
low-carbon communities.
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Cooperation with GDleju Commercial Group to take
regional business services to a new level

A signing ceremony for cooperation was held with GDleju
Commercial Group Co., Ltd. Times Neighborhood officially
provided services for the GDleju Commercial Group Building. The
two groups cooperated in creating superior commercial property
services.

B ik - BB BEE 278 AR
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Support in the fight against the epidemic and
assistance in more than 270,000 nucleic acid tests

Times Neighborhood continued to carry out epidemic prevention
and control work. In 2021, it assisted the government in
organizing a total of over 50 large-scale nucleic acid screenings
and completing over 270,000 nucleic acid tests to realize zero
Covid infections in Times communities.
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Time Particulars
1. 202164 A22H B R B b ([ BR 1) —2021 R B Y 2 AR5 B 5/ (2 £ TOP 12
22 April 2021 China Index Academy (“CIA") — 12th in the Top 100 Property Management
Companies in China in 2021 (2021 B ¥ RS EHREETOP 12)
2. 202144 H221 il —2021 PRI EMERBELLE — ZLERGSRBERE
22 April 2021 CIA — China Leading Property Management Companies in Terms of
Characteristic Services in 2021 — Integrated Service Provider for Diversified
Business Forms (2021 R BB ERBELLE — ZLERES RERE)
3. 20214 A22H il — 2021 EMERBZBELEERFEE — HEFH
22 April 2021 CIA — China’s Excellent Property Management Companies with Diversified
Operations in 2021 — Neighborhood Services (20215 EI¥) ¥ RIS Z B L L ES
¥ — #HEH)
4. 202144 221 il —2021 RIS BT RIS RE D E
22 April 2021 CIA - China Leading Property Management Companies in Smart City Services
in 2021 (2021 B B RSB S 0 )
5. 202165A118 FEMEERRE ([ ]) —2021 P BEYERS X REEE1008
11 May 2021 China Property Management Institute (“CPMI"”) — China’s Top 100 Property
Management Companies in Terms of Brand Value in 2021 (20217 B4 2 k7%
EEmEEE1005)
6. 202145H20H EMEE —2021H B EHYERF (R ETOP 20
20 May 2021 Yihan Think Tank — China’s Top 20 Listed Property Management Companies in

2021 (2021 B ¥ RIS ZETOP 20)
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21 May 2021 CIA — Excellent Listed Property Management Enterprises with Investment Value
in China in 2021 (2021#H B F ¥ RBFREBAEBEF LX)

20214F5A27H hE Y — 2021 B ERIEEE EHARTOP 15

27 May 2021 CPMI — China's Top 15 Listed Property Management Companies in 2021 (2021
PEYMERBEE LT ARTOP 15)

202145H27H FEWH —2021FEYE FH AR TISHRALRE

27 May 2021 CPMI - China’s Leading Listed Property Company in Market Expansion in 2021
(2021 B FTARMISHEELEHE)

10. 20214F9A10H LB — 2021 FHEMERFT NDZE

10 September 2021 Leju Finance — China’s Company with Property Innovation in 2021 (20214
B 2 BT N 12 2)

202149 AH15H gkt —2021 PEIMERBERELR LM EE

15 September 2021 CIA — China’s Leading Brand Enterprise in Terms of Professional Operation of
Property Management in 2021 2021 R B ERBEHE(LESELRBEDE)

20219F9A21H TEMEEEMRR RS ([HYHEG]) — 2021 FEESYERBRLEE

21 September 2021 China Property Management Research Institution (“CPMRI"”) — China’s Leading
Residential Property Management Company in 2021 (20217 Bl{E =¥ 2 iR 1548
T
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Guangdong Property Management Industry Association — Brand Benchmarking
Enterprise for the 40th Anniversary of Development of the Property
Management Industry in Guangdong (ERE& ¥ EEBITERELOET REIEZ
B2

gkt —2021 B RKNERYERB TS A AL

CIA — Leading Enterprise in the Property Management Market in the
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area in 2021 (2021 &2 K& &
W) 2 AR 75 T 35 30 AL <B S 1R %)

BREVEEBITENE 2021 EREVERBIEZEERE NBZETOP
Guangdong Property Management Industry Association — Top 8 Companies in
Comprehensive Development Strength of Property Services in Guangdong in
2021 2021 FEREMERBERAZRE NBZETOP 8)

E5HPEBLEREEHES
KPMG China’s Top 50 Leading Real Estate Technology Companies (£ 5 &+
RIEMERREES0)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Ms. Wang Meng
Mr. Yao Xusheng
Ms. Xie Rao

Ms. Zhou Rui

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Bai Xihong (Chairman)
Mr. Li Qiang

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lui Shing Ming, Brian
Dr. Wong Kong Tin
Dr. Chu Xiaoping

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Lui Shing Ming, Brian (Chairman)
Mr. Li Qiang
Dr. Wong Kong Tin

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Dr. Wong Kong Tin (Chairman)
Mr. Bai Xihong
Dr. Chu Xiaoping

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Bai Xihong (Chairman)
Mr. Lui Shing Ming, Brian
Dr. Chu Xiaoping

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Mr. Bai Xihong (Chairman)
Ms. Wang Meng

Ms. Xie Rao

Ms. Zhou Rui

Mr. Lui Shing Ming, Brian
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EFEHLZL(FCG + HKFCG)
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AR EE

71 Fort Street
PO Box 500
George Town
Grand Cayman
KY1-1106
Cayman Islands

REARKEME ([HE]
BARREMREE

&

BERE
BMmHER
REAEEA10%
11#1103=%

ERETEE R

&8

IR

R E 585

R PRS2
39%##3905-3908%

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Ng Sau Mei (FCG, HKFCG)
(appointed on 20 December 2021)

Mr. Lee Kwok Fai, Kenneth (appointed on 30 July 2021 and
resigned on 20 December 2021)

Ms. Leung Suet Wing (resigned on 30 July 2021)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Ms. Zhou Rui

Ms. Ng Sau Mei (appointed on 20 December 2021)

Mr. Lee Kwok Fai, Kenneth (appointed on 30 July 2021 and
resigned on 20 December 2021)

Ms. Leung Suet Wing (resigned on 30 July 2021)

REGISTERED OFFICE

71 Fort Street
PO Box 500
George Town
Grand Cayman
KY1-1106
Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTER AND REGISTERED OFFICE
IN THE PEOPLE’'S REPUBLIC OF CHINA (THE

IIPRC")

1103, 11th Floor

410 Dongfeng Middle Road
Yuexiu District, Guangzhou
Guangdong Province

PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG

KONG

Suites 3905-3908, 39th Floor
Two Exchange Square

8 Connaught Place

Central

Hong Kong
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= TRANSFER OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN ISLANDS
Appleby Global Services (Cayman) Limited Appleby Global Services (Cayman) Limited

71 Fort Street 71 Fort Street

PO Box 500 PO Box 500

George Town
Grand Cayman
KY1-1106
Cayman Islands
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George Town
Grand Cayman
KY1-1106
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISERS

As to Hong Kong and U.S. laws:

Sidley Austin

39th Floor, Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street

Central

Hong Kong

As to PRC law:

Commerce & Finance Law Offices
12-14th Floor, China World Office 2
No. 1 Jianguomenwai Avenue
Chaoyang District

Beijing

PRC

As to Cayman Islands law:

Appleby

Suites 4201-03 & 12, 42/F

One Island East, Taikoo Place
18 Westlands Road, Quarry Bay
Hong Kong

BARAEERERAR /2021 £4®% 15



~NAEEH

CORPORATE INFORMATION

= 2ED

L&A ES AT
HEESAT
AR Fl o B RS 1% (AN
B0 RR

HEIEITIN
Kb — 271

FEEREIT

FRBITEMPBIEREZT

PR

BRE
BN T R [

25 FHEL 19157
PR AEBEEE

REERIRITHILER T
®

ERAE

LT

AN

EATEEER3MR

BREABITEMDIT
H

BRE

N

BT H
STERE6255

BHEER SRR OEE
1/8109% T

B A7 X 5%

9928

NGIE

www.shidaiwuye.com

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King's Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Ping An Bank, Guangzhou Sinopec Building Branch
1st Floor, Sinopec Building, Tower B

191 Tiyu Xi Road

Tianhe District, Guangzhou

Guangdong Province

PRC

China Construction Bank, Zhongshan Longdu Branch
3 Xijiao Yunhan Road

Qijiang Highway

Zhongshan

Guangdong Province

PRC

Guangdong Huaxing Bank, Guangzhou Branch
Room 109, 1st Floor

Qiaoxin International Finance Centre

62 Jinsui Road

Zhujiang New Town

Tianhe District, Guangzhou

Guangdong Province

PRC

STOCK CODE

9928

COMPANY'’S WEBSITE

www.shidaiwuye.com
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Xinjiang Uygur

Autonomous Region

s
Qinghai
R e AR

Tibet
Autonomous Region

C R
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South China Sea Islands
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BERNEEmE © AwER
Total contracted GFA Total number of
: contracted projects
132.0m&®5x 1,038
132.0 million m? i 1,038

A B REZE2021F12 A31 B IE2UE -
* All of the data above are the data as of 31 December 2021.

B =P
Inner Mongolia
Autonomous Region

MREBREERERR

GFA under property
management

105.558F 5%

105.5 million m?

EBEET
Heilongjiang
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Projectsunder
property management
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Times Neighborhood Holdings Limited (the “Company” or “we”
or "Times Neighborhood”), | am pleased to present the annual
report of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (the “Year” or the “Reporting Period”).

RAPID ENHANCEMENT OF CAPACITY AND WIDE
RECOGNITION IN THE INDUSTRY

Time flies like an arrow ! The year 2021 has passed quickly. It is the
final year of the first three-year plan of Times Neighborhood. We
are very pleased to see the remarkable achievements made by Times
Neighborhood in the past three years. Looking back on 2019, Times
Neighborhood was successfully listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), and rapidly expanded
its scale with the power of the capital market, whilst making great
progress in terms of management area, business forms and regional
arrangements. In 2021, Times Neighborhood made efforts in deep
engagement in four core urban agglomerations, increasing its
management area year on year by approximately 53.3% to more than
100 million sg.m..

Due to the rapid increase in the scale of management and the
smooth diversification of business, the Group steadily improved its
financial indicators, and achieved a significant increase in revenue
and profitability. In 2021, the Group's revenue was approximately
RMB2,719.7 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
approximately 54.7%; gross profit was approximately RMB742.1
million, representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 39.8%.

With its brand strength and substantive experience, the Group
focused on its core business forms and actively made arrangements
in core urban agglomerations. The Group achieved continuous
expansion of scale through diversified expansion. For the year ended
31 December 2021, our increase in contracted area through third-
party independent expansion was approximately 20.16 million sgq.m.,
doubling that of 2020 !

With technological usage, Times Neighborhood has created the
life-cycle “technology+service” platform, and achieved dual-wheel
drive for property management and value-added services. Through
online property management, online project operation and online
community-based transactions, the Group achieved accurate customer
profiling, promoted the development of the project management
and value-added business, and continuously increased the activity
of property owners and customer stickiness through community
operations. For the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue from
community value-added services was approximately RMB547.1 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 193.8%.
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Times Neighborhood also made breakthroughs in environmental
protection, social responsibility and corporate governance. During the
Year, the Group established an Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG") committee to guide and review the formulation of the
Company's ESG management policies and strategies. The Group
actively promoted the “National Green and Low-carbon Action”
initiative, carrying out a series of online and offline community-
based environmental protection activities, popularizing the relevant
knowledge of “carbon peaking” and “carbon neutrality”, and
publicizing effective carbon reduction actions for property owners to
jointly create a low-carbon community.

On the basis of continuous expansion of business scale and
improvement of service quality, the Group was recognized by CIA as
the 12th among the Top 100 Property Management Companies in
China in terms of comprehensive strength, and was granted awards
such as “Top 7 Listed Property Management Companies with Growth
Potential in China”, “China’s Leading Brand Enterprise in Terms of
Professional Operation of Property Management in 2021", “China’s
Best Employer in the Property Management Industry in 2021" and
“Leading Enterprise in the Property Service Market in the Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area” by CIA. The Group had a
brand value of RMB6,441 million and took its brand strength to a
new level. Meanwhile, the Group has received various awards from
various industry authorities, such as “China’s Top 15 Listed Property
Service Enterprises in 2021", “China’s Leading Listed Property
Company in Terms of Market Development Ability in 2021", “China’s
Leading Enterprise in Quality Property Service in 2021" and “Top 10
Listed Service Companies in Operation Innovation in 2021". We are
particularly delighted that the Group has ranked among “China’s
Top 50 Leading Real Estate Technology Enterprises” by KPMG and
“2020-2021 China's Top 20 Property Enterprise in Digital Strength”
by E-House (China) - CRIC, acknowledging the Group’s continuous
efforts in improving its digital ability.

INDUSTRY REVIEW

The previous year was a challenging year. In 2021, the Covid-19
outbreak did not subside, with sporadic outbreaks in many parts
of China, affecting the macro economy and people’s livelihoods.
However, due to good epidemic prevention measures and a loose
policy environment, China remained in the leading position globally in
economic development and epidemic prevention and control. In 2021,
the overall economy recovered continuously and steadily with a year-
on-year increase of 8.1% in GDP.
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The complex economic environment increasingly highlighted the
importance of property management companies in grass-roots
governance, resident services and employment stabilization. The value
and status of property service companies were further recognized at
the national level. Policy support and standards would continue to
promote the development and demand upgrading of property services.
Therefore, the industry was in a golden period of development.
According to estimates from third-party research organizations, as of
the end of 2021, the total GFA under property management in China
increased to 27.4 billion sq.m., and the market share of the top 100
enterprises would increase to 52.1%.

Meanwhile, under the encouragement by policies, continuous quality
improvement and capacity expansion were achieved in the property
management industry. At the beginning of 2021, the Ministry of
Housing and Urban-Rural Development, together with ten ministries
and commissions, issued the Notice on Strengthening and Improving
Residential Property Management, which specified requirements
for the development of the property management industry in six
aspects, namely integration into the grass-roots social governance
system, improvement in the governance structure of property owners’
committees, improvement in the level of property management
service, promotion of the development of the resident service
industry, standardization of the use and management of maintenance
funds and strengthening of the supervision and management of
property services, and encouraged to explore the “property services +
resident services” model. This laid a foundation for the standardized
development of the industry. In May 2021, 12 authorities including
the Ministry of Commerce, the National Development and Reform
Commission and the Ministry of Civil Affairs jointly issued the Opinions
on Promoting the Construction of One-quarter Hour Convenient
Living Circle in Cities, which encouraged qualified property service
companies to extend their business scope to cover elderly care, child
care and housekeeping, etc., so as to promote the development
of the “property services + resident services” business model of
property service companies. In addition, in the “14th Five-Year”
Plan, property management is mentioned six times, including the
quality development of the resident service industry, comprehensive
promotion of rural revitalization, consolidation of achievements in
poverty alleviation, improvement in the urban governance level,
improvement in community management and service mechanisms,
and construction of a green policy development system, etc., thus
providing room for the development of the property management
industry.
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FUTURE OUTLOOK AND STRATEGIES

With the continuous improvement in the marketization of the
property management industry, standardized development becomes
inevitable. Eight ministries and commissions of China including the
Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development jointly issued
documents to regulate the order of real estate development, further
eliminate non-standard property enterprises, accelerate industry
clearing, and promote the concentration of resources on high-quality
enterprises. These are conducive to the rapid integration of high-
quality property enterprises. In recent years, the development model
of the real estate industry has gradually shifted to a virtuous circular
development model, and the competition in the existing market is
expected to focus on scale expansion. In light of rising costs and
refined management, the ability in making high-density arrangements
in key cities directly determines the upper limit on future management
efficiency improvement and business enabling.

In addition, with the gradual advancement of new urbanization,
the development of urban agglomeration has become an important
direction. The “14th Five-Year” Plan specifies that efforts should be
made to optimize and upgrade the urban agglomerations including
Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei, Yangtze River Delta, Pearl River Delta, Chengdu-
Chongqging and the middle reaches of the Yangtze River, with a
focus on the promotion of urban agglomeration development. The
concentration of production factors including population, industry
and capital on the centers of urban agglomerations continues to
increase, which provides the market basis, business environment and
development momentum for property service companies to provide
diversified services. In light of the increase in social demands of urban
agglomerations, property service companies will gradually usher in a
new prospect — “high quality and price”.

As a result, we will face intensified competition, but the market we
serve will be larger. We will play fully to our advantage. In the first
three-year plan period, Times Neighborhood expanded rapidly with
the power of capital. In the next three years, Times Neighborhood will
usher in better development opportunities.

In order to let more people enjoy a better life, we will continue to
adhere to our “4321" core strategy !
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In terms of scale, we will continuously and deeply engage in four core
urban agglomerations, namely the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao
Greater Bay Area, the Yangtze River Delta, Chengdu-Chongging, and
Central China, with a focus on the three core business forms, namely
housing, industrial parks and public buildings. We will vigorously carry
out the “Spark Plan” to get deeply engaged in cities where we have
operated and expand the coverage of residential buildings. We will
establish strategic cooperation with more industrial parks to further
expand our presence in core areas. We will continuously construct a
“large public building” platform to integrate all high-quality resources
of the Group and build a good reputation in the public building
sector.

In terms of value-added business, we will build a “housing group”
around community assets and a “resident group” around property
owners, based on community. The resident group business will
continuously attract traffic through community operation, to provide
a foundation for the development of community group buying and
other businesses, and a platform for the development of long-term
emerging businesses. The housing group will continuously tap into
community resources and improve the conversion rate to contribute
more profits to subsequent developments. In terms of technology
platforms, we will continue to increase our investment in technology
and continuously optimize our customer-oriented system to enhance
the experience of customers. Meanwhile, we will strengthen the
construction of internal organizational processes, business systems,
business analysis platforms and other infrastructure, so as to improve
the operational efficiency of the organization.

We believe that as long as we adhere to the correct strategic direction
and long-termism, we will eventually achieve greater success and give
back to our owners, shareholders, employees, partners, and friends in
all sectors of society who care about Times Neighborhood, with better
results !

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt
gratitude to all the employees for their dedication and efforts, and to
property owners, shareholders and partners for their care about Times
Neighborhood, and their trust and support to the Group over the
years !

BAI Xihong
Chairman of the Board and Non-executive Director

31 March 2022
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

20215 2020%F 2
2021 2020 Changes
AR¥T R ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
FTEHBKER Key financial information
BER Revenue 2,719,747 1,758,427 54.7%
EH Gross profit 742,060 531,048 39.8%
FENE Profit for the year
— BRI R ~ Including non-controlling interests 334,137 236,874 41.0%
-BRARIER AR - Attributable to owners of the
parent 308,000 232,606 32.4%
BREHE ARGEZOFNE Core net profit attributable to
(TBEFLEMER) owners of the parent
(excluding the non-recurring
expenses) 330,500 232,606 42 1%
120215 20204
12A31H 12A31H
As at As at
31 December 2021 31 December 2020
ARBT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BERRE Total assets 3,268,735 2,648,951
BERRE Total liabilities 1,335,366 887,254
Re RIRITHER Cash and bank balances 825,653 1,172,703
AR Total equity 1,933,369 1,761,697
B REEE AELER Equity attributable to owners of the
parent 1,824,791 1,720,333
FTEHKEEE Key financial ratios
ER=E Gross profit margin 27.3% 30.2%
A = Net profit margin 12.3% 13.5%
(EUNYEF B Core net profit margin 12.2% 13.2%
BRERREERF - ARES Basic and diluted earnings per share,
RMB cents 31 25
TEEEHE Key operating data
RERNLEREmME Gross floor area under management as at
(TEEYmAEREBIER) year end (excluding urban public
(BEFHK) services projects) (million sq.m.) 105.5 68.8
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The Group attaches great importance to the communication with
the capital market, and the management actively participates in the
investor presentation activities of the Group, including performance-
related investor presentation, roadshow, and presentation or
seminar in the capital market, and actively establishes a platform
of effective communication with the capital market through these
various channels. In 2021, the Group actively communicated with
investors and analysts and carried out presentation activities in the
capital market, including the presentation of annual results and
interim results, roadshow, field research, one-on-one meeting or
teleconference, etc., and participated in many investor presentations
held by brokers. These interactive channels further strengthened
the two-way communication between the Group and institutional
investors and brokers, enhanced investors’ understanding of the
Group's business conditions and long-term development strategy, and
increased the Group’s visibility in the capital market.

2021F FTEEHEE
2021 Main Events
1A BIAE52021 4R RS
January Nomura Securities Online Strategy Conference 2021
SO E 2021 FHEYETERRES
CGS-CIMB China Property Management Industry Strategy Conference 2021
HmiR2021 F AP ERBE
UBS Greater China Strategy Conference 2021
3A BIT200F FEXEREEHRNS
March Investor Presentation on Annual Results in 2020

BIT20200F FRRAFRZEBERIENES

Non-deal Roadshow Series of Annual Results Presentations 2020

TIMES NEIGHEC IMITED
B & NE

2020 Annual Results Announcement

CECEEEREMBLM

20205 FEEARME

2020 Annual Results Presentation Conference

&N

2021 Interim Results Announcement

2 —FHRHEALH

2021 R HAEE TS

2021 Interim Results Presentation Conference
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20214
2021

FEEHEE
Main Events

4 7
April

5H
May

6 A

June

7H
July

8 A
August

10 A
October

1A

November

HEEZFRPNREER LIRS

Online Investor Exchange Conference organized by Industrial Securities
HEEEREHNREER ERXRE

Online Investor Exchange Conference organized by Haitong International
HPREBEMNSEMEERIREER ERRE

Online Investor Exchange Conference organized by Zhongtai International and Zhixin Caijing

B RBEBRERNREEIRG
Investor Exchange Conference organized by Zhongtai International

BARAFNEEHEEROIREEZ LIRS

Online Investor Exchange Conference organized by Everbright Securities and Zhixin Caijing
HERRRNREER ETRE

Online Investor Exchange Conference organized by Goldman Sachs
ERBRE A

Haitong International Real Estate Enterprise Day
RAMEENEFEES PEEMERMETEREEES
CGS-CIMB Sixth Investor Summit for Hong Kong/China Real Estate and
Property Management Industry

202 F T AREHELES

Citibank Asia Pacific Real Estate Conference 2021
HERR2021EFERT S H

Shenwan Hongyuan Summer Capital Market Conference 2021

HITHRBERERNREER TN E
Online Investor Exchange Conference organized by ICBC International
MR EBFBRRNREER NS
Online Investor Exchange Conference organized by Essence Securities

BIT202V FHHEBREEHRENS
Investor Presentation on Interim Results in 2021
BIT2021 FHHEEIER HIRIERFHENIES

Non-deal Roadshow Series of Presentations on Interim Results in 2021

R AR 2021 RE & R AFKIE
Times Neighborhood Investors Reverse Road Show 2021

EEE16ETRERAEE

The 16th Citibank China Investment Summit
BE20NFTARFEERREES

Goldman Sachs Asia-Pacific Sustainable Development Investment Summit 2021
MBS 20202FEEATSRERRE

Industrial Securities Capital Market Investment Strategy Conference 2022
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The Group attaches great importance to the investment community
and makes efforts to procure that its business conditions are reported
in the research reports of brokers. In 2021, a total of 12 domestic
and international well-known brokers wrote research reports for the
Group. The shares of the Group were also included as one of the first
batch of constituent stocks when the Hang Seng Property Service
and Management Index was established in April 2021, thus further
increasing its visibility in the capital market.
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EELEREEE
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Ms. Wang Meng (E#5), aged 35, was appointed as our executive
Director on 26 August 2019 and is primarily responsible for the
strategic planning and overall operations of our Group. Ms. Wang
is also our chief executive officer and director of some of our
subsidiaries. Since July 2019, Ms. Wang has been serving as the
general manager of Guangzhou Times Neighborhood Corporate
Governance Co., Ltd. (“Guangzhou Times Neighborhood”) where
she has been responsible for its overall operation and management.

Ms. Wang joined our Group in February 2019. From February 2019
to July 2019, she served as a deputy general manager at Guangzhou
Times Neighborhood where she was primarily responsible for its
business and technology development, market expansion, medium
and long-term project development and management of some of its
subsidiaries. Prior to joining our Group, from July 2006 to September
2016, Ms. Wang served at Guangzhou Key Public Construction
Project Management Office (EMMEMAHEREBEEETEMRA
%), a governmental department, where her last position was the
director of integrated management department and was primarily
responsible for its human resources, administrative logistics and
property management. From September 2016 to March 2018, Ms.
Wang served as a deputy director at Guangzhou Probity Education
Management Center (EIMNTEKHMEEIEH L), a governmental
department, where she was primarily responsible for its human
resources, administrative logistics and property management. From
April 2018 to September 2018, Ms. Wang worked at Guangzhou
Aerospace Haite System Engineering Co., Ltd. (BMMKEHRE
HLITIEBR AR, a company principally engaged in information
technology, where she was primarily responsible for exploring market
opportunities. From October 2018 to February 2019, Ms. Wang served
as a deputy general manager and general manager of public relations
at Guangzhou Yaojie Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (/M REE
B ERMEIEHR AR, a subsidiary of Times China Holdings Limited
("Times China”), where she was responsible for public affairs and
property management of real estate projects in Southern Guangzhou.

Ms. Wang received her bachelor’'s degree of arts from Guangzhou
University (BJNRE2) in the PRC in June 2006 and her master’s degree
in public administration from Jinan University (Bm AX£2) in the PRC in
December 2014.
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Mr. Yao Xusheng (ZkfEF), aged 58, was appointed as our executive
Director on 26 August 2019 and is primarily responsible for the
day-to-day operations and administrative matters of our Group.
Mr. Yao is also our vice president. Mr. Yao joined our Group in
June 1998 and served as the general manager at Guangzhou Times
Property Management Co., Ltd. from June 1998 to January 2019.
He has been serving as the general manager at Guangzhou Wanning
Property Management Co., Ltd. from May 2016 to December 2020.
He has been serving as a deputy general manager of our Group since
February 2019 and a director of Guangzhou Times Neighborhood
since August 2019.

Prior to joining our Group, from October 1982 to May 1996, Mr. Yao
worked at White Swan Hotel (HX#E £E) where he was responsible
for the daily operations of room service department.

Mr. Yao received his diploma in tourism and hospitality management
from Guangzhou Vocational School of Tourism and Business (&)
TR 2 P TS B 2 224%) (formerly known as Guangzhou No. 1 Tourism
School (EMTME —RELA)) in the PRC in June 1982. Mr. Yao
obtained his National Property Management Manager Certificate (2
MEEIR P ELEMAEE) from the Personnel Education Department
of the Ministry of Construction (&3 AEHE 7)) and the Housing
and Real Estate Department of the Ministry of Construction (&
REPEEHEEMEZER]) in May 2006. He was also awarded as an
Outstanding Person of Guangdong Property Management Industry for
the Year 2014-2016 (EREWEREIEITE(2014-2016) [#EHAY])
from Guangdong Property Management Industry Institute (ER & ¥
BIBITEME) in September 2016; in August 2020, he was rated by
Guangdong Property Management Industry Institute as the “Leader”
for the 20th anniversary of the establishment of Guangdong property
management industry; in December 2020, he was rated among
“China’s Top 100 Property Managers in 2020 (20207 B4 &5 A
10058)" and “China’s Top 50 Property Managers in Greater Bay Area
in 2020 (2020 EI#)Z 43R A K/E[R5058)" in the “China’s Property
Managers for 2020" sponsored by Leju Finance and co-sponsored by
Sina Finance, Chinese Entrepreneurs, Fangchan.com and CPMRI.
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Ms. Xie Rao (F#{#), aged 43, was appointed as our executive
Director on 26 August 2019 and is primarily responsible for the
quality operation management, brand positioning and promotion and
public relations maintenance of our Group. Ms. Xie is also our vice
president. She has also been serving as a deputy general manager
at Guangzhou Times Neighborhood since joining our Group in July
2017. From June 2020 to January 2021, Ms. Xie served as the general
manager of Guangzhou Times Neighborhood Environmental Science
Technology Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary of the Company).

Prior to joining our Group, from November 2003 to October 2006,
Ms. Xie served as the senior training director of human resources
department at Guangzhou Mayland Investment Limited (/1A
EEIGEAFR AT, a property developer, where she was primarily
responsible for recruitment and training. From October 2006 to
July 2017, Ms. Xie served as an assistant to the general manager at
Guangzhou Tianli Property Development Co., Ltd. (MK 4%
BAERZAF], a subsidiary of Guangzhou R&F Properties Co., Ltd. (&
ME D ERMBBRAF) (“Guangzhou R&F”) which is a property
developer listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2777) at that
time, where she was primarily responsible for talent strategy planning,
property quality construction and maintenance of public relations.

Ms. Xie has been serving as a member of China Property Management
Association (FEIWEEEHE) and a vice president of Guangdong
Property Management Industry Institute (BREVEEEITEWHS)
since 2019 and 2018 respectively. Ms. Xie acted as a vice president of
Guangzhou Property Management Association (B T ¥ % B IR1TE
&) from November 2018 to December 2020. She served as a deputy
director of the Quality Standards Committee (IRt TIEZEE) of
Guangzhou Property Management Association from December 2018
to May 2021. She has acted as a director of the Health and Epidemic
Prevention Committee (f2FEHEIEEHEFXZEZEE) of Guangdong
Property Management Industry Institute (BREVEEBITEWHS)
since August 2020. In August 2020, Ms. Xie was rated by Guangdong
Property Management Industry Institute as the “Outstanding Figure”
for the 20th anniversary of the establishment of Guangdong property
management industry. In December 2020, she was rated among the
“China’s Top 100 Property Managers in 2020 (20204 BI#n ¥ 4538 A
1003%)" and “China’s Top 50 Property Managers in Greater Bay Area
in 2020 (2020 EI#) 43R A K/E[R505%)" in the “"China’s Property
Managers for 2020” sponsored by Leju Finance and co-sponsored by
Sina Finance, Chinese Entrepreneurs, Fangchan.com and CPMRI. In
January 2021, she was awarded the title of the “Leader for the 25th
Anniversary of the Establishment of Guangzhou Property Management
Association” by Guangzhou Property Management Association. She
was also awarded the title of the “Leader for the 40th Anniversary
of the Development of the Property Management Industry of
Guangdong” by Guangdong Property Management Industry Institute
in October 2021.
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Ms. Xie graduated from Hunan University (G#EIAZ) in the PRC
majored in economic management in June 2000, and obtained her
qualification as an assistant communication engineer &1z B3 T 12Af)
from Guangdong Department of Human Resources and Social Security
(ERAANBRMESRERE) in March 2004 and her executive
master of business administration degree from Jinan University (2w
AE) in December 2021.

Ms. Zhou Rui (JE#i), aged 37, was appointed as our executive
Director on 26 August 2019 and is primarily responsible for the
financial management, capital operations and internal control of our
Group. Ms. Zhou has been serving as the general manager of our
financial management center since August 2019. From March 2019
to August 2019, she served as the financial manager at Guangzhou
Times Neighborhood.

Ms. Zhou joined our Group as the financial manager of the financial
management center in March 2019. Prior to joining our Group, from
August 2006 to November 2017, Ms. Zhou worked at KPMG Huazhen
LLP Guangzhou Branch (BEGHERGHAMELT (KR LETREE)
EM 5 FT) where her last position was an auditor manager and was
primarily responsible for the audit of corporate financial statements.
From December 2017 to March 2018, Ms. Zhou served as a financial
manager at Guangzhou R&F where she was primarily responsible
for its financial and accounting matters. From March 2018 to March
2019, Ms. Zhou worked as a financial manager of financial capital
and cost center at Guangzhou Times Holdings Group Limited.

Ms. Zhou received her bachelor of arts degree in English from South
China University of Technology (¥f32 T AE) in the PRC in July
2006. She was admitted as a Certified PRC Public Accountant (&
ElsEf2st6M) certified by the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (FF Bz & &R E) in June 2015.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Bai Xihong (H#4), aged 54, was appointed as our
non-executive Director and chairman on 26 August 2019 and
is primarily responsible for providing guidance for the overall
development of our Group. He served as the general manager of our
Group from August 2018 to July 2019.

Mr. Bai joined Times China and its subsidiaries (the “Times China
Group”) in May 2001 and has been serving as the general manager
of Guangzhou regional office since January 2002, where he has
been primarily responsible for project development, marketing and
project management in Guangzhou. He has also been serving as
a vice president of Times China Group since January 2002 and an
executive director of Times China since February 2008. He is currently
the chairman of the strategic and resources management committee
of Times China where he has been primarily responsible for its
integration of strategic business resources.
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Mr. Bai graduated from Guangdong Radio and Television University
(EREBEMRAE) in the PRC in industrial enterprise operation
management in July 1990 and received his executive master of
business administration degree from Sun Yat-sen University (fLLX
£) in the PRC in December 2009. In 2005, Mr. Bai was recognized as
an “Outstanding Contributor to Guangzhou Real Estate in the Past 20
years” (BEIMNME—TFHLEERIEA) by the Guangzhou Real Estate
in the Past 20 Years' event organizing committee (M E — 14
ABUEENAZ ), Guangzhou Real Estate Organization (FINTIEHE
E¥1%®) and Guangzhou Real Estate Guide Union (FEibEZ TIt).
He was awarded the “2006 Outstanding CEO (Diamond Award) in
Mainstream Real Estate in China” (20067 B =i 4 & 1845+ & Bt
CEQ) in 2006 by China Mainstream Real Estate Economy Summit (F
B+ 2 4S8 R IE®). From December 2011 to December 2016, Mr.
Bai served as a member of the 12th Guangzhou Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (FF B A RBUA R E
%F+ _EEMNMZEE). Mr. Bai has been serving as the chairman
of Guangzhou Nansha New District Real Estate Association (& /N
DEEFEHERE) since May 2014 and standing vice president of
Guangzhou Real Estate Industry Association (BT EMEITERHE)
since 2018.

Mr. Li Qiang (Z3&), aged 47, was appointed as our non-executive
Director on 26 August 2019 and is primarily responsible for providing
guidance for the overall development of our Group.

Mr. Li joined Times China Group in July 2005 and served as an
assistant to the president from July 2005 to July 2009. He has been
serving as an executive director of Times China since February 2008,
a vice president of Times China Group from July 2009 to April 2020
as well as the senior vice president and the general manager of the
risk control and quality service management center of Times China
Group since April 2020 where he is primarily responsible for audit,
supervision, legal and quality service management affairs. Prior to
joining Times China Group, Mr. Li worked at Guangdong ETR Law
Firm (BRBEEEZMESF) (formerly known as Guangdong
Guangxin Law Firm (BREEEZREEFT)).

Mr. Li received his master’'s degree in law from Hunan Normal
University CHmEI#EAE2) in the PRC in June 2000 and his executive
master of business administration degree from Sun Yat-sen University
(FFIUKE) in the PRC in December 2007. Mr. Li was admitted as a
practicing lawyer in the PRC in June 1998. From September 2011
to September 2016, Mr. Li served as a member of the 15th People’s
Congress of Guangzhou Yuexiu District (EMMBFREE+TREA
ERRFAKE). He has been serving as an arbitrator at Guangzhou
Arbitration Commission (BMN{H & Z & €) since October 2018.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lui Shing Ming, Brian (ZB8), aged 61, was appointed as
our independent non-executive Director on 3 December 2019 and is
responsible for providing independent advice on the operations and
management of our Group.

From April 1982 to May 1982, Mr. Lui served as an audit assistant at
John B.P. Byrne & Co (*1BW &5 FH75FT), where he was responsible
for audit work. From June 1982 to January 1983, Mr. Lui served as
an audit trainee at PricewaterhouseCoopers Limited (& ERiKES
sHEIETEFT) (formerly known as Coopers & Lybrand (Hong Kong) (7k
EERHAIEK AT (F78)), where he was responsible for audit work.
From March 1983 to May 1986, Mr. Lui served as an accountant
at The Grolier Society of Australia Pty. Ltd., a publisher of general
encyclopedias, where he was responsible for audit work. From
July 1986 to March 1989, Mr. Lui served as an accounting and
administration manager at Cheong Ming Press Factory Limited (&
FENRIR B PR AF]) where he was responsible for accounting work.
From March 1989 to November 1991, Mr. Lui served as a manager
at the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong. From
December 1992 to December 1996, Mr. Lui served as a finance
director at Cheong Ming Press Factory Limited where he was primarily
responsible for the management of accounting and financial control
functions, corporate finance matters and company restructuring. From
June 1997 to July 2014, Mr. Lui served as a director of Reaload Group
Holdings Limited ({E1% & BT B A F]) (formerly known as Cheong
Ming Investments Limited (& E BB A A]) and Cheong Ming
Holdings Limited (2831ZR AR A7), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1196), where he was primarily responsible
for company policies and strategies and financial matters and was
appointed as the chairman in 2008. From September 2004 to August
2016, Mr. Lui served as an independent non-executive director at
Hong Kong Food Investment Holdings Limited (&R MITELR AR
~a]) (formerly known as Four Seas Investment Holdings Limited (P4
MNERIEEZRABMRAF]), a food conglomerate listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code:0060). Since May 2000, he has been serving as
the chairman of Capital Financial Press Limited (& A8t &ENfIA R QA
7)), a financial printing services provider, where he has been primarily
responsible for company policies and strategies and financial matters.
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Mr. Lui received his bachelor’s degree in commerce and his master’s
degree in commerce from The University of New South Wales in
Australia in April 1982 and May 1985, respectively. He has been
serving as the honorary president of Chamber of Commerce of
Guangzhou Foreign Investment Enterprises (EMINERETER
&) since January 2017 and an executive vice president of the 8th
committee of Hong Kong Guangdong Foreign Merchants Association
(BBERINEAE). Mr. Lui was admitted as a fellow member of
Certified Practicing Accountants Australia in June 1985 and a fellow
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in
April 2005. He is currently an authorized supervisor of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Dr. Wong Kong Tin (Z3IX), Justice of the Peace, aged 55, was
appointed as our independent non-executive Director on 3 December
2019 and is responsible for providing independent advice on the
operations and management of our Group.

Dr. Wong has over 27 years of practical experience in handling cross-
border legal affairs in Greater China. From June 2010 to July 2014,
Dr. Wong served as an independent non-executive director at Great
Wall Technology Company Limited (B EHIRHBBRAF]), a power
products manufacturer and distributor previously listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 0074) and automatically delisted in July 2014,
where he was responsible for supervising and providing independent
advice to the board. Since December 2017, Dr. Wong has been
serving as an independent non-executive director at NOVA Group
Holdings Limited (FEEEEIEARERAF]) (formerly known as Mega
Expo Holdings Limited), a company principally engaged in the cultural
entertainment business and exhibition business and listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1360), where he has been responsible
for supervising and providing independent advice to the board.
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Dr. Wong received his bachelor’s degree and master’s degree in law
from Peking University (3t K2) in the PRC in July 1993 and July
1995, respectively. He received his doctor’s degree in constitutional
law and administrative law from Renmin University of China (FEBI AR
K& in the PRC in July 2001 and his postgraduate diploma in English
and Hong Kong Law from The Manchester Metropolitan University
in the United Kingdom in July 2001 through attending long distance
learning courses. Dr. Wong was admitted as an associate of Chartered
Institute of Arbitrators (HBEEFFFHEHEE) in May 2002, an associate
of Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators (BEBME A2 E) in August
2002, a Registered Financial Planner (s 817558 Z16M) certified by the
Society of Registered Financial Planners (sEMBATEREIBMHE) in July
2008, a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors (F/&
EEEZ2) in September 2008 and a founding member of the Hong
Kong Independent Non-executive Director Association (& /&8 IFH
TTEEH%E) in October 2015. He has been serving as a panel member
of Hong Kong Solicitors Disciplinary Tribunal (F&2AMACEELE)
since May 2010, the chairman of Hong Kong Liquor Licensing Board
(BEBIERD) since January 2018, the chairman of the Hong Kong
Property Management Ordinance Appeal Board (BE¥EE EIEH £
#FZ B &) since August 2020, a member of the Advisory Committee
on Post-service Employment of Civil Servants of the Government
of Hong Kong (BARERBNBEBABEMRERFAANEZEE) since
September 2021, and a member of the Citizens Advisory Committee
on Community Relations of the Independent Commission Against
Corruption since January 2022.

Dr. Chu Xiaoping (f%/NF), aged 66, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 3 December 2019 and is
responsible for providing independent advice on the operations and
management of our Group.

From June 1986 to December 2003, Dr. Chu successively served as an
associate professor, professor, associate dean and dean of Shantou
University Business School (IIZEREZEEZT) where he was primarily
responsible for management related teaching and administrative
work. Since December 2003, Dr. Chu has been serving as a professor
presenting organization and management related courses of Lingnan
College, Sun Yat-sen University (FFIUKE2EEPT). Dr. Chu is
currently an independent non-executive director of Guangzhou
Haoyang Electronics Holdings Co., Ltd. (BMT&EFEFRDARA
B]), a company listed on the ChiNext board of the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 300833), an independent non-executive
director of Oppein Home Group Inc. (BURREEBRMHBRAT), a
customized home products manufacturer listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 603833) and an independent non-executive
director of Shengyi Technology Co. Ltd. (BERE=ZEHER D BR A R]),
an electronic equipment manufacturer listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 600183). Dr. Chu served as an independent
non-executive director of Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical
Holdings Co., Ltd. (BEMNAZ LB EEERHBRAF]), a company
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0874) from January 2014 to
June 2020.
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Dr. Chu received his master’'s degree in philosophy from Huazhong
University of Science and Technology (ZEFR L K E2) (formerly known
as Huazhong Institute of Technology (227 T2%)) in the PRC in June
1986 and his doctor’s degree in management from Xi'an Jiaotong
University (FAZ 3 AE) in the PRC in December 2003. Dr. Chu
obtained his senior professional and technical qualification certificate
as an economics professor issued by Human Resources and Social
Security Department of Guangdong Province (BHRA ANERM
T2 REEEE) (formerly known as Human Resources Department of
Guangdong Province (FEE % A%EEE)) in January 2000.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

For the biographical details of Ms. Wang Meng, Mr. Yao Xusheng,
Ms. Xie Rao and Ms. Zhou Rui, please refer to “Executive Directors”
in this section.

Mr. Kwok Pak Shing (3#FX), aged 37, was appointed as the
chief financial officer of the Company on 10 September 2020 and is
responsible for financial reporting and investor relations matters of
the Company.

Mr. Kwok obtained a bachelor's degree of arts in business studies
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2006. He is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Kwok
has over 15 years of experience in accounting, auditing, corporate
finance, financial management and corporate governance matters.
Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Kwok was the chief financial
officer and joint company secretary of Zensun Enterprises Limited,
a company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 185). Prior to this role, Mr. Kwok served as a manager in a
reputable international accounting firm, and as the company secretary
and financial controller in two listed companies in Hong Kong. He
is currently an independent non-executive director of A Metaverse
Company (formerly known as Starrise Media Holdings Limited), a
company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
1616).
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The Directors are pleased to present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND GLOBAL
OFFERING

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 12 July
2019 as an exempted company with limited liability. The Company’s
shares (the “Shares”) were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 19 December 2019, issuing 161,820,000 Shares in total
at the price of HKD5.15 per Share.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company is investment holding. The
analysis of the Group's principal business for the year ended 31
December 2021 is set out in note 4 of the consolidated financial
statements.

A fair review and performance analysis of the Group’s business and
the industry situation during the Year, a discussion on the prospect
of the Group's future business development, a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing are
provided in the Chairman’s Statement and this report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business Overview

The Group is a leading and fast-growing comprehensive urban service
operator in China, providing high-quality community services, urban
services and innovative services for diversified businesses such as
residential, industrial parks, public buildings and other urban spaces.
In 2021, the Group was ranked 12th among China’s Top 100 Property
Management Companies by CIA in terms of overall strength.

Our main business includes property management services, value-
added services to non-property owners, community value-added
services and other professional services, comprehensively covering the
entire property management value chain.

36 TIMES NEIGHBORHOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Y EE R

HE2021%12A8318 B EEWEEE
RSB BEZS7TEM™M EEMEEIEEE
(TER-MALRFIEE) 9011E - MEEE
EEREMBEYIOSSHEEF K toh
BMEBI3VEANDESTERE HRABR
FRMERDR RARXNEEAELHA26588
EHK - BRERIMNEEHEMISOME - B
HIE B AR BT hn o

R20214F - HAREBBAYMEEERBAE
B BRBEANERRAREEIENWE MIRE
EERBMBE N EHERBENTHMOE - N
REFARFINRBGHRE -

TREVNBEMRARARMNDEEEAD
EEEBEIREERERE CEHBEN

Property Management Services

As of 31 December 2021, our property management services under
management have covered 87 cities, with 901 property management
projects under management (excluding urban public service projects),
and a GFA under property management of approximately 105.5
million sg.m.. In addition, we had a total of 137 contracted property
management projects which had not been handed over to us for
management, with undelivered GFA of approximately 26.5 million
sg.m.. Leveraging the good quality and market reputation, our scale
under management continues to increase.

In 2021, we rapidly expanded our property management services
portfolio and increased our business scale and market share and
diversified our business scope through organic expansion and strategic
acquisition and investment opportunities.

The table below sets forth the movements of our contracted GFA
under property management and GFA under management as of the
dates indicated:

BE12A31BLEE
For the year ended 31 December

20214 20204
2021 2020
an 'EE S5 rE
BEEE BEEE BEMmR BEEE
FEFK FEFK FERAK FEFK
Contracted GFA under Contracted GFA under
GFA management GFA management
sq.m.’000 sq.m.’000 sg.m."000 sg.m."000
iR At the beginning
of the period 81,676 68,818 49,293 38,429
HEBO New engagements!” 27,713 20,350 12,682 10,526
g 12 Acquisitions? 29,231 22,101 21,969 21,875
BIEO Terminations® (6,605) (5,756) (2,268) (2,012)
HK At the end of the period 132,015 105,513 81,676 68,818
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BRAR ([ LBRET]) 51% KR RS mE
SHET -
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REER - ZPIHEREMN D ELERER
RER - DELERMODEEERBAES -

Notes:

(1

2)

3)

In relation to residential communities and non-residential communities
we manage, new engagements primarily include preliminary property
management service contracts for new properties developed by property
developers and property management service contracts for non-
residential communities replacing their previous property management
service providers.

These refer to our engagements consolidated through holding a total
of 80% equity interest of Chengdu Holytech Technology Co., Ltd. (5%
A ERB TR AR A7) (“Chengdu Holytech”) after the further
acquisition of Chengdu Holytech in 2021, and the engagements
obtained through our acquisitions of Guangzhou Haoqing Property
Management Co., Ltd. (BN EBYMEERFRAF]) ("Guangzhou
Haoqging”) and Guangzhou Yaocheng Property Management Co., Ltd.
(BEMmRmmEEEARAE) (“"Guangzhou Yaocheng”), and the
acquisition of 51% equity interest in Shanghai Kejian Property Services
Co., Ltd. (LB RIETM X RIS AR F]) (“Shanghai Kejian”) in 2020.

These terminations include our voluntary non-renewal of certain
property management service contracts. We reallocated our resources
to more profitable engagements in an effort to optimize our property
management services portfolio.
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TREJIBEMRBMRMZEREDONY
XEHANEERREERERE

The table below sets forth our contracted GFA under property
management and GFA under management by regions as of the dates

indicated:
HBE12A31BLEE
For the year ended 31 December
20214 20204
2021 2020

an kE &4 rE
BEEE BEEEE BEmR BEEE
FEHK FEHK FEAK FEHK
Contracted GFA under Contracted GFA under
GFA management GFA management
sq.m.’000 sq.m.’000 sg.m."000 sg.m."000

REE Greater Bay Area
B Guangzhou 25,187 21,473 21,323 20,106
1L Foshan 12,213 9,181 11,035 9,125
w8 Zhuhai 5,023 4,758 4,792 4,604
Al Zhongshan 4,602 4,119 4,629 4,023
= Dongguan 3,285 2,627 2,476 2,185
EE Zhaoging 3,224 2,617 3,007 2,338
=M Huizhou 2,727 1,970 1,683 912
TP Jiangmen 3,285 2,513 2,554 2,055
sl Shenzhen 139 139 139 139
NEF Subtotal 59,685 49,397 51,638 45,487

Hitih&E Other Region

bt ™ Northeast China” 210 210 210 210
FEipiE@ North China® 2,122 2,038 1,682 1,682
ERIEO East China® 17,286 16,624 10,117 10,025
R South China® 13,056 5,794 10,203 4,966
Erhif[R o Central China® 9,456 7,727 6,149 4,860
[igls: AR Northwest China® 2,912 1,891 97 97
FrmmE Southwest China® 27,288 21,832 1,580 1,491
2y Subtotal 72,330 56,116 30,038 23,331
&t Total 132,015 105,513 81,676 68,818

BABBIERERAR /2021 #1839



EEgHS
REPORT OF DIRECTORS

Hist

AT EFRBRMEZ R EFYEEREBNE
mRERRE

(1) RitEEE: BEE:
(2)  FELHWERBIE bR - REM - WILE

(3) ERMREE: LEWH IHE  MIE-
ZHE TAEE - IURE - BEE

(4 EmwEeRE: BERE (BXEREM) -
ErttikaRR  BEE

(5) EFHMEREE:IEE  OBLE  HEE

(6) FHItEEIE  BAE  HHEE  FEDOK
BRE

(7)) WERESE BET - mIE - EMNE -
BEY -

AEFEDRFERARERB20F - LA
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TEZREHNHFED - R2021F12A31
H AKBEYETEAEHEEY  WEER
EEELEMBHOIBAETHKNERN
RRERE  hYEEERBEEEETEMN
46.8% ° SmN RN MEER - BFRH
BEBARBETSXOEEBHE  AEBEH
TISHERE N TEE R - 202146 - XEERB
BE=HFAFRBEFNIEAHER202E8F
FK e

Notes:

Only the provinces, cities and autonomous regions where we have property
management projects are listed below:

(1) Northeast China includes: Liaoning Province;
(2)  North China includes: Beijing, Tianjin, Hebei Province;

(3)  East China includes: Shanghai, Jiangsu Province, Zhejiang Province,
Anhui Province, Jiangxi Province, Shandong Province, Fujian Province;

(4)  South China includes: Guangdong Province (excluding cities in the
Greater Bay Area), Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region, Hainan
Province;

(5)  Central China includes: Henan Province, Hubei Province, Hunan Province;

(6)  Northwest China includes: Shaanxi Province, Gansu Province, Ningxia Hui
Autonomous Region;

(7)  Southwest China includes: Chongqging, Sichuan Province, Guizhou
Province, Yunnan Province.

The Group has been deeply rooted in the Greater Bay Area for more
than 20 years and has continuously expanded the scope of property
management in the Greater Bay Area, further consolidating its
competitive advantage in the area. As at 31 December 2021, among
the Group’s projects under property management, the projects with
the GFA under property management of approximately 49.4 million
sg.m. were located in the Greater Bay Area, accounting for 46.8%
of the GFA under property management. Benefiting from a good
brand image, an excellent expansion team and a flexible and efficient
incentive system, the market expansion capability of the Group has
been continuously enhanced. In 2021, the Group increased the
contracted area by 20.2 million sq.m. through third-party independent
expansion.
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EEVXMESE Portfolio of Properties under Management

BMERZTEOMELAS  REENE We manage a diversified portfolio of properties, and in addition to

FEXEHEAE-RERN RMHOER focusing on the three major businesses of residential, industrial parks
BEDE BFE HMEHSEMERE - and public buildings, we also manage commercial properties, office
W NN L EHPIFTIRERSER - buildings, urban space and other businesses, and are committed to

enriching the types of services we provide.

ETEYHEIEE
Residential Property
Projects

B K2 5 o 18T

Times Riverbank Guoco 18T Mansion

EXEYWXIER
Industrial Park Property =
Projects

M E KR RMEEEERIEXE
Suzhou GCL Photovoltaic Wenzhou Yueging Boke Industrial Park

NEYFEIERR
Public Building Property
Projects

BRIl R YR BMNTE——1Lh 2
Foshan Nanhai Museum Guangzhou No. 117 Middle School
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The table below sets forth a breakdown of our GFA under property
management as of the dates and revenue generated from property

EERGEENBRARA management services for the periods indicated by the type of
property:
HENA3NALEE
For the year ended 31 December
W15 20008
2021 2020
kg i3
BEMR fhitt KA fatt BEER fhilt BA fhilt
(F¥AR) % (AR®TR) % (F¥HK) % (AR%TIT) %
GFA under GFA under
management Percentage Revenue Percentage  management Percentage Revenue Percentage
(sg.m."000) % (RMB'000) % (sq.m.'000) % (RMB'000) %
fremx Residential properties 48,765 46.2 771,671 493 230 324 499,567 495
FrEmE Non-residential properties 56,748 53.8 798,994 50.7 46,49 67.6 509,916 505
Bt Total 105,513 100.0 1,576,671 100.0 68,818 100.0 1,009,483 100.0

REREMBESIBRARFPHEIES
EVMEEES MOTERNBETHREROE
REE WEHEREENEERBRD - &
F2021F12A31H FEXEEE@E
W48 SEBFEH K EERBEALENA
46.2% - FREEMEMNEBRAFMBLHOA
REI77.78 87T hYEEERBKRAD
#949.3% + B20204F Al ARG R £4)55.7% ° &
MRE  BRAEEZITLEERMBEINLER
RAEEE  BLRMUE—TSBEBRTEMSE
HEREPE TEZ T EIERE

PR EmHMEE

EXamR A B ERZE X RE
BROFE  BRACMARBLE=TT5
R - BRERINRBEE  EXNORBE
BERENOBMBE  RARE=TTM5
R FTER A EERERRGREER -

Benefitting from our continuous efforts to expand the customer
base and to diversify the portfolio of properties under management,
the effective strategies for independent expansion and mergers and
acquisitions were implemented to gain a balanced and diversified
business layout. As of 31 December 2021, the management area
for the residential business was approximately 48.8 million sg.m.,
accounting for approximately 46.2% of the scale under management.
The revenue derived from the management of residential properties
for the year was approximately RMB777.7 million, accounting for
approximately 49.3% of the revenue from property management
services, representing an increase of approximately 55.7% as
compared with the same period of 2020. We believe that the
experience and recognition gained from managing such diversified
businesses will enable us to further expand our portfolio of properties
under management, grow our customer base and create diversified
sources of financial growth.

Nature of Developers Served

We benefited from the rapid growth of Times China Group’s real
estate development business. At the same time, we stepped up our
expansion into independent third-party markets. Leveraging on our
high quality services, our professional service team and our renowned
reputation, we have achieved a rapid growth in terms of GFA from
the expansion of third-party markets.
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The following table sets forth our GFA under property management
as of the dates and revenue generated from the provision of property

EERBEENBA management services by property developers for the periods indicated:
HENA3NALEE
For the year ended 31 December
W15 20205
2021 2020
£E kg
BEMR fhitt KA fatt BEER fhilt BA fhilt
(F¥AR) % (AR®TR) % (F¥HK) % (AR%TIT) %
GFA under GFA under
management Percentage Revenue Percentage  management Percentage Revenue Percentage
(sg.m."000) % (RMB'000) % (sq.m.'000) % (RMB'000) %
BftnEgEn Times China Group"” 24,916 236 568,786 36.1 21,34 310 491,985 487
g=p0 Third parties” 80,597 76.4 1,007,885 63.9 47,494 69.0 517,498 513
At Total 105,513 100.0 1,576,671 100.0 68,818 100.0 1,009,483 100.0
Bt Notes:

(1) BEARKTEEESEBEMENYEIN
R B A rp [ £ B B KL e 1) 2 9 35 7 AL [R)
REmMERTEEESEERERNY
=,

2 EeERBYRBERTEEENIIMNINYE
DA B X B8] S (3 £ L 4t ) 25 B 3 7 A
RFEZENDE  SRPEEETESS
ZEYMEOERES - SMINYMETE
ERE-NEEQRREZENBFMAZ

EREM DY -

N ENMEE R ETREETBEMGE
2 b 20204 #969.0% + FF 20214 K
EEINOMYEREENRARH
2020F M ARHES17 5B & T INE20214
MARM1,0079B8T - BEEREENRA

76.4% -

REMHOEBEEREARE=FT8FHE -

(1) Includes properties solely developed by Times China Group and properties
that Times China Group jointly developed with other property developers for
which properties Times China Group held a controlling interest.

(2) Includes properties solely developed by third-party property developers
independent from Times China Group, as well as properties jointly developed
by Times China Group and other property developers for which Times China
Group did not hold a controlling interest. Properties developed by third-
party property developers also include government-owned buildings and
other public properties, which are constructed by third-party construction
companies.

The percentage of GFA under property management for properties
developed by third-party property developers grew from 69.0% in
2020 to 76.4% in 2021. The revenue generated from managing
properties developed by third-party property developers increased
from RMB517.5 million in 2020 to RMB1,007.9 million in 2021. Such
growth is mainly due to our strategic acquisitions and third-party
independent expansion.
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Value-added Services to Non-property Owners

We offer a broad range of property related business solutions to non-
property owners, primarily property developers, which cover their
entire property development process, consisting of (i) sales assistance
services, which assist property developers in showcasing and
marketing their properties, including pre-sale consultation, display unit
management, organizing sales campaigns as well as visitor reception
for property development projects; (ii) construction site services,
including consultancy and security services; (iii) housing agency
services for residences, shops and parking spaces; (iv) pre-delivery
cleaning services; and (v) urban redevelopment project services. As
a result of the cyclical impact of China’s real estate market, the
revenue derived from value-added services to non-property owners
in 2021 decreased by 6.0% to approximately RMB396.9 million from
RMB422.2 million in 2020, primarily due to the decrease in revenue
from sales assistance services.

The table below sets forth the breakdown of revenue derived from
value-added services to non-property owners for the years indicated:

BZ12A318LEE
For the year ended 31 December

2021%F 2020%F
2021 2020
KA fhEE A (=)sd
(AR®T ) % (AR%TT) %
Revenue Percentage Revenue Percentage
(RMB’000) % (RMB’000) %
% 88 AR 7% Sales assistance services 254,675 64.2 277,895 65.8
T IRE R Construction site services 37,754 9.5 41,733 9.9
FB Rk Pre-delivery cleaning
services 37,063 9.3 38,927 9.2
W IE B RS Urban redevelopment
project services 38,106 9.6 35,145 8.3
EEF N R Housing agency services 29,318 7.4 28,496 6.8
A&t Total 396,916 100.0 422,196 100.0
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Community Value-added Services

As an extension of property management services, in order to satisfy
the property owners and residents’ pursuit of convenience, enhance
customers’ experience and increase their loyalty, we provide a wide
range of services in two categories, namely, public space leasing and
parking space management and resident services. Our resident services
mainly include bag check, home renovation, asset management,
community group buying and housekeeping services.

The table below sets forth the breakdown of revenue derived from
community value-added services for the years indicated:

BZ12A318LEE
For the year ended 31 December

20215 20204
2021 2020

WA itk KA {[=1=d

(AR¥T ) % (AR¥EFTT) %

Revenue Percentage Revenue Percentage

(RMB’000) % (RMB'000) %
NHZEFEEE & Public space leasing
(A= and parking space

management 103,286 18.9 68,870 37.0

AR RS Resident services 443,858 81.1 117,283 63.0

CHl Total 547,144 100.0 186,153 100.0

20214F +t [& 15 (B AR 75 YR A 8220204 [A] B A9
ARK186.2EEILIEMI93.8%EHNARKE
SA7 BB FEHRBMYEERAE
BEERBRMNREREXR  REMNAPABER
AR A EBRIS SR L FTER ©

In 2021, the revenue from community value-added services increased
by 193.8% to approximately RMB547.1 million as compared with
RMB186.2 million for the corresponding period in 2020, which was
mainly due to the expansion of our GFA under property management,
the substantial increase in the number of users served and the
diversification of resident services business types.
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Deep Cleaning Services Property Interior Decoration Services

20214 - RMBERNNHEEMERE EBEDT In 2021, we continued to vigorously promote “Neighborhood
BIMEMIAPPE [#BER | - AEFRHE Services” APP and “Neighborhood Shopping”, community online
SmE NSO R - WEBMRLEE shopping platforms, to provide property owners with high-quality
EED ReAPNERERTPHNE - # goods and considerate services, and to improve the activity level of

mgMEasIEE  BERELETRENE users and customer stickiness by carrying out community operation
L - BAETERIFURAERR20204 [F) 21 activities, so as to increase the number of orders from the platforms
11278 5% =X AREE443 9FE T © and realize the mutual transformation of online and offline traffic. Our

revenue from resident services increased by 278.5% to approximately
RMB443.9 million, as compared with the same period of 2020.
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Other Professional Services

We provide other professional services to our customers, including (i)
elevator services (including sale, installation, repair and maintenance
of elevators); (ii) Zhilian technology services; and (iii) urban public
services.

The table below sets forth the breakdown of revenue derived from
other professional services for the years indicated:

BZE12A318LEE
For the year ended 31 December

2021%F 20204
2021 2020

LON itk ' @N (=154
(AR¥TT) % (AR®FT) %
Revenue Percentage Revenue  Percentage
(RMB’000) % (RMB'000) %
BERH R Zhilian technology services 102,084 51.3 43,605 31.0
BIHIRTS Elevator services 46,153 23.2 49,234 35.0
WA RS Urban public services 50,779 25.5 47,756 34.0
CHl Total 199,016 100.0 140,595 100.0
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Elevator Services
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BETT

20214 - BRFIFERRB T AERBEE -
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BEATERARGARRERY - 12021
F12A318 - BM—HBEBTAKRAELIEE
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BB IR

Zhilian Technology Services

In 2021, we were deeply engaged in Zhilian technology services,
which are oriented towards four major sectors: family, community,
business enterprise and city services, to provide building intelligence,
smart park consulting design, upgrade, reconstruction, operation and
maintenance services. The revenue from Zhilian technology services
increased to approximately RMB102.1 million from approximately
RMB43.6 million in the same period of 2020.

In 2021, we continued to develop urban public service projects,
providing services such as municipal sanitation, security patrol,
integrated management of construction site and comprehensive
cleaning for these projects. As at 31 December 2021, we had a total
of 33 urban public service contract projects, with a contract amount
of approximately RMB214.4 million in total and an annualized
contract amount of approximately RMB76.9 million.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
are set out in the consolidated statements of profit or loss and
comprehensive income on pages 137 to 138 of this annual report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group's results, assets and liabilities for the last five
financial years are set out on pages 267 to 268 of this annual report.
This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue is mainly derived from property management
services, value-added services to non-property owners, community
value-added services and other professional services. The Group's
revenue increased by approximately RMB961.3 million or
approximately 54.7% to approximately RMB2,719.7 million in 2021
from approximately RMB1,758.4 million in 2020, which was primarily
attributable to the increase in our revenue from property management
services and revenue from community value-added services.

The table below sets forth the breakdown of revenue of the Group by
business line for the years indicated:

BZ12A3101LEE
For the year ended 31 December
20214 20204
2021 2020

[N 354 WA {35

(AR#T ) % (ARETT) %

Revenue Percentage Revenue Percentage

(RMB’000) % (RMB’000) %

MEEERG Property management services 1,576,671 58.0 1,009,483 57.4
FEE L ER Value-added services to

non-property owners 396,916 14.6 422,196 24.0

3R E RS Community value-added services 547,144 20.1 186,153 10.6

Hin B ERH% Other professional services 199,016 7.3 140,595 8.0

At Total 2,719,747 100.0 1,758,427 100.0

MEETERBNEASENZAWAR
2021 AEEMEEERBWAZERLD
AREENI576.7EE T EAREBEBKAD
58.0% - AR A RSENEEEEME
PR R - I ERKMERRPEEER
BEAERBRMABIRBEAE= TP ER
FTER o SEXEMAERBKATEREIERZS
EEEMSERYEFEHERS - ET
BIBREF TS ZRGHUA ST N E
B mEEERBBUAENEEHNREER
TR MEEBELNLSHELCRRBEAPH
ERRBRATK - EMBHERFUALLINE
THREBEHEREKRAGER

The property management services are still our largest source of
revenue. In 2021, the Group's revenue from property management
services was approximately RMB1,576.7 million, accounting for
58.0% of the Group’s total revenue. The increase in revenue was
primarily driven by the fast growth of our GFA under management,
which resulted from both our continuous cooperation with Times
China Group and our efforts to expand the third-party customer base.
The decrease in revenue from value-added services to non-property
owners was mainly due to the decline in the revenue from sales
assistance services, construction site services and pre-delivery cleaning
services as a result of the cyclical impact of China's real estate market.
The increase in revenue from community value-added services was
mainly due to an increase in the management area, the diversification
of service business types as well as the rapid growth of the number of
users served. The increase in revenue from other professional services
was mainly due to an increase in revenue from Zhilian technology
services.
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Cost of Sales

Our expenses mainly consist of (i) labor costs; (ii) cleaning and
gardening expenses; and (iii) maintenance costs, etc. For the
year ended 31 December 2021, the total expenses of the Group
was approximately RMB1,977.7 million, which was increased by
approximately RMB750.3 million or approximately 61.1% as compared
to approximately RMB1,227.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2020. Such increase was mainly due to the increase in the scale
of revenue, while the growth rate of cost of sales was higher than
that of revenue, due to the adjustment of the Company’s business
structure.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Based on the above reasons, the gross profit of the Group increased
by RMB211.1 million or 39.8% to RMB742.1 million in 2021 from
RMB531.0 million in 2020, which was primarily attributable to the
increase in the scale of revenue. The gross profit margin of the Group
decreased by 2.9 percentage points to 27.3% in 2021 from 30.2% in
2020.

Gross profit margin of the Group by business line was as follows:

BZ128318LEE
For the year ended 31 December

2021 2020%F

% %

2021 2020

% %

Y E IR Property management services 26.7 28.2
FEFE IR ERTE Value-added services to non-property

owners 26.0 29.8

R IZERTE Community value-added services 33.9 51.0

Hith B Other professional services 16.1 18.2

A ENE Total gross profit margin 27.3 30.2

2021F - AEEEMERL THE29EE S
o TERHRMETEREEMEE ¥
EHERTRE BT HREETR -

In 2021, the gross profit margin of the Group decreased by 2.9
percentage points year on year, primarily due to the growth in the
scale of property management and the general decrease in gross
profit margin as a result of the adjustment of business structure.

50 TIMES NEIGHBORHOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2021



BMOWEERREENETRISEEH
% XBRENES FWEREEA - EF
RERAEERSE  SRNEETERGE
Rl TR -

BAIEERERERBEFNET[E3.8EE D
B TERARXTEFMEMSNBHY
EEHHEEFRARENEKTRE -

BAWEREERBENETEI7AEED
B I2RAREEMINELERBIALIG
BB B ARR - EdaRREAS
BREM - ENEEHRTHE -

BPMEMEXRFENETR21ETD
B TERANRASBMEIREEBER
B

HAl A R Kz

AEEEMU A H2020FH ARE23 58
B ME2021FHHARE3SITGETT -
EMHARBI146EE T HIBE62.1% -
I N E B8R A EUS BT B RS IE hn -

ITHBX

THERTEZEREOHAERAS  RNTE
R#EE - B E2021F 128318 ILEE -
REBTHAYBBEANARB2I02ES
TT BEE2020F 128318 EFE 2O A
R¥1803BBL EANARKISIEE T
RHI54.9% o ZIGMEB R ERK BRI
I IATEL

Our gross profit margin of property management services decreased
by 1.5 percentage points. The decrease in gross profit margin of
property management services was mainly due to the expansion of
the scale of properties developed by third-party property developers
which constituted lower gross profit margin as compared with the
original project portfolio.

Our gross profit margin of value-added services to non-property
owners decreased by 3.8 percentage points, primarily due to the
decrease in revenue and gross profit margin of sales assistance
business as a result of the cyclical impact of China’s real estate
market.

The gross profit margin of our community value-added services
decreased by 17.1 percentage points, mainly due to the Company's
strategic expansion of resident services, which helped achieve
geometric growth. However, there was a decrease in the gross profit
margin, due to the adjustment and change of service portfolio.

Our gross profit margin of other professional services decreased by 2.1
percentage points, primarily due to the adjustment of the business
structure of our Zhilian technology services.

Other Income and Gains

The other income of the Group increased by approximately RMB14.6
million or 62.1% to approximately RMB38.1 million in 2021 from
approximately RMB23.5 million in 2020, which was primarily
attributable to the increase in gains from government grants received.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses mainly consist of (i) office expenses;
and (ii) depreciation and amortization, etc. For the year ended
31 December 2021, the total administrative expenses of the
Group were approximately RMB279.2 million, which increased by
approximately RMB98.9 million or approximately 54.9% as compared
to approximately RMB180.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2020. Such increase was mainly due to the increase in the expenses
arising from business expansion.
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Other Expenses

The other expenses of the Group increased by RMB26.0 million or
1,130.4% to RMB28.3 million in 2021 from RMB2.3 million in 2020.
The increase in the expenses was mainly due to the increase in non-
operating expenditure.

Finance Costs

The finance costs of the Group decreased by approximately RMB5.0
million or 60.2% to approximately RMB3.3 million in 2021 from
approximately RMB8.3 million in 2020. The decrease in the expenses
was mainly because of the decrease in the interest expense generated
from the contract revenue of property management, which arose
from property management fees received in advance of the due date
and will gradually decrease as the property management fees received
in advance matures.

Income Tax Expense

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the income tax of the Group
was approximately RMB109.7 million (2020: RMB79.9 million). The
increase was primarily due to the increase in taxable income.

Core Net Profit Attributable to Owners of the Parent for
the Year

After excluding non-recurring expenses from the net profit
attributable to owners of the parent for the Year, the core net profit
attributable to owners of the parent for the Year amounted to
approximately RMB330.5 million in 2021 (2020: RMB232.6 million),
representing an increase of 42.1%.

Property, Plant and Equipment

The Group’s property, plant and equipment mainly include
leasehold improvement, motor vehicles and office equipment. As
at 31 December 2021, the Group's property, plant and equipment
was approximately RMB95.2 million, representing an increase of
approximately RMB43.3 million as compared to RMB51.9 million at
the end of 2020, primarily due to the business expansion, the increase
in certain fixed assets through the acquisition of companies by the
Group and the increase in the purchase of office equipment and
business equipment.

52  TIMES NEIGHBORHOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2021



W E % A

EREBESHRBETEELAOMEETERY -
FEZHERBZEABRIEEERE =
FREMNEMEZERS - R2021F12A31
H - RNEBHEKE ZHRIBLHARE,140.0
BEIL BR2020F12A31BNHARE
574 1B B in# AR 56598 B Lok
98.6% ' TERAN AR EBHRBERKREN
I FE USRI IE N -

RANFIE - ZE REAABERKE

TERRIE « e RE A ERFIERLE E2020
F12A318 040 AR ®260.18 & T i 0
39%E FH E2021F12A31HNH ARE
2703 B L T ERHRAREBHRIERE
KETER

P+ & 5 =R

R2021F12A831H " Z"EEBNENE S K
HHARKES69.48 E T+ BR2020F12 A
3TEMHARB27SSEE TS MHARE
293.9EBTH106.7% * TEHNAFIER
RREAFTE -

HAi A IR R s H B

HibfET B R EFTIE B (& £2020%F12
A31BMAOARE370 1B ETEMN0A%E
HE2021F12A31BENHARKI7IHE
ﬁo

MBRRRERRERE

HE2021F12A31BILEE - KREEHE
BRFBMRR -

2021512 A318 - AEBEMRELE (OF
HEE/TEAE A1.94(5 (2020912
A318 :224(%) FABELXAFHRE
(2020128318 : FIR &) - FAMBEL X
HERHEMABERRERENBEESEE
Y- REBRAFEE ° 20214 k20204
12A318 + REBE W EAFA AR EEEME

[+ £f
BN e

Trade Receivables

Trade receivables mainly arise from property management services,
value-added services to non-property owners and other professional
services provided to Times China Group and third parties. The Group's
trade receivables as at 31 December 2021 amounted to approximately
RMB1,140.0 million, representing an increase of approximately
RMB565.9 million or 98.6% as compared to approximately RMB574.1
million as at 31 December 2020, primarily due to the increase in
receivables arising from the expansion of the Company’s business
scale.

Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables

Prepayment, deposits and other receivables increased by 3.9%
from approximately RMB260.1 million as of 31 December 2020 to
approximately RMB270.3 million as of 31 December 2021, primarily
due to the expansion of the Company’s business scale.

Trade Payables

The Group’s trade payables as at 31 December 2021 amounted
to approximately RMB569.4 million, representing an increase
of approximately RMB293.9 million or 106.7% as compared to
approximately RMB275.5 million as at 31 December 2020, primarily
due to the expansion of the Company’s business scale.

Other Payables and Accruals

Other payables and accruals increased by 0.4% from approximately
RMB370.1 million as of 31 December 2020 to approximately
RMB371.5 million as of 31 December 2021.

Financial Position and Capital Structure

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group maintained a sound
financial position.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s current ratio (current assets/
current liabilities) was 1.94 times (31 December 2020: 2.24 times)
and net gearing ratio indicated a net cash status (31 December 2020:
net cash). Net gearing ratio is calculated by other interest-bearing
borrowings minus cash and cash equivalent, and then divided by net
assets. As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group did not have
any outstanding other interest-bearing borrowings.
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Financial Guarantee

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any financial
guarantee.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2021, none of the assets of the Group were
pledged.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

Interest Rate Risk

As the Group had no significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities,
the Group is not exposed to material risk directly relating to changes
in market interest rate.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC and most of its operations are
denominated in RMB. The Group will closely monitor the fluctuations
of the RMB exchange rate and give prudent consideration as to
entering into currency swap arrangement as and when appropriate
for hedging corresponding risks. As at 31 December 2021, the Group
had not engaged in hedging activities for managing foreign exchange
rate risk.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD,
MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES, AND FUTURE PLANS FOR
MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL
ASSETS

Further Acquisition of Chengdu Holytech

In accordance with the equity transfer agreement dated 16 April 2021
entered into between, among others, Guangzhou Times Property
Management Co., Ltd. (BMNTRRMEEEER 2 F) (“Guangzhou
Times Property”) and Chengdu Holytech, Guangzhou Times Property
acquired 31% equity interest in Chengdu Holytech at a consideration
of RMB194,492,100. Chengdu Holytech Property Co., Ltd. (FX#&B&
EB T ERSBIRAR]) (“Holytech Property”) is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Chengdu Holytech, which is a property management
service provider established in the PRC. The business registration
and arrangement of such equity transfer were completed in April
2021. Upon completion, Guangzhou Times Property held a total of
80% equity interest in Chengdu Holytech, while Chengdu Holytech
and Holytech Property became subsidiaries of the Group. For more
details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 11
December 2020 and 16 April 2021.

The Contractual Arrangements

As stated in the announcement of the Company dated 20 December
2021, Guangzhou Times Linlibang Network Technology Co., Ltd. (&
M B A B BRI AR A R]) (a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company), Hainan Qi Lin Technology Co., Ltd. (B8RRI A
[R/27]) (“Hainan Qi Lin”), Mr. Cen Qixiong and Ms. Mei Huimin
entered into the VIE Agreements so as to acquire 100% equity
interest of Hainan Qi Lin at nil consideration. Upon signing of the VIE
Agreements, the financial results of Hainan Qi Lin were consolidated
into the financial statements of the Group and Hainan Qi Lin became
a subsidiary of the Company.

Save as disclosed in this report, there were no other significant
investments held, no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures in the Year, nor was there any plan
authorized by the Board for other material investments or additions of
capital assets at the date of this report.
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ACHIEVEMENT OF OPERATIONAL TARGETS

(a)

(b)

Acquisition of Shanghai Kejian

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated
28 June 2020 and 10 July 2020, respectively, in relation to the
acquisition of 51% of the equity interest in Shanghai Kejian.
Pursuant to the equity transfer agreement, Shanghai Kejian
should achieve a target net profit after tax for the financial years
ended 31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022, and the Company
is entitled to relevant distributions. According to the audited
financial results of Shanghai Kejian, Shanghai Kejian achieved
the guarantee amount of the net profit after tax as of 31
December 2021, and the Company is also entitled to receive
relevant pro-rata distributions.

Acquisition of Chengdu Holytech

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated
11 December 2020 and 16 April 2021, respectively, in relation
to the acquisition of 80% of the equity interest in Chengdu
Holytech in total. Pursuant to the equity transfer agreement,
Chengdu Holytech should achieve a target net profit after tax for
the financial years ended 31 December 2021, 2022 and 2023,
and the Company is entitled to relevant distributions. According
to the audited financial results of Chengdu Holytech, Chengdu
Holytech achieved the guarantee amount of the net profit after
tax as of 31 December 2021, and the Company is also entitled
to receive relevant pro-rata distributions.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 10,268 full-time employees
(31 December 2020: 8,129 full-time employees).
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The remunerations of the employees are commensurate with their
performance, skills, knowledge, experience and the market trend.
Employee benefits provided by the Group include provident fund
schemes, medical insurance scheme, unemployment insurance
scheme, housing provident fund and mandatory provident fund. The
Group reviews the remuneration policies and packages on a regular
basis and will make necessary adjustments that accommodate the
pay levels in the industry. In addition to basic salaries, the employees
may be offered with discretionary bonuses and cash awards based on
individual performances. The Group also provides training programs
for the employees with a view to constantly upgrading their skills
and knowledge. For more information on the Group’s training during
the Year, please refer to the 2021 ESG Report of the Company to be
published in due course.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of
the Laws of Hong Kong). Pursuant to the relevant labour laws, rules
and regulations in the PRC, the Group also participates in a state-
managed retirement benefit scheme (the “Retirement Benefit
Scheme"”) operated by the relevant local government authorities in
the PRC.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021, the Group had
no forfeited contributions (by employers on behalf of employees who
leave the MPF Scheme and Retirement Benefit Scheme prior to vesting
fully in such contributions) which may be used by the Group to
reduce the existing level of contributions. There were also no forfeited
contributions during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021
under the MPF Scheme and Retirement Benefit Scheme which may be
used by the Group to reduce the contribution payable in future years.

The Group's employee benefit expense (excluding Directors’
remuneration) is approximately RMB895.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2021 (2020: RMB646.2 million).
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

Under the emolument policy of the Group, the nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”) and remuneration committee of the
Company (the “Remuneration Committee”) will consider factors
such as salaries paid by comparable companies, tenure, commitment,
responsibilities and performance (as the case may be) of our Directors
and the senior management, in assessing the amount of remuneration
payable to our Directors and the senior management.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to any Director as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

EMOLUMENTS OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Company are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the
consolidated financial statements for this year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

As at the date of this report, the Company has not adopted any share
option scheme.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 23 September 2020 (the “"Adoption Date”), the Company
adopted a share award scheme (the “Scheme”) to recognize the
contributions of selected participants and encourage them to
remain in office in the Group, thus promoting continuing operation
and development of the Group. The Scheme shall be valid until
the business day immediately prior to the 10th anniversary of the
Adoption Date. The details are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 23 September 2020. According to the Scheme, the
award shares will be satisfied by way of acquisition of existing Shares
through on-market transactions by the trustee and will be held on
trust until they are vested. The total number of all award shares
granted under the Scheme shall not exceed 3% (i.e. 29,570,182
shares) and the maximum number of Shares which can be awarded to
any one selected participant is 1% (i.e. 9,856,727 Shares) of the total
issued Shares of the Company as at 23 September 2020.

On 13 November 2020, according to the Scheme, the Company
granted 24 selected participants (including 4 executive Directors) a
total of 3,350,000 award shares, representing approximately 0.34%
of the total issued Shares of the Company as at 13 November 2020.
The details are set out in the announcement of the Company dated
13 November 2020.
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As at 31 December 2021, a total of 3,350,000 Shares were held
under the Scheme and shall be held upon trust for the benefits of the
relevant grantees until they are vested (or cancelled) in accordance
with the Scheme.

During the Reporting Period, there was no purchase of Shares of the
Company by the trustee under the Scheme, and no award shares
were granted/vested under the Scheme by the Company.

A summary of the award shares granted is set forth below:

REROHE
Number of award shares

R20214F 20215

1A1H8 REE REE REEHR 12A31H

BEESRENSR REBH 5 R AR BARE R¥/ R e RATE

Lapsed/

Outstanding Granted Vested forfeited  Outstanding

as at during the during the during the as at

Name of selected 1 January Reporting Reporting Reporting 31 December

participants Date of grant 2021 Period Period Period 2021

FagmL0 202011 A13H 200,000 - - - 200,000
Ms. Wang Meng 13 November 2020

HraFHEED 2020511 A13H 200,000 - - - 200,000
Mr. Yao Xusheng™" 13 November 2020

AL 2020511 A13H 200,000 - - - 200,000
Ms. Xie Rao™ 13 November 2020

Bz Lto 202011 A13H 200,000 - - - 200,000
Ms. Zhou Rui” 13 November 2020

HihiEwLmE 202011 A13H 2,550,000 - - (250,000)@ 2,300,000
Other selected participants 13 November 2020

&3t Total 3,350,000 - - (250,000) 3,100,000

e - Notes:
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(1) Under Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), he/she is a connected person
of the Company.

(2)  During the Reporting Period, a total of 2 selected participants ceased to
be eligible persons and no award shares were vested. According to the
Scheme, any award shares that have not yet vested, that is, a total of
250,000 award shares, have been immediately forfeited. These forfeited
award shares will be regarded as returned shares, which will continue
to be held by the trustee and can be used to satisfy the awards to be
granted in the future.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

Declaration of dividends is subject to the discretion of our Directors,
depending on our results of operations, cash flows, financial position,
statutory and regulatory restrictions on the dividends paid by us,
future prospects, as well as any other factors which our Directors may
consider relevant. We have no policy for future dividend payments.
Our Board has absolute discretion as to whether to declare any
dividend for any year, and in what amount. For more details on
dividend distribution, please refer to the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles of Association”).

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION POLICIES
AND PERFORMANCE

Information on the environmental policies and performance of the
Company is set out in the 2021 ESG Report of the Company to be
published in due course.

As far as the Company is aware, the Group has complied with the
applicable environmental laws and regulations of the places where the
Group has business operations during the year ended 31 December
2021. The Group will review its environmental practices from time to
time and will consider implementing further measures and practices in
the Group’s business operations to enhance sustainability.

The Group adheres to environmental sustainability. The Group strives
to ensure minimal environmental impacts by carefully managing
its energy consumption, water usage, property design and waste
production.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

To the best knowledge of the Directors, the Group has complied with
all the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the Group, particularly in relation to its business including health and
safety, workplace conditions, employment and the environment.

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to applicable
laws, rules and regulations, in particular, those have significant impact
on the Group. The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”) is delegated by the Board to monitor the Group’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements and such policies are regularly reviewed. Any changes in
the applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought to the attention
of relevant employees and relevant operation units from time to time.

As far as the Company is aware, the Group has complied in material
respects with the laws and regulations which have a significant impact
on the business and operations of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2021.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company made
charitable and other donations in an amount of approximately
RMB825,000 (31 December 2020: RMB3,910,000).

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH THE GROUP’S
EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Details of our relationship with employees are set out in the section
headed “Employees and Remuneration Policy” of this annual report.

Our customers primarily consist of property developers, property
owners and residents and governmental authorities.

For all of our business lines, our suppliers are primarily sub-contractors
providing cleaning, gardening and certain repair and maintenance
services.

Please refer to the 2021 ESG Report of the Company to be published
in due course for more details.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended a final dividend of RMB4.7 cents per
ordinary share totalling approximately RMB46,327,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: RMB7.1 cents). The final dividend
is subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) at the annual general meeting of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2021 (the "AGM"), and is expected to
be paid on or around 8 July 2022.

The proposed final dividend shall be declared in RMB and paid in
HKD. The final dividend payable in HKD will be converted from RMB
to HKD at the average exchange rate of HKD against RMB announced
by the People’'s Bank of China on 30 May 2022.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 24 May
2022 to 30 May 2022, both days inclusive, in order to determine
the identity of the Shareholders who are entitled to attend the
forthcoming AGM. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the
forthcoming AGM, all transfer accompanied by the relevant share
certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the Company’s
Hong Kong share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m. on 23
May 2022.

The record date for qualifying to receive the proposed final dividend
is 9 June 2022. In order to determine the right of the Shareholders
entitled to receive the proposed final dividend, which is subject to the
approval by the Shareholders in the forthcoming AGM, the register
of members of the Company will be closed from 7 June 2022 to
9 June 2022, both days inclusive. All transfer accompanied by the
relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the
Company’s Hong Kong share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong before 4:30
p.m. on 6 June 2022.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

The Shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on the listing date (i.e. 19 December 2019) by way
of global offering, raising the total net proceeds (after deducting
professional fees, underwriting commissions and other related listing
expenses) of approximately HKD786,744,178.

The proceeds from the listing are and will be used according to
the plans disclosed in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of
Proceeds-Use of Proceeds” in the prospectus dated 9 December 2019
of the Company:
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Proposed Use (Including the Reserved Amount) of Remaining for Use of Remaining

of Proceeds as at 31 December 2021 Unutilized Proceeds  Unutilized Proceeds

BEFERIEELN AHMGREFENE5%HK511,383 716 ETERHANSEREE  REVBKERNME &
65%%511,383,716 BRENWBHE N E—PERBEES  AANT : A
BELRARSEE

BEBRARKEE | AEREFENL5.0%HARE32,722,984 87 (HERE)

BURE-SRRE 39,247,948.07870) E R IR MBS 02 REARHE -

BBE

Ym0
i, FIEFIEFEMN23%HARE14,868,132.67T (FHERH
17,832,838.28 70 ) B AR UL B8 &) 2 2P ARAE
iil. PRI FREA4035.7% S AR 234,050,000.07C (HERE)
280,719,570.0/70) B AR MUIE LIBRIET51% 80 R E :
iv. FIESIRFER420.8% sk AR 136,504,180.07C (FHE LA
163,723,113.387T) EANIER G Z49% 0 © K
v. FETUEFEMA.2%HARES220,982.67 HERK
9,860,246.5870) B AN E M BURE IR -
ERRACERREAEUEEARE -
Approximately Approximately 65% of the total net proceeds or HKD511,383,716  There are no Nil
65% of the total was totally used for seeking selective strategic investment and  remaining unutilized
net proceeds or acquisition opportunities and further developing strategic alliances, as  proceeds.

HKD511,383,716 follows:
will be used for

seeking selective i.  Approximately 5.0% of the net proceeds or RMB32,722,984.8
strategic investment (equivalent to approximately HKD39,247,948.0) was used for
and acquisition acquiring the entire equity interest in Guangzhou Haoging;
opportunities and

further developing  ii.  Approximately 2.3% of the net proceeds or RMB14,868,132.6
strategic alliances; (equivalent to approximately HKD17,832,838.2) was used for

acquiring the entire equity interest in Guangzhou Yaocheng;

jii. Approximately 35.7% of the net proceeds or RMB234,050,000.0
(equivalent to approximately HKD280,719,570.0) was used for
acquiring a 51% equity interest in Shanghai Kejian;

iv. Approximately 20.8% of the net proceeds or RMB136,504,180.0
(equivalent to approximately HKD163,723,113.3) was used for
acquiring a 49% equity interest in Chengdu Holytech; and

v. Approximately 1.2% of the net proceeds or RMB8,220,982.6
(equivalent to approximately HKD9,860,246.5) was used for other

strategic acquisitions.

There was no material deviation for the actual usages from the
original intended uses.
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of Proceeds

R2021F12 831 BFIBHEER AR (BEREELE)
Actual Use of Proceeds

(Including the Reserved Amount)

as at 31 December 2021

Fehk A
MRBRERERR
Intended Use

of Remaining
Unutilized Proceeds

ek EANFENE
WIEHE AR R
Expected Timeline
for Use of Remaining
Unutilized Proceeds

A FRTEFEN
15%3 118,011,627
AT R MR i
B RITEE S

B KEREFRY

g8

Approximately

15% of the total
net proceeds or
HKD118,011,627
will be used for
improving the
customer service
quality by using
advanced technology
and building a smart
community;

A FTERIEFEL10.2%580,502,87 178 7L 8 B R FIH & B )2
TEREHRE  KRARKFPREEE  BENT :

i FBRUBFEA5.6%544,293,906 B TE ANESHRIER

i. FTSRIEEENL3%E34,133,126B T AR BEERERT
5 R

iii. FISZUBEFEA0.3%52,075, 8408 tE AN E TR FLES
BH -

ERRGERRERAGTEEARE

Approximately 10.2% of the total net proceeds or HKD80,502,871
was used for improving the customer service quality by using
advanced technology and building a smart community, as follows:

Approximately 5.6% of the net proceeds or HKD44,293,906 was
used for the smart community project;

ii.  Approximately 4.3% of the net proceeds or HKD34,133,126 was
used for the nationwide integrated management and control
platform; and

iii. Approximately 0.3% of the net proceeds or HKD2,075,840
was used for the property engineering digital operation and
maintenance project.

There was no material deviation for the actual usages from the
original intended uses.
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of Proceeds

R2021F12 831 BFIBEER AR (BEREELE)
Actual Use of Proceeds

(Including the Reserved Amount)

as at 31 December 2021
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ek EANFENE
WTEHE AR R
Expected Timeline
for Use of Remaining
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Approximately
10% of the total
net proceeds or
HKD78,674,417
will be used for
further developing
a one-stop service
platform; and

AHFTEREFENL.4%534,799,503 B L E AR E—FEE — U
REFA - BEWT :

i FARREEENL1.1%%8,546,055 B LE AR~ HARB T
B-[HERNHEENIATES+NEINERRE

ii. FSHUBEREMN.2%89,671,3198 LD AR EM — &L Z%
i, FISZUBEREMA0.1%8,930,366 B TR AN ET RIS RS
iv. FIBZUBFEMA0.3%8(2,733,6448 B BRREHRLIER

v. FTBHIETFEMA0.2%1,784,346 B TE AR 2 B ELET
=:ERN
AR

vi. FIBEUEREML.4%511,133, 7738 E AR ERFAER -

ERRRERRTERARIEEARE o
Approximately 4.4% of the total net proceeds or HKD34,799,503 was
used for further developing a one-stop service platform, as follows:

Approximately 1.1% of the net proceeds or HKD8,546,055
was used for the development of the one-stop service platform
“Neighborhood Services (#2#)" and the application
development of “artificial intelligence + property”;

ii. Approximately 1.2% of the net proceeds or HKD9,671,319 was
used for the business and finance integration system;

jii. Approximately 0.1% of the net proceeds or HKD930,366 was
used for the property owner service system;

iv. Approximately 0.3% of the net proceeds or HKD2,733,644 was
used for the billing center project;

v.  Approximately 0.2% of the net proceeds or HKD1,784,346 was
used for the full-cycle operation monitoring platform project; and

vi. Approximately 1.4% of the net proceeds or HKD11,133,773 was
used for the e-commerce platform project.

There was no material deviation for the actual usages from the
original intended uses.

FBKREBMAG
B FEL5.6%
43,874 9148 T
BRRRTERR

Approximately
5.6% of the
remaining unutilized
net proceeds or
HKD43,874,914
will continue to be
used for the original
purpose.

R2022F12 3185
A

On or before 31
December 2022
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Actual Use of Proceeds

(Including the Reserved Amount)

as at 31 December 2021
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Intended Use Expected Timeline
of Remaining for Use of Remaining

Unutilized Proceeds  Unutilized Proceeds
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BLEREEEES
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d) Approximately Approximately 10% of the total net proceeds or HKD78,674,417 was  There are no Nil
10% of the total totally used for working capital and general corporate purposes. remaining unutilized
net proceeds or proceeds.

HKD78,674,417 will
be used for working
capital and general

corporate purposes.
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USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE PLACING
AND SUBSCRIPTION OF SHARES

On 7 July 2020, the Company entered into an agreement with Credit
Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited (the manager) and Asiaciti Enterprises Ltd.
(“Asiaciti Enterprises”) (the seller), pursuant to which the manager
conditionally agreed to place 77,000,000 existing ordinary shares of
the Company at the placing price of HKD10.22 per share to not less
than six (6) placees on a best effort basis, while Asiaciti Enterprises
conditionally agreed to subscribe for new shares, the number of which
is equal to the number of the placing shares placed by the manager,
at the issue price of HKD10.22 per new share (the “Issue Price”).
The Issue Price represented a discount of approximately 6.92% to the
closing price of HKD10.98 per share as quoted on the Stock Exchange
on the last trading day prior to the signing of the agreement. The
Directors considered that the placing and subscription provided a good
opportunity for the Company to raise additional funds to consolidate
its financial position and broaden the shareholder base and capital
base of the Group, thus promoting future development, and helping
increase the liquidity of shares. The Company completed the placing
of shares, and allotment and issuance of new shares under the
general mandate, on 9 July 2020 and 20 July 2020, respectively. The
total net proceeds raised by the Company after deducting all relevant
fees, costs and expenses to be borne or incurred by the Company are
approximately HKD779,596,946. The net price for the subscription,
after deduction of all relevant fees, costs and expenses to be borne or
incurred by the Company was approximately HKD10.12 per share.
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The net proceeds from the placing and subscription of shares are
and will be continuously used according to the plans disclosed in the
announcements dated 7 July 2020 and 20 July 2020 of the Company,
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Proposed Use
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which are set forth as follows:

R2021512 31 BFBREER AR (BIEERLH)

Actual Use of Proceeds
(Including the Reserved Amount)
as at 31 December 2021

Fepk A
WNArERERE AR
Intended Use

of Remaining
Unutilized
Proceeds

ARREANFERE
WRBERARER

Expected Timeline
for Use of Remaining
Unutilized Proceeds
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a) Approximately 90% of
the total net proceeds or
HKD701,637,251 will be used
for seeking potential strategic
investment and acquisition
opportunities; and

b) BEERIEEEN10%H
77,959,695 BT A {E AR E—
BEEES -

b) Approximately 10% of the total
net proceeds or HKD77,959,695
will be used for general working
capital of the Group.

B FTEHIAFREL54.5%5424,501,567 B TEARE
KEEBRRE MR - AT
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Approximately 54.5% of the total net proceeds or
HKD424,501,567 was used for seeking potential strategic
investment and acquisition opportunities, as follows:

i) Approximately 24.6% of the net proceeds or
RMB160,083,020 (equivalent to approximately
HKD192,003,575) was used for acquiring a 49%
equity interest in Chengdu Holytech; and

ii) Approximately 29.8% of the net proceeds or
RMB194,492,100 (equivalent to approximately
HKD232,497,992) was used for acquiring a 31%
equity interest in Chengdu Holytech.

There was no material deviation for the actual usages
from the original intended uses.

AHTEIUEFELN10%577,959,6958 T E 2 P AIER
SE-MEELS -

Approximately 10% of the total net proceeds or
HKD77,959,695 was totally used for general working
capital of the Group.

HKERNAMER
B FEE4I35.5% 3K

277,135,684 T8
BERERTAR -

Approximately
35.5% of the
remaining unutilized
net proceeds or
HKD277,135,684
will continue to be
used for the original
purpose.

RAENBAREROM

B5E -

There are no
remaining unutilized
proceeds.

20221283185
A

On or before 31
December 2022
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As at the date of this report, (i) the Company actively explores any
targets that are related to its core businesses and has not identified
any new investment or acquisition targets; (ii) the Company has
developed a general list of prospects, but no agreement has
been entered by the Group in respect of any such investments
or acquisitions; and (iii) the rest of the net proceeds from the
subscription will be continuously used according to the original
intended uses in 2022, subject to market conditions.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
Major Customers

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the transaction amount of the
Group's top five customers accounted for 23.5% of the total revenue
of the Group (2020: 27.9%), while the transaction amount of the
Group's single largest customer accounted for 21.7% of the total
revenue of the Group (2020: 24.6%).

Major Suppliers

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the transaction amount of
the Group’s top five suppliers accounted for 13.8% of the total
purchase of the Group (2020: 22.9%), while the transaction amount
of the Group’s single largest supplier accounted for 3.3% of the total
purchase of the Group (2020: 5.1%).

During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors or any of their
close associates or any Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the Directors, own more than 5% of the number of the issued
Shares of the Company) had any interest in the Group's five largest
customers or suppliers (other than Times China Group and its
associates).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 29 to consolidated
financial statements in this annual report.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has not held
any properties for investment purposes.
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BR ZE #2917 % EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

REZE2021F12A31BLFERN - XA R During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has not
REI NSRBI HE 0 o entered into or maintained any equity-linked agreements.

R RESERVES

KRR RANEBHZE2021F12A318 1HF Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
ENHEZEESHEEDERNGEE M BREW during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 39

AR FBIMNBEEFINENGREEEED to the consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated

* o statement of changes in equity on pages 141 to 142 respectively.

Ao E#EES DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

MA20215F12 8318 » KRG A 9 B As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s reserves available for

SHIRBHEHENTEMEXTE &8 distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the

A ANET1,329.88 & T (2020512 A Companies Act of the Cayman Islands, amounted to approximately

318 : AR#1,3998FET) ° RMB1,329.8 million (as at 31 December 2020: RMB1,399.8 million).

5= DIRECTORS

RAFHRAE - KAREZERWT - The Directors of the Company as at the date of this annual report
were:

HTESE Executive Directors:

EHL L Ms. Wang Meng

B EE Mr. Yao Xusheng

HgE+ Ms. Xie Rao

A2+ Ms. Zhou Rui

FHTES ! Non-executive Directors:

Bt L (FF) Mr. Bai Xihong (Chairman)

FoREAE Mr. Li Qiang

BIAIEHITES Independent Non-executive Directors:

BEBALE Mr. Lui Shing Ming, Brian

=HIKEL Dr. Wong Kong Tin

N FEL Dr. Chu Xiaoping

BIEAASTEMEIFE108E  #HigELt = In accordance with article 108 of the Articles of Association, Ms.

BEAREBRAEEBERERERREAFEAS Xie Rao, Mr. Li Qiang and Mr. Lui Shing Ming, Brian will retire by

MERT WHEERKRESBERETASE rotation and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election as the

= Directors at the forthcoming AGM.
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Circular containing details of the Directors to be re-elected at
the forthcoming AGM of the Company will be despatched to the
Shareholders in due course.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set
out on pages 27 to 35 in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed his
independence during the year ended 31 December 2021 pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considered all of the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS' TENURE AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of our executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from the
listing date, which may be terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either party on the other.

Each of our non-executive Directors and our independent
non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company for a term of three years commencing from the listing
date, which may be terminated by not less than three months’ notice
in writing served by either party on the other.

None of the Directors has a service contract with members of the
Group that is not terminable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No Director has a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company, any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party during the year ended 31 December 2021
and up to the date of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS

INTEREST IN COMPETING

The Directors of the Company confirm that they did not have any
interest in other business which competes or is likely to compete,
directly or indirectly, with our business, which would require
disclosure under Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance between the Group and the controlling
Shareholders of the Company or any of its subsidiaries has been made
during the year ended 31 December 2021, except the disclosed in the
section headed “Report of Directors — Connected Transactions and
Related Party Transactions”of this report.
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ULTIMATE CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'’
DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

The Company, Mr. Shum Chiu Hung and his spouse, Ms. Li Yiping
(the “Ultimate Controlling Shareholders”) have entered into the
deed of non-competition dated 5 December 2019 (the “Deed of
Non-Competition”). Each of our Ultimate Controlling Shareholders
has unconditionally and irrevocably undertaken to us in the Deed
of Non-Competition that he/she will not, and will procure his/her
close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules, excluding Times
China Group (an independent operating group due to the listing
status of Times China)) not to directly or indirectly be involved in
or undertake any business (other than our business) that directly or
indirectly competes, or may compete, with our business, being the
provision of property management services, value-added services,
community value-added services and other professional services
(collectively referred to as the “Restricted Businesses”), or hold
shares or interest in any companies or business that compete directly
or indirectly with the business engaged by our Group from time to
time, or conduct any Restricted Businesses, except where our Ultimate
Controlling Shareholders and their close associates hold less than 5%
of the total issued share capital of any company (whose shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange or any other stock exchange) (excluding
Times China Group) which is engaged in any business that is or
may be in competition with any business engaged by any member
of our Group and they do not possess the right to appoint 10% or
more of the directors of such company. For details of the Deed of
Non-Competition, please refer to the Company’s prospectus dated 9
December 2019.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
compliance of the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders with the Deed
of Non-Competition and consider that the Deed of Non-Competition
has been complied with during the year ended 31 December 2021.
Each of Ultimate Controlling Shareholders has provided the Company
with a confirmation regarding his/her compliance with the Deed of
Non-Competition.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2021.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” in this report, there is no change in information of the
Directors as of the date of this annual report required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS® AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests or short positions of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO")) required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which would
be required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which would be required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”), were as
follows:
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Approximate

Percentage of

Number of Shareholding in

Name of Director/Chief Executive Nature of Interest Shares the Company®

THL+ EmfAaA 200,000 0.02%
Ms. Wang Meng Beneficial owner

BB 5 A BEmfaA 200,000 0.02%
Mr. Yao Xusheng Beneficial owner

Bl G EmfaA 200,000 0.02%
Ms. Xie Rao Beneficial owner

Azt EmfAA 200,000 0.02%
Ms. Zhou Rui Beneficial owner

ST BEmfAaA 509,000 0.05%
Mr. Bai Xihong Beneficial owner

Il BHEm@ 20,021,484 2.03%

Interest of spouse®

BB LE EmfaA 200,000 0.02%
Mr. Lui Shing Ming, Brian Beneficial owner

=HIKREL BEmfEaA 200,000 0.02%

Dr. Wong Kong Tin

Beneficial owner

it -

(1) HM2021F12A31H " KRREBHITRGH A (1)

£1/5985,672,747 BRALD -

(2) 2021128318 AHREENE B (2)
EEELLTRN20,021,484 BB PP HEA
AR EEWE AR ZERL P HEAE

Bk BX

Notes:

Company was 985,672,747 Shares.

be interested in those Shares.
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As at 31 December 2021, the total number of issued Shares of the

As at 31 December 2021, Ms. Wan Zhi Ning, the spouse of Mr. Bai
Xihong is interested in 20,021,484 Shares. Mr. Bai Xihong is deemed to
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

hRERBEN
" HEEEEE 51 REEE R EE BOL®
Approximate
Name of Number of Percentage of
Name Associated Corporation Nature of Interest Shares Interest ("
B#HtELE R BIERERAF 43,074,000 2.17%
Mr. Bai Xihong Times China Holdings Limited Beneficial owner
2,017,000 0.10%
Interest of spouse®
Kzt Notes:
(1)  HM2021F12A8318  BRABERER (1) As at 31 December 2021, the total number of issued shares of Times
NAEIE BT 28 51,984,116,039 A% A% China Holdings Limited was 1,984,116,039 shares.
3']\ o
(2)  F2021F12A31H - BHEEENRBE (2) As at 31 December 2021, Ms. Wan Zhi Ning, the spouse of Mr. Bai

BELZ 412,017,000 K P EERER
DRI P HEAERZ - AHLEERE AR
ZERD B ER
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R

BRARFERMBEEEI ARTIHEMBR
ARNE E2021F12A31B L FEMERL
AT BEESAEEEARTHEM
HEMEAEERDSEREMER - BXE
EERFECMEBERISHEU TN T LER
FAEMAEF ARE AR B S H A E AR
AR ERES BT EEMZSE

F o

Xihong is interested in 2,017,000 shares of Times China Holdings
Limited. Mr. Bai Xihong is deemed to be interested in those shares.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR

DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, during the year ended 31
December 2021, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries was a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of the Company
or any other body corporate, and none of the Directors or their
spouses or children under the age of 18 was granted any right to
subscribe for the equity or debt securities of the Company or any
other body corporate nor had exercised any such rights.
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FTERERKRSDNEHEEBER  SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
PR ERNEARE AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

N2
X

R2021F12A318  MESFAFTA - TH A As at 31 December 2021, to the best of the Directors’ knowledge,
T (WHEESHAQNTZSTHALR) B the following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the
EAERHEEMEIBIEETAATEFEEDN Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
2 ER BT EC 4 AR 19 Sk AR BARR 10 R A AR B Shares which fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
EA LT RFIEXVIELE 2 R EIDIBEIET of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register

HARANBEENRESS AR required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO:
1B D B IR
REEB EEtE RIDEE HWEDEO

Approximate
Percentage of
Number of Shareholding in

Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest Shares the Company”
FREEBRAF(ER]) EmEaA 468,250,769 47.51%
Best Source Ventures Limited

("Best Source”) Beneficial owner
HEAIRERAT([BE]) L E S 468,250,769 47.51%
Super Reach Ventures Limited

("Super Reach”) Interested in controlled corporation
FEEREBRARAO([EERE] R EE 468,250,769 47.51%
Renowned Brand Investments Limited®

(“"Renowned Brand”) Interested in controlled corporation
RHEEERAR (R @ s E R 468,250,769 47.51%
East Profit Management Limited

("East Profit”)® Interested in controlled corporation
ZeERE (L] RELE S 468,250,769 47.51%
Mr. Shum Chiu Hung (“Mr. Shum”)@ Interested in controlled corporation
F—Ft® R L E 468,250,769 47.51%
Ms. Li Yiping® Interested in controlled corporation
Sumitomo Mitsui Financial Group, Inc. ¥ AEREZS 59,141,000 6.00%

Interested in controlled corporation

Pt 5% - Notes:

1. M20215F12A318 - ARARIEEHITRH 4 1. At 31 December 2021, the total number of issued Shares of the
#5985,672, 747 %15 ° Company was 985,672,747 shares.

2. SRABEXEREE MBERATERE 2. Best Source is wholly owned by Super Reach, and Super Reach is owned
(BZEELERE) LR (BFE ¥4t as to 60% by Renowned Brand, which is wholly owned by Mr. Shum;
2EMAE) DRl HEBE60%KRA0%H) AR HE and as to 40% by East Profit, which is wholly owned by Ms. Li Yiping.
RIBBSH RAE G - B F2RE R By virtue of the SFO, Super Reach, Renowned Brand, East Profit, Mr.
- BEERF-FLTHERNERTFE Shum and Ms. Li Yiping are deemed to be interested in Shares held by
IR R s o Best Source.
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Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2021, the Directors are
not aware of any other persons (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) who had an interests or short positions
in the Share or underlying Share as recorded in the register of the
Company to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Articles of Association, Directors, managing directors,
alternate Directors, secretary and other officers of the Company and
the trustees (if any) acting in relation to any of the affairs of the
Company, and their respective executors or administrators, shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them, their or any of their executors
or administrators, shall or may incur or sustain by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty
or supposed duty in their respective offices or trusts.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale and redemption of any listed securities
of the Company by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands that would oblige
the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

LOANS AND GUARANTEES

The Group did not make loans and guarantees to senior management,
Directors, controlling shareholders or their respective connected
persons of the Company, directly or indirectly, during the year ended
31 December 2021.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS

2021 AGREEMENT

On 4 December 2020, the Company and Times China entered into the
2021 Agreement (“2021 Agreement”) on the provision of services by
the Group to Times China Group and its associated companies for the
year ended 31 December 2021. The Group agreed to provide property
management and related services (including property management
and related services, equipment sales, installation and maintenance
services) for Time China Group and its associated companies.

The 2021 Agreement, the transactions contemplated thereunder
and the annual cap were approved by independent Shareholders by
way of an ordinary resolution at the extraordinary general meeting
held by the Company on 22 December 2020, of which the 2021
Agreement became effective from the date of approval, and is valid
from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021. In accordance with the
2021 Agreement, the annual cap on the costs to be paid by Time
China Group and its associated companies during the year ended 31
December 2021 will not exceed RMB830.0 million.

Times China is a connected person of the Company for the purpose
of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, pursuant to Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules, the transactions under the 2021 Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions for the Company.

Since all of the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules
in respect of the annual caps under the 2021 Agreement were
more than 5% on an annual basis, the transactions under the
2021 Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions for
the Company which are subject to the reporting, annual review,
announcement, circular and independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The fees will be determined after arm’s length negotiations with
reference to (i) the prevailing market price (taking into account the
location and the conditions of the property, the scope of the services
and the anticipated operation costs including but not limited to labor
costs, administration costs and costs of materials) charged by the
Group for providing similar services to independent third parties; and
(i) the guidance price of the services for a similar type of development
projects issued by the local government (if applicable). The fees shall
not be higher than the standard fees approved by the state pricing
regulatory authorities (if applicable) and not lower than the fees
charged by the Group to independent third parties in any event.
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Details have been disclosed in the announcement and circular of
the Company dated 4 December 2020 and 7 December 2020,
respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the transaction amount
payable by Times China to the Group under the 2021 Agreement was
RMB720.3 million, and the transaction amount did not exceed the
proposed annual cap of RMB830.0 million.

CCT AGREEMENT

On 16 November 2021, the Company entered into the continuing
connected transaction agreement (the “CCT Agreement”) with Times
China in relation to the provision of services by the Group to Times
China Group and its associated companies, for a term from 1 January
2022 to 31 December 2024. The Group agreed to provide property
management and related services for Time China Group and its
associated companies.

The CCT Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder
(including the proposed annual cap) were approved by independent
Shareholders by way of an ordinary resolution at the extraordinary
general meeting held by the Company on 9 December 2021, of which
the CCT Agreement became effective from the date of approval, and
was valid from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2024.

In accordance with the CCT Agreement, the annual caps on the
costs payable by Time China Group and its associated companies
for the three years ending 31 December 2024 will not exceed
RMB1,220,000,000, RMB1,680,000,000 and RMB2,150,000,000
respectively.

Times China is a connected person of the Company for the purpose
of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, pursuant to Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules, the transactions under the CCT Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions for the Company. As all of the
applicable percentage ratios (excluding the profits ratio) in respect
of the annual cap for transactions contemplated under the CCT
Agreement exceed 5%, the transactions under the CCT Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions for the Company, which
are subject to the reporting, annual review, announcement, circular
and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

BRBBIERERAT /2021 £ 79



EEgHS
REPORT OF DIRECTORS

HEERAESE(AKBERBILE =TRM
BOURBATRENRITHE (KEBWED
MERGE REBEREHESERAE (B
FBETRRATIRA - EEKA R
) ¢ K(i)E B P B AR AR AL B 35 0R
BEARRY <EEIER (WER) 8RF
HEEREE - RMEMBERT BATESR
HZEBEERFIENTREER (MEA)
ATBEREEBABILE=TTHEBMOHE
A -

BRAFBEERERARAR BEHS R A20214F
1MB168 K2021F 11 A22H A S K@K
pq °

MARBTRET2021F12A31B IEEE AT
EITNHBERERIME  ARFIEETE
MRAFLAZERIFERT ©

HE20215F 128318 L EE - B IERTT
BECDEXIIBERERS @ WHERZS
THE -

() HEAREZ-REABEBRIL

(i) WER—BRERGERREERFET
K&

(i) REBEAFBIXZOMHRET  HER2F
BE - UNTABIRAEBENE

The fees will be determined after arm’s length negotiations with
reference to (i) the prevailing market price (taking into account the
location and the conditions of the property, the scope of the services
and the anticipated operation costs including but not limited to labor
costs, administration costs and costs of materials) charged by the
Group for providing similar services to independent third parties; and
(i) the guidance price of the services for a similar type of development
projects issued by the local government (if applicable). The fees shall
not be higher than the standard fees approved by the state pricing
regulatory authorities (if applicable) and not lower than the fees
charged by the Group to independent third parties in any event.

The details were disclosed in the announcement and circular of
the Company dated 16 November 2021 and 22 November 2021,
respectively.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect to the continuing
connected transactions entered into by the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the independent
non-executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing
connected transactions and confirmed that these transactions have
been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of the business of the Group;
(i)  on normal or better commercial terms; and
(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements on terms of which

are fair and reasonable and in the interest of the Shareholders
as a whole.
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Ernst & Young, the Company’s independent auditor, was engaged
to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised) Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information and with reference to Practice Note
740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Ernst & Young has issued an unqualified
letter containing the findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed below by the Group in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules and confirming that
nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe the
continuing connected transactions disclosed in this report:

(i) have not been approved by the Board;

(i) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group if the transactions involve the provision of
goods or services by the Group;

(iii) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreement governing the transactions; and

(iv) have exceeded the relevant annual caps.

A copy of the independent auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

THE CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS

To enable the Group to tap into the types of value-added
telecommunications businesses which Hainan Qi Lin is permitted to
carry out under the business license (the “Qualified Business”)
in the PRC which is currently subject to foreign investment
restrictions, on 20 December 2021, Guangzhou Times Linlibang
Network Technology Co., Ltd. (BN R EHPEEHTER AR
(“Guangzhou Times Linlibang”), Hainan Qi Lin and Mr. Cen Qixiong
and Ms. Mei Huimin, the registered shareholders of Hainan Qi Lin (the
"Registered Shareholders”), entered into the Exclusive Technology
Consulting and Service Provision Agreement, the Exclusive Option
Agreement, the Power of Attorney, and the Equity Pledge Agreement
(collectively, the “"VIE Agreements”). Despite the restrictions under
the relevant provisions and guidelines, the arrangements under the
VIE Agreements (the “Contractual Arrangements”) would enable
the Company to gain effective control over the finance, operations
and enjoy the entire economic interests and benefits of Hainan Qi Lin.
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Provision Agreement

On 20 December 2021, Guangzhou Times Linlibang and Hainan
Qi Lin entered into the Exclusive Technology Consulting and
Service Provision Agreement, pursuant to which Guangzhou
Times Linlibang shall, within the service period stipulated in
the agreement, agree to provide exclusive business, technical,
and consulting support services to Hainan Qi Lin. Such services
include assisting in research & development, formulating
technology system designs for Hainan Qi Lin's operations,
monitoring and maintenance of networks, purchasing of
software and hardware equipment, providing training and
support to employees, providing technology consultation
services, providing labour support and conducting risk analysis
of Hainan Qi Lin’s shareholders (the “Technological Services”).

Pursuant to the Exclusive Technology Consulting and Service
Provision Agreement, Guangzhou Times Linlibang agrees to
provide the Technological Services to Hainan Qi Lin and Hainan
Qi Lin agrees to appoint Guangzhou Times Linlibang as its
exclusive service provider for the Technological Services. During
the term of the Exclusive Technology Consulting and Service
Provision Agreement, Hainan Qi Lin undertook not to accept the
same or any similar services provided by any third party, unless
prior consent is obtained from Guangzhou Times Linlibang.

The Exclusive Technology Consulting and Service Provision
Agreement also provides that Guangzhou Times Linlibang has
the exclusive proprietary rights to and interests in any and all
intellectual property rights developed or created by Guangzhou
Times Linlibang or Hainan Qi Lin. Hainan Qi Lin shall sign all
documents required to make Guangzhou Times Linlibang the
owner of such exclusive proprietary rights to and interests in any
and all intellectual property rights.

Further, Guangzhou Times Linlibang has the right to appoint
any of its affiliates to provide the Technological Services without
obtaining consent or confirmation from Hainan Qi Lin.
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Service fees

Pursuant to the Exclusive Technology Consulting and Service
Provision Agreement, Hainan Qi Lin shall pay services fees to
Guangzhou Times Linlibang for the Technological Services
provided. Guangzhou Times Linlibang has the absolute right to
determine the amount and payment method of the service fees.

The service fees payable for the Technological Services is
calculated based on Hainan Qi Lin's income and corresponding
operating costs, sales, management and other costs and can be
charged based on the following methods:

1. certain proportion of Hainan Qi Lin’s income;

2. the fixed fees of the projects completed by Hainan Qi Lin;

3. fixed license fees (if applicable) for specific trademarks,
software and patents; and/or

4.  such other method as determined by Guangzhou Times
Linlibang from time to time according to the nature of the
services provided.

Guangzhou Times Linlibang shall issue a notice specifying the
service fees payable, such amount stated on the notice shall
be indicative of the service fees payable by Hainan Qi Lin. The
service fees payable has been determined by factors including
the technical difficulty and complexity of the Technological
Services provided; the working hours spent by employees of
Guangzhou Times Linlibang; and the content and commercial
value of the services, softwares and/or consultation services
provided.

Guangzhou Times Linlibang has the absolute right to adjust
the services fees charged during the term of the Exclusive
Technology Consulting and Service Provision Agreement, without
obtaining Hainan Qi Lin’s consent.

Pursuant to the Exclusive Technology Consulting and Service
Provision Agreement, Guangzhou Times Linlibang may
provide financial support to Hainan Qi Lin to ensure cash flow
requirements of Hainan Qi Lin's business operations are satisfied
or to offset the accumulated losses in any business operations.
Such financial support shall not be limited to bank entrustments
by Guangzhou Times Linlibang or through other designated
parties permitted under relevant laws and regulations.
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The Exclusive Technology Consulting and Service Provision
Agreement shall become effective upon signing by both
parties, and shall remain effective for a term of ten (10)
years. The agreement will be automatically renewed unless
Guangzhou Times Linlibang objects to such renewal. Pursuant
to the agreement, Guangzhou Times Linlibang has the right to
terminate the agreement at any time by sending written notice
to Hainan Qi Lin thirty (30) days in advance.

The rights and obligations of Hainan Qi Lin shall not be
transferrable to any third parties pursuant to the Exclusive
Technology Consulting and Service Provision Agreement, unless
prior written consent of Guangzhou Times Linlibang is obtained.
If Guangzhou Times Linlibang chooses to transfer its rights and
obligations to third parties, consent from Hainan Qi Lin is not
required; and Hainan Qi Lin, under the request of Guangzhou
Times Linlibang, shall be obliged to sign any supplementary
agreements or agreements which is substantially in the same
form as the Exclusive Technology Consulting and Service
Provision Agreement.

Exclusive Option Agreement

On 20 December 2021, Guangzhou Times Linlibang, Hainan
Qi Lin and the Registered Shareholders entered into the
Exclusive Option Agreement, pursuant to which the Registered
Shareholders and Hainan Qi Lin shall agree to irrevocably
and unconditionally grant an exclusive option to Guangzhou
Times Linlibang which entitles Guangzhou Times Linlibang to
unconditionally elect, at its discretion, and to purchase at any
time, all or any part of the (i) equity interest and (ii) assets of
Hainan Qi Lin by itself or through its designated person(s), for
one or more times, when permitted by the then applicable PRC
laws, within a specific period as stipulated under the Exclusive
Option Agreement.

The Registered Shareholders shall execute the relevant equity
transfer agreements or asset transfer agreements, stipulating
the agreed consideration, in a form specified under the Exclusive
Option Agreement. The Exclusive Option Agreement is effective
for a period of ten (10) years, and is automatically renewed
in ten (10)-year intervals, unless Guangzhou Times Linlibang
objects to such renewal.
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Exclusive option right

Subject to the compliance with PRC laws, Guangzhou Times
Linlibang may issue a written notice specifying the share of
equity interests, or list of assets in Hainan Qi Lin it intends to
purchase from the Registered Shareholders. Within seven (7)
working days from receiving the written notice, the Registered
Shareholders shall execute the equity or asset transfer
agreements in the form specified under the Exclusive Option
Agreement or any other forms as agreed between parties. The
Registered Shareholders shall undertake to complete promptly
any necessary actions for the respective ownership transfer
procedures.

Purchase price

Unless the PRC laws applicable to Guangzhou Times Linlibang’s
exercise of the exclusive option requires an evaluation, audit or
other restrictive provisions on the transfer price of the purchased
equity interest or assets, the parties agree that the equity
purchase price shall be the lowest price as permitted under the
applicable PRC laws.

Under the Exclusive Option Agreement, the Registered
Shareholders and Hainan Qi Lin have jointly and severally
undertaken, among others that:

(i)  without prior written consent of Guangzhou Times
Linlibang, Hainan Qi Lin shall not supplement, change or
amend its constitutional documents in any forms, increase
or decrease its registered share capital, or otherwise
change its capital structure;

(i) Hainan Qi Lin's form of business is to be maintained and its
business affairs is to be conducted prudently and efficiently
in accordance with good financial and commercial
standards and practices;

(iii) without prior written consent of Guangzhou Times
Linlibang, Hainan Qi Lin shall not engage in any acts or
omission that may adversely affect the assets, business
and liabilities of Hainan Qi Lin, and shall not sell, transfer,
mortgage or dispose of any assets, business or income of
Hainan Qi Lin at any time from the date of the execution
of the Exclusive Option Agreement or to permit any
creation of encumbrance over any security interests;
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(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

no debt is incurred, inherited, warranted or allowed
without the prior written consent of Guangzhou Times
Linlibang except when (i) debt is incurred in the normal or
ordinary course of business other than by borrowing; and
(ii) such liabilities have been disclosed and approved by
Guangzhou Times Linlibang;

businesses are conducted in the ordinary course of business
at all times to preserve the value of assets of Hainan Qi Lin
and refrain from any acts and/or omissions detrimental to
its business condition and the value of its assets;

without the consent of Guangzhou Times Linlibang, no
major contracts (for the purposes of this paragraph, a
contract whose value exceeds RMB50,000 shall be deemed
a major contract) shall be entered into, except for contracts
entered into in the ordinary course of business;

no loans or guarantees be provided to anyone without
Guangzhou Times Linlibang’s prior written consent;

all information in relation to Hainan Qi Lin's operations and
financial position be provided upon request of Guangzhou
Times Linlibang;

Hainan Qi Lin purchases and holds insurance from an
insurance company accepted by Guangzhou Times
Linlibang, and the amount, type and level of insurance
maintained shall be the same or similar to those normally
insured by companies that operates similar business or
owns similar properties or assets in the same area as
Guangzhou Times Linlibang;

without prior written consent of Guangzhou Times
Linlibang, it shall not merge or be associated with any
person, be acquired by any person, acquire any person or
invest in any person;

Guangzhou Times Linlibang be immediately notified of
the occurrence or possibility of litigation, arbitration or
administrative proceedings related to Hainan Qi Lin's
assets, business and income;
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(xii) all necessary or appropriate documents be executed, all
necessary or appropriate actions be taken, all necessary
or appropriate claims be filed, and all necessary claims be
defended to maintain Hainan Qi Lin's ownership of all of
its assets;

(xiii) no dividend shall be paid to Hainan Qi Lin's shareholders in
any form without the prior written consent of Guangzhou
Times Linlibang, and that all distributable profits shall
be distributed to the shareholders of Hainan Qi Lin
immediately upon request of Guangzhou Times Linlibang;
and

(xiv) Hainan Qi Lin shall not be dissolved or liquidated without
Guangzhou Times Linlibang’s written consent, unless
compelled by PRC laws.

The Registered Shareholders have also undertaken, among
others, that:

(i)  without prior written consent of Guangzhou Times
Linlibang, the Registered Shareholders shall not sell,
transfer, mortgage or otherwise dispose of any legal or
beneficial rights in the equity interest of Hainan Qi Lin, or
permit creation of encumbrance over any security interest,
except for pledges created over such equity interests by
the Registered Shareholders under the Exclusive Option
Agreement;

(i) they shall prompt Hainan Qi Lin's board of directors not
to approve any sale, transfer, pledge or otherwise dispose
of any legal or beneficial rights in any equity interest, or
to allow the creation of any encumbrance over security
interests without the prior written consent of Guangzhou
Times Linlibang, except to those made to Guangzhou
Times Linlibang or its designated persons; and to cause
Hainan Qi Lin's shareholders to vote in favour of the
transfer of the purchased equity pursuant to the Exclusive
Option Agreement;
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(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

without the prior written consent of Guangzhou Times
Linlibang, the Registered Shareholders shall not vote
for, endorse or sign any resolutions in Hainan Qi Lin's
shareholders’ meeting to approve any merger or union
with any person; acquisition by any person, acquisition of
any person or investment in any person;

Guangzhou Times Linlibang be promptly notified of any
litigation, arbitration or administrative proceedings that
have occurred or may occur in connection with its equity
interest in Hainan Qi Lin;

all necessary or appropriate documents be executed, all
actions be taken, all claims be filed and defended in order
to maintain its ownership of equity interest in Hainan Qi
Lin;

without the prior written consent of Guangzhou Times
Linlibang, it shall not perform any acts and/or omission
that may have any material impact on the assets, business
and liabilities of Hainan Qi Lin;

at the request of Guangzhou Times Linlibang, they shall
appoint persons designated by Guangzhou Times Linlibang
as the directors and general managers of Hainan Qi Lin as
senior management personnel, and shall actively assist in
handling all matters concerning the appointment of such
personnel, including but not limited to signing necessary
documents and assisting in registering the appointment
of such personnel with the relevant market regulatory
departments;
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(viii) under the permittable premises of PRC laws, at any time as
requested by Guangzhou Times Linlibang, the Registered
Shareholders shall unconditionally and immediately transfer
all or part of the equity interest owned by them in Hainan
Qi Lin to Guangzhou Times Linlibang or its designated
persons; they shall give up any pre-emption right of the
other Shareholders of the Company made in favour of
Guangzhou Times Linlibang or its designated persons, and
shall actively assist in handling all matters related to the
transfer, including but not limited to, signing necessary
documents and assisting in registering the equity transfer
with the relevant market supervision and regulation
departments;

(ix) they shall strictly abide by the provisions of the Exclusive
Option Agreement and other contracts entered into jointly
or separately with Hainan Qi Lin or Guangzhou Times
Linlibang, to perform all obligations under the Exclusive
Option Agreement in good faith, and refrain from any
acts and/or omission that would affect the validity and
enforceability of the Exclusive Option Agreement; and

(x)  they shall agree and warrant the execution of an
irrevocable power of attorney authorizing Guangzhou
Times Linlibang or its designated persons to exercise all of
its rights as a shareholder of Hainan Qi Lin.

The Exclusive Option Agreement shall remain effective for a
period of 10 (ten) years and shall be renewed automatically,
unless Guangzhou Times Linlibang notifies Hainan Qi Lin and
the Registered Shareholders of its intention not to renew it.
Hainan Qi Lin and the Registered Shareholders have no right to
terminate the Exclusive Option Agreement.
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On 20 December 2021, the Registered Shareholders executed
a power of attorney, pursuant to which each of the Registered
Shareholders shall agree to irrevocably appoint Guangzhou Times
Linlibang or its designated person(s) as its attorney-in-fact to act
for all matters pertaining to Hainan Qi Lin and to exercise all of
their rights as shareholders of Hainan Qi Lin under applicable
laws and regulations and the articles of association of Hainan Qi
Lin, under the premise of compliance with PRC law.

The Registered Shareholders has granted Guangzhou Times
Linlibang or its designated person the power to exercise all
rights of Hainan Qi Lin’s shareholders, including but not limited
to:

(i)  convene and attend shareholders’ meetings of Hainan Qi
Lin;

(i)  exercise all shareholders’ rights and shareholder’s voting
rights in accordance with law and the constitutional
documents of Hainan Qi Lin, including but not limited to
the sale, transfer, pledge or disposal of any or all of the
equity interests in Hainan Qi Lin;

(iii) execute any and all written resolutions and meeting
minutes in the name and on behalf of such shareholder;

(iv) file documents with the relevant companies registry; and

(v)  nominate or appoint the legal representatives, directors,
supervisors, general manager and other senior management
of Hainan Qi Lin.

The Registered Shareholders have further agreed and
authorised Guangzhou Times Linlibang and its designated
persons, including but not limited to, exercising shareholders’
rights in full discretion without obtaining any oral or written
instructions from the Registered Shareholders, and to appoint
one or more replacement candidates to exercise any or all
of the rights entrusted under the Power of Attorney. The
Registered Shareholders have also undertaken that any increase
in shareholding of Hainan Qi Lin by way of equity transfer or
increase in share capital, or any acquisition of Hainan Qi Lin's
equity interest by any persons, will be subjected to the power
of attorney dated 20 December 2021 granted by the Registered
Shareholders in favour of Guangzhou Times Linlibang (the
“Power of Attorney”).
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(4)

Guangzhou Times Linlibang and its designated persons may at
any time require the Registered Shareholders to re-sign another
power of attorney in substantially the same form, and shall be
entitled to exercise all of their rights as shareholders of Hainan
Qi Lin.

The Power of Attorney shall remain effective from the date of
signing, and will continue to be effective so long as Hainan
Qi Lin is in existence. The Registered Shareholders shall not
terminate or modify the Power of Attorney without prior
written consent from Guangzhou Times Linlibang. The Power
of Attorney is binding upon the successors and assignees of the
authorised person.

Equity Pledge Agreement

On 20 December 2021, Guangzhou Times Linlibang, Hainan
Qi Lin and the Registered Shareholders entered into the Equity
Pledge Agreement, pursuant to which each of the Registered
Shareholders agreed to pledge all of his/her respective equity
interests in Hainan Qi Lin to Guangzhou Times Linlibang to
secure the due performance of obligations of Hainan Qi Lin and
the Registered Shareholders under the VIE Agreements.

Unless with prior consent from Guangzhou Times Linlibang, the
Registered Shareholder has no right to gift or transfer its rights
and obligations under the Equity Pledge Agreement. Guangzhou
Times Linlibang may assign all or any of its rights and obligations
pursuant to the Equity Pledge Agreement, its designated
assignee shall assume all rights and obligations enjoyed by
Guangzhou Times Linlibang under the agreement.

The rights under the Equity Pledge Agreement shall be
effective from the date of registration with the relevant market
supervision and management department. The Equity Pledge
Agreement is valid is two (2) years from the date of signing until
all obligations pursuant to Equity Pledge Agreement have been
fulfilled.
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SPOUSE’S UNDERTAKING

On 20 December 2021, the Registered Shareholders, each in their
own capacity, executed a spouse’s undertaking pursuant to which
each of them irrevocably undertakes, among other things, that:

(iii)

(iv)

he/she is fully aware and is familiar with the Contractual
Arrangements;

he/she unconditionally and irrevocably agrees that the equity
interest subjected to under the VIE Agreements, shall and can be
pledged, sold or dealt with in accordance with the transactions
under the VIE Agreements and shall not require consent from
the other Registered Shareholder;

regardless of any termination of marriage, he/she shall
recognize, agree and abide by the transactions under the VIE
Agreements, and shall assume the responsibility of performing
the obligations required of the other Registered Shareholder
under the VIE Agreements;

he/she can sign any documents to modify or change the VIE
Agreements without the signature, confirmation, consent or
affirmation of the other Registered Shareholder; and

unconditionally and irrevocably agree that if the other Registered
Shareholder obtains all or part of the underlying equity interest
held by him/her, the other Registered Shareholder shall be
bound by the obligations under the VIE Agreements, and to
sign other contracts in the form substantially similar to the VIE
Agreements.
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Save as disclosed above, there were no any other new Contractual
Arrangements entered into and/or renewed between the Group and
Hainan Qi Lin during the year ended 31 December 2021. During the
year ended 31 December 2021, there were no material changes in the
Contractual Arrangements and/or their adoption.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, no Contractual Arrangements
had been released as the restrictions leading to the adoption of the
Contractual Arrangements had not been removed. As of 31 December
2021, we did not encountered interference or encumbrance from
any PRC government authorities in operating our businesses through
Hainan Qi Lin under the Contractual Arrangements.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the revenue of Hainan Qi
Lin was nil.

REASONS FOR ENTERING
ARRANGEMENTS

INTO THE CONTRACTUAL

The Qualified Business is currently subject to foreign investment
restrictions under the relevant provisions and guidelines, which do
not allow a foreign investor to own, whether directly or indirectly,
any company that engages in the Qualified Business in the PRC.
In compliance with the relevant provisions and guidelines, a
foreign-funded telecom enterprise which engages in the Qualified
Business would need to satisfy that: (i) the ultimate proportion of
contribution of its foreign investors shall not be more than 50%;
and (ii) its major foreign investor shall have good performances and
operation experiences in managing value-added telecommunications
businesses.

In light of the relevant provisions and guidelines currently in force
and taking into account the shareholding structure of the Company,
the Group could not engage in the Qualified Business through a
sino-foreign equity joint venture or direct acquisition of the equity
interest of Hainan Qi Lin. In order for the Group to tap into the
Qualified Business which has great growth potential and would
thereby deepen the Group’s reach to those business segments,
diversify the revenue stream and further enhance customers’
satisfaction of the Group's property management services and value-
added services, whilst complying with the relevant provisions and
guidelines and obtaining the entire economic benefits attributable to
Hainan Qi Lin, the Group proposes to, through the VIE Agreements,
enter into the Contractual Arrangements to qualify for engagement
in the Qualified Business in the PRC. The Group is not required to pay
any consideration for the indirect acquisition of Hainan Qi Lin through
the adoption of the VIE Agreements.
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RISK FACTORS RELATING TO THE CONTRACTUAL
ARRANGEMENTS

Certain risks relating to the Contractual Arrangements include:

a)

The Group may bear economic risk which may arise from
difficulties in the operation of Hainan Qi Lin;

Interference or encumbrance in the PRC;

Guangzhou Times Linlibang's exercise of the option to acquire
the entire equity interests in Hainan Qi Lin may be subject to
various limitations and substantial costs;

There is no assurance that the Contractual Arrangements would
comply with future changes in the regulatory requirements
in the PRC and the PRC government may determine that the
Contractual Arrangements do not comply with applicable
regulations;

The VIE Agreements may not be as effective in providing control
over and entitlement to the economic benefits in Hainan Qi Lin
as compared to direct ownership;

The Registered Shareholders may have potential conflict of
interest with the Group;

The VIE Agreements may be subject to the scrutiny of the tax
authorities and additional tax maybe imposed;

The Group does not have any insurance which covers the risks
relating to the VIE Agreements.

For details of these risks, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 20 December 2021.

The Group has taken the following measures to ensure the effective
operation of the Group's business after the implementation of the
Contractual Arrangements and our compliance with the Contractual
Arrangements, including:

(i)

The seals, chops, incorporation documents of Hainan Qi Lin are
kept by the Group, and any employee of Hainan Qi Lin who
wishes to use such items will have to obtain internal approval
from the Group (as the case may be);
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(i)  Hainan Qi Lin will report regularly, which will be no less
frequently than on a quarterly basis, to the senior management
of the Company in relation to compliance and performance
conditions under the Contractual Arrangements and
other related matters; and any major issues arising from
implementation of the Contractual Arrangements will be
regularly reviewed, at least on a quarterly basis, by the Board;

(iii) The Board will consult the PRC legal advisor from time to
time to check if there are any legal developments in the PRC
affecting the Contractual Arrangements, and should immediately
report to the Board so as to allow the Board to determine if any
modification or amendment are required to be made; and

(iv) The Company's independent non-executive Directors will review
the compliance of the Contractual Arrangements on an annual
basis and their confirmation will be disclosed in the Company's
annual report.

LISTING RULES IMPLICATION AND THE WAIVER GRANTED
BY THE STOCK EXCHANGE

Upon signing of the VIE Agreements, the Company will acquire
100% equity interest of Hainan Qi Lin at a nil consideration. Given
all the applicable percentage ratios in respect of entering into the
Contractual Arrangements are less than 0.1%, entering into the
Contractual Arrangements does not constitute a notifiable transaction
of the Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules and is fully
exempt from Shareholders’ approval, annual review and all disclosure
requirements under Rule 14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules.

Hainan Qi Lin is held as to 50% by Mr. Cen Qixiong and 50% by
Ms. Mei Huimin. As at the signing date of the VIE Agreements,
Mr. Cen Qixiong is a brother of Mr. Shum Chiu Hung, who is a
controlling Shareholder of the Company, and is therefore an associate
of a connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. Therefore, the Contractual Arrangements between the
Registered Shareholders of Hainan Qi Lin and the Group constitutes
continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.
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The Company has made an application to the Stock Exchange for, and
the Stock Exchange has granted, a waiver (the “Waiver"”) subject to
the following conditions, for so long as the Shares of the Company
are listed on the Stock Exchange:

a. No change will be made without the approval of independent
non-executive Directors.

b.  No change will be made without the approval of the Company’s
independent Shareholders.

c.  Economic benefits flexibility.
d.  Ongoing reporting and approvals.
e.  Renewal and reproduction.

For further details of the Waiver granted by the Stock Exchange,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 20
December 2021.

ANNUAL REVIEW BY THE INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS AND THE AUDITOR

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
Contractual Arrangements and confirmed that:

(@) The transactions carried out during the year ended 31 December
2021 have been entered into in accordance with the relevant
provisions of the Contractual Arrangements, and have been
operated so that the gains generated by Hainan Qi Lin have
been substantially retained by the Group;

(b) No dividends or other distributions have been made by Hainan
Qi Lin to the holders of its equity interests which are not
otherwise subsequently assigned or transferred to the Group;

(c)  There are no any new contracts entered into, renewed and/or
reproduced between the Group and Hainan Qi Lin during the
year ended 31 December 2021; and
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(d) The Contractual Arrangements have been entered into in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group on normal
commercial terms, and have been fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Group and the Shareholders as a whole.

Auditor has confirmed in a letter to the Board that nothing has come
to their attention that causes them to believe that dividends or other
distributions have been made by Hainan Qi Lin to the holders of its
equity interests which are not otherwise subsequently assigned or
transferred to the Group.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into certain transactions with “related parties”
as defined under the applicable accounting standards, which
include transactions that constitute connected/continuing connected
transactions for which the requirements under the Listing Rules have
been complied with.

A summary of the related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2021 is contained in note
35 to consolidated financial statements in this report.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there were no connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions which are required
to be disclosed by the Company in the Reporting Period in accordance
with the provisions concerning the disclosure of connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company’s annual results
for the year ended 31 December 2021 and financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2021 prepared in accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability. The Company has
adopted Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code"”) and Corporate
Governance Report contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as
its own code of corporate governance.

The Company has been conducting its business according to the
principles of the CG Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
In the opinion of the Directors, save as disclosed in this annual report,
the Company has complied with all the code provisions as set out in
the CG Code during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Please refer to pages 101 to 125 of the corporate governance report
in this annual report for details.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that was publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to
date of this report.

TAX CONCESSION

The Directors are not aware of any tax concessions available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.
If the Shareholders are unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holdings, disposing of, dealing in, or the exercise of
any rights in relation to, the Shares, they are advised to consult tax
specialists.

For the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this
report, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the Group complied
with the laws and regulations in all material respects.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Ernst & Young has been appointed as the auditor to audit the
financial statements prepared in accordance with the International
Financial Reporting Standards for the year ended 31 December 2021.
Ernst & Young has audited the accompanying financial statements
prepared based on International Financial Reporting Standards.

Ernst & Young has been engaged since the date of preparation for the
listing of the Company. Ernst & Young will retire as the auditor of the
Company at the close of the forthcoming AGM and will be eligible for
re-election. A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM for
approval of Shareholders to re-elect Ernst & Young as the auditor of
the Company for the year ending 31 December 2022.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

As of the date of this annual report, there is no occurrence of events
that are material to the Group's business after the Reporting Period.

By Order of the Board

Mr. Bai Xihong
Chairman and Non-executive Director

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report as
set out in the annual report of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability. The Company has
adopted CG Code as its own code of corporate governance.

The Company has complied with all applicable code provisions under
the CG Code during the year ended 31 December 2021. The Company
will continue to review and monitor its corporate governance practices
to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of Directors and their corporate governance
duties include:

(@) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(c) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors;

(d) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and to make recommendations and report
to the Board,;

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report; and

(f)  to review and monitor the Company’'s compliance with the
Company'’s whistleblowing policy.
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THE BOARD'S RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group’s strategic decisions and monitors business and
performance. The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for day-to-day management and operation of the Group to the senior
management of the Group. To oversee particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs, the Board has established four Board committees
including the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the ESG Committee (collectively, the
"Board Committees”). The Board has delegated to the Board
Committees responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of
reference.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the interests
of the Company and the Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance in respect
of legal action against the Directors. The insurance coverage will be
reviewed on an annual basis.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company,
including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management systems,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant financial and operational matters. Directors could seek
independent professional advice in performing their duties at the
Company’s expense and are encouraged to access and to consult with
the Company’s senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the Group are
delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions and
responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board. Approval has
to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions
entered into by the management.
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RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
IN RESPECT OF

DIRECTORS'
FINANCIAL REPORTING
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2021 which give a true and fair view of the affairs of the Company
and the Group and of the Group’s results and cash flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which
are put to the Board for approval. The Company provides members
of the Board with periodical updates on the Company's performance,
positions and prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the auditor regarding their reporting responsibilities
on the consolidated financial statements of the Company is set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report on page 126 to page 136 of this
annual report.
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BOARD COMPOSITION

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises nine
Directors, consisting of four executive Directors, two non-executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. The
composition of the current Board of the Company is set out as
follows:

M Bz

Name Position

FHAL L WITES

Ms. Wang Meng executive Director

B EE WITES

Mr. Yao Xusheng executive Director

Eilfe3 WITES

Ms. Xie Rao executive Director

A&+ WITES

Ms. Zhou Rui executive Director

Btk L FRITES (FE)

Mr. Bai Xihong non-executive Director (chairman)
FeRSEs FMITES

Mr. Li Qiang non-executive Director

BERBALE BUIEMITES

Mr. Lui Shing Ming, Brian independent non-executive Director
EIAEL BUIEMITES

Dr. Wong Kong Tin independent non-executive Director
U BUIEMITES

Dr. Chu Xiaoping

independent non-executive Director
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The biographies of the Directors are set out under the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2021 up to the date of this
report, the Board at all times met the requirements of the Rules
3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive Directors, with at least
one independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company also complied with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of independent non-executive Directors
representing one-third of the Board. Each of the independent
non-executive Directors has confirmed his independence during the
year ended 31 December 2021 pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and the Company considers each of them to be independent.
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Save as disclosed in the biographies of the Directors as set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report, none of the Directors has any personal relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship) with
any other Directors or chief executive.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles of
chairman of the Board and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual.

The chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer ("CEO")
of the Company are currently two separate positions held by Mr. Bai
Xihong and Ms. Wang Meng respectively, with clear distinction in
responsibilities. The chairman of the Board is responsible for providing
strategic advice and guidance on the development of the Group,
while the CEO is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the
Group.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the requirement of the Articles of Association, the Board
shall have power from time to time and at any time to appoint any
person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional
Director but so that the number of Directors so appointed shall not
exceed the maximum number determined from time to time by the
Shareholders in general meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board
to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the first general
meeting of the Company after his appointment and be subject to
re-election at such meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board as
an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
annual general meeting and shall then be eligible for re-election. Any
Director appointed under this Article shall not be taken into account
in determining the Directors or the number of Directors who are to
retire by rotation at an annual general meeting.

No Director has entered into any service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition and
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
re-election of Directors and succession planning for Directors.
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COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT
REGARDING DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. After making
specific enquires to all the Directors, each of the Directors has
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company also adopted
the Model Code as its code of conduct regarding employees’ securities
transactions for the compliance by its relevant employees who are
likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information of the
Company in respect of their dealings in the Company’s securities.

TRAINING AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction
training and information to ensure that he or she has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as well
as his or her responsibilities under relevant statutes, laws, rules and
regulations. The Company will also arrange regular seminars to
provide Directors with updates on latest development and changes in
the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory requirements
from time to time. The Directors are also provided with regular
updates on the Company’s performance, position and prospects to
enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their
duties. To develop and refresh the knowledge and skills, all Directors
have participated in continuous professional development and
training.
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Based on the information provided

by the Directors, the training

record of each Director for the year ended 31 December 2021 is as

follows:

ESRERAMCABRERNEN

Briefings on the responsibility of

directors and other relevant topics

HITES

Executive Directors
FRE+

Ms. Wang Meng
kBT A&

Mr. Yao Xusheng
Eilc

Ms. Xie Rao
Atz +

Ms. Zhou Rui

FHITES
Non-executive Directors
BB E

Mr. Bai Xihong

TR LA

Mr. Li Qiang

BYEHITES

Independent non-executive Directors
BRRLE

Mr. Lui Shing Ming, Brian

=IAREL

Dr. Wong Kong Tin

N FEL

Dr. Chu Xiaoping
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BOARD MEETINGS

The Company has adopted the practice of holding Board meetings
regularly, at least four times a year, and at approximately quarterly
intervals. Notices of not less than fourteen days have been given for
regular Board meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity
to attend the regular meetings and discuss matters in the agenda
therein.

For other Board meetings, reasonable notices will be given by the
Company. For Board Committee meetings, notices of not less than
fourteen days will be given by the Company to all Directors for Board
Committee meetings. Notices of meetings, which include the agenda
and accompanying Board papers are dispatched to the Directors at
least three days before the Board and Board Committee meetings
to ensure that they have sufficient time to review the accompanying
documents and be adequately prepared for the meetings. When
Directors or Board Committee members are unable to attend a
meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be discussed and
given an opportunity to make their views known to the chairman
prior to the meeting. The company secretary shall keep the minutes
of meetings and provide copies of such minutes to all Directors for
reference and record purposes.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee meetings will
record in sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board and
the Board Committees and the decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board meeting
and Board Committee meeting are sent/will be sent to the Directors
for their consideration within a reasonable time after convening the
meetings. The minutes of the Board meetings are open for inspection
by all Directors.
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EEnR

Name of Director

BHERE W HERE
Attended/Eligible to attend

Tt

Ms. Wang Meng
RIBTH A

Mr. Yao Xusheng
Mgt

Ms. Xie Rao
A&+

Ms. Zhou Rui
B#&HstEE

Mr. Bai Xihong
g

Mr. Li Qiang
BEBALE

Mr. Lui Shing Ming, Brian
HIKREL

Dr. Wong Kong Tin
B

Dr. Chu Xiaoping

6/6

6/6

6/6

6/6

6/6

6/6

6/6

6/6

6/6

BABBEERERAR /2021 #8109



ﬁ%%/niﬁﬂ:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEZEY
BEEER

REZBEHHH=-FKEMAK - AIIEATT
BEAHAEE (XF)  ARMAIEZIER
TEFEBASLERRE N FHEL -

AREREZREENIEREWT ¢

1. EOEFROEEEHEE - ASK
MR (BIERRE  MBREHFE)
I AT A B A R A B 65 IE m i
EESELNEBIREEH

2. VERABARBERBAEETEENA
il ﬁﬁ%%?ﬁ%%ﬁ?‘ﬁ)\iﬁfi%%ﬁi

3. FMEEMIFRITERMEIML

4. HNEZZAFAEFZREULES (LH
EERLEREATE) BIFERES
gRbER R

5. BOUEZReMOEMER -

RAZBERHE KR REARRBET
BEMNHZBRRS HEREFHREA
FHEMEA - REZEEZERHRNEERER
BEEGUERE -

REZBEEMNENREBERBMEAL
mAvE AT &R

BOARD COMMITTEES
Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three members,
namely Mr. Bai Xihong (chairman), non-executive Director, Mr.
Lui Shing Ming, Brian and Dr. Chu Xiaoping, two independent
non-executive Directors.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee of the Company
are as follows:

1. to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

2. to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

3.  to assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors;

4.  to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the chairman and chief executive officer;
and

5.  to perform tasks as assigned by the Board from time to time.

The Nomination Committee assesses the candidate or incumbent
on criteria such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit
time and effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be put to
the Board for decision.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, one meeting of the
Nomination Committee was held and the attendance of the
Nomination Committee members is set out below:

EHERE, AHERE
Attended/Eligible to attend

B#&stEE

Mr. Bai Xihong
BT E

Mr. Lui Shing Ming, Brian
fE N FEL

Dr. Chu Xiaoping

LAl

1Al

171

HZE2021F12A31BLtEE REEEE
ERFNTESSRBRAR  FHEBELIEDR
TEEMBELE  ARERBFRE LHEMT
EEERTTRNESSHELERBESR UK
B TARRMESSHEZLBER B
e

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Nomination Committee
reviewed the structure and composition of the Board, assessed
the independence of independent non-executive Directors, made
recommendations to the Board on re-election of retiring Directors at
the annual general meeting, and reviewed the diversity policy and
diversity of the Board members of the Company.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

Our Board has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out
the approach to achieve diversity on our Board. The Company
recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board
and sees increasing diversity at Board level as an essential element
in supporting the attainment of our Company’s strategic objectives
and sustainable development. Our Company seeks to achieve Board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors, including
but not limited to talents, skills, gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, work experience, independence, knowledge
and length of service. We will continue to implement measures and
steps to promote and enhance gender diversity at all levels of our
Company. We will select potential Board candidates based on his/her
individual performance and potential contribution to our Board while
taking into account our board diversity policy and other factors. Our
Company will also take into consideration our own business model
and specific needs from time to time. All Board appointments will
be based on meritocracy and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard to the benefits of diversity on our
Board.

Our Board comprises of nine members, including three female
executive Directors out of a total of four executive Board members.
Our Directors also have a balanced mix of knowledge, skills and
experience, including property management, overall business
management, administrative management, finance and investment.
They obtained degrees in various majors including but without
limitation to business administration, public administration, economic
management, industrial enterprise operation management, language
and law. We have three independent non-executive Directors
who have different industry backgrounds, including auditing and
accounting, law and economy. Furthermore, our Board has a wide
range of age, ranging from 35 to 66. We have taken and will
continue to take steps to promote gender diversity at all levels of
our Company, including but without limitation at our Board and
senior management levels. Taking into account our business model
and specific needs as well as the presence of three female executive
Directors out of a total of nine Board members, we consider that the
composition of our Board satisfies our board diversity policy.
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With regards to gender diversity on the Board, our board diversity
policy further provides that our Board shall take opportunities to
increase the proportion of female members over time when selecting
and making recommendations on suitable candidates for Board
appointments. We will also ensure that there is gender diversity when
recruiting staff at mid to senior level so that we will have a pipeline
of female senior management and potential successors to our Board
going forward. It is our objective to maintain an appropriate balance
of gender diversity with reference to the stakeholders’ expectation
and international and local recommended best practices.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for ensuring the diversity of
our Board members. The Nomination Committee will review our board
diversity policy and its implementation from time to time to ensure its
implementation and monitor its continued effectiveness.

All Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are invited to
serve in the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee. As regards the CG Code provision requiring
the Directors to disclose the number and nature of offices held in
public companies or organisations and other significant commitments
as well as the identity of the public companies or organisations and
the time involved to the issuer, the Directors have disclosed their
commitments in a timely manner.

Nomination and Appointment

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition and
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-election of Directors and succession planning for Directors.

Measurable Targets

The screening of Directors is based on a series of diversified
categories. The Company undertakes to implement the policy of
equal opportunity for all in all respects, without discrimination due to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, race, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and service term or other factors.

Policy Statement

The Company understands that a diversified Board is beneficial to the
improvement of the Company’s performance. The differences in ideas,
background, ways of thinking and working methods may create values
for our stakeholders, particularly for our customers, Shareholders,
employees and the communities managed by us.
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Supervision and Report

The Nomination Committee will report the composition of the Board
in terms of diversification in the corporate governance report of the
annual report and supervise the implementation of the policy.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three members,
namely Dr. Wong Kong Tin (chairman) and Dr. Chu Xiaoping,
independent non-executive Directors, and Mr. Bai Xihong,
non-executive Director.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

2. to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the corporate goals and objectives
as determined by the Board from time to time;

3. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management. These include benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

4. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors;

5. to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

6. to review and approve the compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

7. to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that
such arrangements are consistent with contractual terms and are
otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and

8.  to ensure that no Director or any of his associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his own remuneration.
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The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, one meeting of the
Remuneration Committee was held and the attendance of the
Remuneration Committee members is set out below:

EHERE HERE
Attended/Eligible to attend
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Dr. Wong Kong Tin
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Mr. Bai Xihong
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Dr. Chu Xiaoping

LAl

1Al

171

FHEE SR 2020EEARTEERS
BERBZHFNFER20RIFEFEEERER
EEE 7 FNBR AR o

CHE L

BHEBER=AN AN - DEBAELE
(£R)  ZRELERBLREL - AHHA
B IEAITE S -

BALEGNIEZRENOT

1. Z2EREMEBETNIE HERARE
PG R MAZ BB ORI R - Atz
BEHNELE EFZERBERNES
SRR

2. ROUBREERBELEBEARAE
AR ERBEAR  AREER
REERRENERNEARREEE
ZERRTEES R

3. REUARBHBRESE - RAFEE
HENRBRERGEREEREFNT
RUERARYE  BREARA G M
BREBENERTE L - BITER
R#&hy - BIEEIRFEE

The Remuneration Committee reviewed the remuneration packages
for Directors and senior management of the Company for 2020
and the remuneration policy and structure for Directors and senior
management for 2021.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee currently comprises three members, namely Mr.
Lui Shing Ming, Brian (chairman), Mr. Li Qiang and Dr. Wong Kong
Tin, most of whom are independent non-executive Directors.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

1.

To review the relationship with the auditor by reference to
the work performed by the auditor, their fees and terms of
engagement, and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the auditor;

To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the Company’s staff
responsible for the accounting and financial reporting function,
compliance officer or the auditor before submission to the
Board; and

To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's
financial reporting system, internal control system, risk
management systems and associated procedures, including the
adequacy of the resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company's accounting
and financial reporting function.
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The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, two meetings of the Audit
Committee were held and the attendance of the Audit Committee
members is set out below:

EHERE HERE
Attended/Eligible to attend

BRRLE

Mr. Lui Shing Ming, Brian
FoRELE

Mr. Li Qiang

=ILRIEL

Dr. Wong Kong Tin

2/2

2/2

2/2
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Audit Committee
reviewed the annual results and annual report for the year ended
31 December 2020, interim results and interim report for the six
months ended 30 June 2021, financial reporting system, compliance
procedures, risk management and internal control systems (including
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions), and the re-
appointment of the external auditor. The Board has not deviated from
any recommendation given by the Audit Committee on the selection,
appointment, resignation or dismissal of external auditor.

The Audit Committee also reviewed final results of the Company and
its subsidiaries for the fiscal year as well as the audit report prepared
by the external auditor relating to accounting issues and major
findings in course of audit.
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ENVIRONMENTAL,
GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The ESG Committee currently comprises five members, namely Mr. Bai
Xihong (chairman), Ms. Wang Meng, Ms. Xie Rao, Ms. Zhou Rui and
Mr. Lui Shing Ming, Brian.

SOCIAL AND

The principal duties of the ESG Committee are as follows:

1. To direct and review the development of the Group's ESG
management policies and strategies to ensure that they are up-
to-date, relevant and meets applicable legal and regulatory
requirements;

2. To monitor the development and implementation of the Group’s
ESG objectives, including setting the Group's performance
targets for ESG management; reviewing the progress of
achieving those targets, and advising on the actions required to
achieve those targets;

3.  To review the main external ESG trends and report to the
Board the major trends affecting the Group’s ESG policies and
strategies and its objectives setting;

4.  To direct and review the identification and prioritization of the
materiality of ESG issues of the Group;

5. To review annual ESG Reports and other ESG-related disclosures,
and make recommendations to the Board for approval;

6. To identify ESG risks and opportunities related to the Group,
assess the impact arising from such risks or opportunities on the
Group, and make recommendations to the Board on responses
to those risks or opportunities; and

7.  Other responsibilities delegated by the Board.

The terms of reference of the ESG Committee are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

No meeting of the ESG Committee was held during the period from
the establishment date of ESG Committee on 16 November 2021 to
31 December 2021.
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HE2021F12A831BLFE - AR EHEIT During the year ended 31 December 2021, our Company held one

—RABRREFRER—RAREFRAE - annual general meeting and one extraordinary general meeting, and

AR ZEEHERERGHERBNTE the attendance of the individual Directors at the general meeting is
set out in the table below:

EEpR EHERE AHERE

Name of Director Attended/Eligible to attend

FEE+ 2/2

Ms. Wang Meng

BRIBTHSE A 2/2

Mr. Yao Xusheng

WL+ 2/2

Ms. Xie Rao

At 2/2

Ms. Zhou Rui

Bt L L 212

Mr. Bai Xihong

FREE 212

Mr. Li Qiang

BRBREE 2/2

Mr. Lui Shing Ming, Brian

F=IKREL 2/2

Dr. Wong Kong Tin

B 2/2

Dr. Chu Xiaoping
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Directors and the senior
management of the Company's biographies are set out under the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report. The details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out
in note 9 to the consolidated financial statement. Remuneration
paid to the senior management (excluding Directors) for the year
ended 31 December 2021 is within the range of HKD1,500,001 to
HKD2,500,000.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND
CONTROL

INTERNAL

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board
for maintaining an adequate risk management and internal control
systems to safeguard the investments of Shareholders and assets of
the Company and reviewing the effectiveness of such systems on an
annual basis.

The Group has established a valid and effectual risk management
system, which is designed to provide reasonable assurance for
achieving the following objectives:

- To control risks in line with overall objectives and within
acceptable level;

- To achieve true and reliable communication of the Company's
internal and external information;

- To ensure the compliance with laws and regulations;

- To improve the effectiveness and efficiency of the Company's
operation;

- To ensure the Company’s establishment of risk contingency
plans for every significant risk to enable it not to suffer great
losses due to catastrophic risk or human error.
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The Group's risk management and internal control team plays a
major role in monitoring the internal governance of the Company.
The major responsibilities of the internal control team are regulating
and reviewing the financial conditions and internal control of the
Company, and conducting comprehensive audits of all branches and
subsidiaries of the Company on a regular basis. The Board, the Audit
Committee, the senior management and the internal audit department
are the four levels of structure and main features of risk management
and internal control systems.

The Board has reviewed the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and considered the internal control systems to
be effective and adequate. The Board is responsible for the Company’s
risk management and internal control systems and for reviewing
their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate risks of failure to achieve the business objectives of the
Group and to only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

During 2021, the Board supervised the management’s design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and internal
control systems, and reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group on
an ongoing basis; such review covered all major control aspects of
the Group, including financial, operational and compliance controls.
The Board also confirmed that there are adequate resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems covered
each operation department, to ensure that the Group could effectively
manage the key factors that might affect the Group in achieving
its strategic objectives, such factors including events, accidents or
behaviors with a material impact on the Group's reputation, assets,
capital, profit or liquidity.

The Group has established the Customer Assistant Center, which
is responsible for the daily supervision and inspection of risk
management of each department, continuous supervision and routine
inspection on fire safety, public security administration, human and
technical defense and emergency management conducted by each
department and in each project in accordance with the Company's risk
management system, and tracking the implementation of rectification.
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The Group has a Legal Affairs Center responsible for the legal affairs
of each organization of the Group, confirming and evaluating the
integrity and effectiveness of each organization’s risk management
and internal control systems, and conducting continuous supervision
and routine inspection. Meanwhile, according to national laws and
regulations and industry norms, the systems of the Company and the
current situation of its risk management, the Company organized
and carried out various professional training work to enhance the
legal and compliance awareness of the staff. The risk and compliance
inspection work organized by the Legal Affairs Center covers major
business activities and all branches and subsidiaries.

The Group has an Audit and Supervision Center responsible for
regular and special audits of organizations and handling of internal
non-compliance incidents. The center is independent of each
department and audits the risk management and internal control
of each organization according to the audit plan reviewed by the
Audit Committee of the Group. The Company has full-time audit
and supervision personnel. They have the authority to integrate the
Company’s internal audit resources according to the needs of audit
and supervision projects and establish a joint audit project team, led
by the Audit and Supervision Center and comprising members of
the legal affairs department, the human resources department, the
finance department and various business lines, to conduct regular
and special audits of each organization, and investigate and deal with
violations by each organization of regulations and disciplines.

The Group has established a comprehensive risk management system,
which specifies the roles and responsibilities of the management
and the Board in risk management work. On the basis of the
system, continuous monitoring has taken place in relation to the
risk management and internal control systems. Based on the risk
management work conducted in previous years, the management
of the Company continues to identify and evaluate the risks of the
Group. The management has analyzed the changes to core risks by
paying attention to market and industry changes and communicating
with the company president and relevant senior management. The
control of core risks is under continuous monitoring through regular
self-inspection and evaluation organized by each risk management
department regarding respective core risks.

BABBIERERAR /2021 £ 121



EXERKRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

REABHER

ARBREENRREREMANEHESNIEF
RABEE - RETTH  EAKERERE
EREHE/ SEEHRER 2 BEEARHE
B ZEEBAARBIEEABER M
ERABRREE BENEZSREZFH
HENHREBLRERMEREEEBRAR
HEXAEERAIITER THERWE

AR ZF A% BRI

REEHNBEZIFPINERAR R AL
ERNHMNBEEEZAE - NELE AP
RERERFRUBEMNABEEENTES
i~ EBMEBRARSEREE - HARE
HENTEZEMNRE  ARATREMBA
Al RBRERIABEHRENEERET
NERHEREMBHB AR EEEBME
B BHBIESER RRERE BEE
H - BEERE KELEER  ELEBHM
REE AERBHEE FEH5EE - HE
EErE TETRRERE WRBFEEE -
THRERER  BERE MERE  ZEL
B ANEBERERSESARIEEXLLY
B - A EZEGEEELRAESSER
IR o

EXE0EBEZRES  RIAKENR
REEMAMBEERGEEREAN °

B LZBECREAANEZEGRENE
REIERAREERE - URSNEE2021
FI2ZANBLEFEARRERERATEZER
BOZAREEN  BETAEREHAR
FEEEIE -

Disclosure of Inside Information

The Company has the procedures and internal controls for handling
and dissemination of inside information. In practice, employees of
the Group who become aware of any events and/or matters which
he/she consider potentially inside information, will report to the
designated personnel of the Company who, if considered appropriate,
will pass such information to the Board for the purpose of considering
and deciding whether or not such information constitutes inside
information and disclosure of which shall be made as soon as
reasonably practicable.

INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT

The Group’s internal audit department plays a major role in
monitoring the internal governance of the Company. The internal
audit department determines the main units, business and items
and high-risk areas included in the scope of inspection based
on the risk-oriented principle. The main units included in the
scope of inspection consist of headquarters of the Company
and its subsidiaries. The scope of risk management and internal
control inspection covers the major businesses and matters of the
Company’s headquarters and its subsidiaries, with a focus on high-
risk or important business activities including fund management,
environmental management, quality control, asset management,
water and electricity consumption management, information project
development management, paid service and maintenance, parking lot
management, lease and sale business management, sporadic project
management, management and control of waste collection and
transportation, use of administrative expenses, tendering and bidding,
purchase of materials, diversified operations and human resources
management. The internal audit team reports to the Board at least
twice on an annual basis.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems.

The Audit Committee has received a report of risk management
and internal control prepared by the internal audit team, and has
considered that the risk management and internal control systems
remain adequate and effective throughout the year ended 31
December 2021 with no material issues to be brought to the Board’s
attention.
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Service Offerings

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the auditor's approximate
remuneration for providing audit and non-audit services to the
Company is as follows:

SBARYETT)
Amount (RMB)

ZE R

Audit services

LB AR

Non-audit services
i E
—Interim result review
—H fib
—Others*

@i

Total

1,600,000

1,000,000

4,143,000

6,743,000

* HMERBRE 2/ EEBME
AR RE - HERERAREEM
RE MRS -

REMWE

ARARZEBOERLZLE ([Ekt] EBE
BERRAREFR EMRBALE) BEQ
BIARIME - ARAB ARV EBHBEKREE
REEARNBNBZ T EHARA -

HE2021F12A3MBEFEE HLXTER
A& LR AIE3. 20158 T T DR 15/ N AR
R ELE -

* Other non-audit services mainly consisted of corporate strategy
consulting services, ESG report consultant and other services.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has appointed Ms. Ng Sau Mei (“Ms. Ng”, a director
and head of the Listing Services Department of TMF Hong Kong
Limited) as the company secretary of the Company. Mr. Kwok Pak
Shing, the chief financial officer of the Company, serves as her main
internal contact person of the Company.

Ms. Ng has undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules for the year
ended 31 December 2021.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with the
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Company’s business, performance and
strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance of
transparently and timely disclosure of information of the Company,
which will enable the Shareholders and investors to make the
informed investment decisions.

The annual general meeting provides opportunity for the Shareholders
to communicate directly with the Directors. The Chairman of the
Company and the respective chairman of the Board Committee will
attend the annual general meeting to answer the Shareholders’
questions. The external auditor of the Company will also attend the
annual general meeting to answer questions about the conduct of
the audit, the preparation and contents of the auditor’s report, the
accounting policies and auditor independence.

In order to promote the transparency, the Group enables the investors
to understand its businesses and operations through its annual general
meeting, extraordinary general meeting, annual report, interim report
and website.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a
shareholders’ communication policy which aims at establishing an
on-going communication between the Company and the Shareholders
and maintains a website at www.shidaiwuye.com, where up-to-date
information on the it's business operations and developments,
financial information, corporate governance practices and other
information are available for public access.

The Company is committed to maintaining a high level of corporate
transparency and designates specialized personnel to maintain regular
dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to keep them
informed of the Company’s operations and developments.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

To safeguard the Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution will be proposed for each issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual Directors. All resolutions put
forward at Shareholders’ meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant
to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely manner after each
general meeting.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
CONVENE A GENERAL MEETING AND PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS

The Shareholders who wish to propose resolutions may follow article
64 of the Articles of Association for requisitioning an extraordinary
general meeting and including a resolution at such meeting. Any
one or more member(s) of the Company holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or company secretary of our Company to
require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board to convene such general meeting shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company. More details of the procedures can
be available on the website of the Company.

ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about
the Company to the Board could email their enquiries to the
representatives of investor relations of the Company at the email
address: sdllir@timesgroup.cn.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no amendment made to the constitutional documents of
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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Quarry Bay, Hong Kong K& —EE271E

To the shareholders of Times Neighborhood Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Times
Neighborhood Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the "Group”) set out on pages 137 to 266, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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To the shareholders of Times Neighborhood Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matter

To the shareholders of Times Neighborhood Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

EMNERNTEERRERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BERAMETLEER R E L

Impairment assessment of goodwill and other intangible assets

M2021F12A318 ' EBEHEENDERMEEREGDN
FEFBAEMNEEFED A ABARKS62,909,0007T & A
R#176,169,0007t - MEERAAREFBAEEBFRA
EARFH -

As at 31 December 2021, the net carrying amounts of
goodwill and property management contracts and customer
relationships arising from business combinations were
approximately RMB562,909,000 and RMB176,169,000,
respectively. Property management contracts and customer
relationships are with finite useful lives.

BESFETHEANR MVXEEAOREFBREMN
5 BEBERSHREHRFLESEEATRBERDEER
BHARFEFBETRLERE  YRNAREFREHYEE
BAEORFFPEFRETRENS - EXEEREHRENY
XEEANREPBAFRETHRERT S RAEBEAHE &
st (BRERFReELSEN (REELBEM ) HEER
IR - FRRAE R R RITR R B RN A R A o

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually. For property
management contracts and customer relationships, the
Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is any indication that the property management
contracts and customer relationships may be impaired, and
tests the property management contracts and customer
relationships for impairment if such indication exists. The
impairment review of goodwill and property management
contracts and customer relationships performed by the
Group’s management includes a number of significant
judgements and estimates, including those regarding the
identification of operating profit forecasts, annual revenue
growth rates and discount rates of cash-generating units
("CGUs").

BANEZEFERSTEEERFEAXEBAHELNRE
IMEEEENREFPBERDSHARENSEARANE
BEMNEEMERTEN HMEFENTARETRAE @ U2
BREEMREBERIE - SHEFREENEEEAONR
BEFRR -

Our audit procedures included an analysis of the rationale
and objective evidence used by management in evaluating
whether there were impairment indicators for individual
property management contracts and customer relationship
arising from business combinations. For any impairment
indicator existed, the related property management
contracts and customer relationships were taken into
further assessment about whether any impairment losses
occur.

B EEERDEEREAOREPERRENRTEFE
FEAT&A

Our audit procedures to assess the impairment of goodwill
and property management contracts and customer
relationships with impairment indicators included the
following:

e HFABGEEZRRBEERMFME BERFRET A YKE
SRR ERFTERE
° Involving internal valuation specialists to assist us

in evaluating the methodologies and discount rates
used by the Company for determining the recoverable
amounts;
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To the shareholders of Times Neighborhood Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

EMNERNTEERRERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BERAMELAENRIEE (E)

Impairment assessment of goodwill and other intangible assets (continued)

BOBERES  DEREERRRNEERAHRESH
ROBEEM R ERER T ERR(E BRI T BT
BREf -

We focused on this area because of the materiality of the
balances of goodwill and property management contracts
and customer relationships, and the complex and subjective
management estimation made by management on the key
assumptions.

B ERMEERAYNNEFBRNBETENERS T
BRI R E BN G E SRR ES ~ 16 %17

The significant accounting estimates and disclosures about
the impairment assessment of goodwill and property
management contracts and customer relationships are
included in notes 3, 16 and 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

HHATAMNMERAEE - FINEIEEERRBA RAELE?
BRIER - TERBEEBEARTE2021FERE
EEBMMMHRR N

Examining the underlying data used, such as
management’s projection on the future revenues
and operating results by investigating whether
the forecasts were consistent with the financial
performance of each CGU during the year of 2021;

EMERLELENNEBERABRBEFEHEE
PTESRSEABAMRER ;

Examining the business development plans and
historical annual growth of each CGU to evaluate the
growth rate of each CGU;

iy EREEEEREIEERREFNTEMETHR

Assessing the sensitivity analysis performed by the
Group’s management on the impact of changes in
the key assumptions; and

AHARARREBEREEERERARHNBREFTHE
YHEREHATKESENHTETREESFMAR
E{ELLE °

Testing the mathematical calculation of the forecasts
and carrying values in management’'s impairment
model and comparing management'’s estimate of the
recoverable amount with the carrying amount of each
CGU.
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Key audit matter

To the shareholders of Times Neighborhood Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

EMNERNTEERRERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FEWE S B R E B 18R

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

M2021F12A318 ESEREEEERBEARK
19,654,000 LM EKRE HHRIBAARK1,139,996,000
e BEEBEFRAREBEREGEEKESRIBENEREEEE
([TEHiEERIE]) - BEXRNDEREFEUBEEXNNZ @
EPABRARNNBIREETE - BEEERULER ES
BERBTERENEMEL - ESERRIEEMBIZRIETE
BN AR BAEERBLR

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had trade receivables
of RMB1,139,996,000, after making loss allowance of
RMB19,654,000. The Group uses a provision matrix
to calculate expected credit losses (“ECLs”) for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past
due for groupings of various customer segments that have
similar loss patterns. The provision matrix is initially based
on the Group's historical observed default rates. The Group
calibrates the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss
experience with forward-looking information.

B 5 B TR E R AR E LA - B
AEURSREGHY RRETEBEA  MABEHS
BORRAE LABTNNE  AREEREELEXHNR
fht -

We identified the recoverability of trade receivables as a
key audit matter because the balance of trade receivables
was material to the Group and the recognition of expected
credit losses was inherently subjective and required the
exercise of significant management’s judgements and
estimations.

FREBESFENBREEBRBRENERNGHE K
BENRA M BRRMEIR21 -

The significant accounting estimates and disclosures about
the provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
are included in notes 3 and 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BAFERKE ZFRNEREEEERENELEF 2R
A& -

Our audit procedures to assess the provision for expected
credit losses on trade receivables included the following:

o FERASEEEMAIEREE 28 BEBAE
EBERER  BOERIAHER

° Evaluating and testing the methodologies and data/
parameters used by management, including historical
loss information, probability of default, and expected
losses;

s BBONMEIBTRFPAEEEHKNEREZFRFABAHK
HRBIERATERD M IEERMRF

° Executing substantive analytical review procedures
by analysing the fluctuations of major customers’
outstanding balances and trade receivable turnover
days;

. R EmIB L R RS  HEREREM
HEXHEFHEEBREMERE SFIEN20214
1231 BMREE RSN ERENE &

° Assessing, on a sampling basis, the correctness of the
ageing report of trade receivables at 31 December
2021 prepared by management by comparing the
sample items with the demand notes, sales invoices
and other relevant underlying documentation; and

o IWMEEEHLRSWRRABEERXHIHARYES
FIRMBEREEIEN -

° Testing, on a sampling basis, the subsequent
settlement of trade receivables to cash receipts and
the related supporting documentation.
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To the shareholders of Times Neighborhood Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

EMNERNTEERRERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

REBEHETZIBEERSEL

Purchase price allocation for business combinations

REZE2021F 128318 LLFE - ESEETRKE—4A
MEETENR - EEEBCZEBIYAEREEMBITSH
AlEFEERRKRERSREMEBEENCHNEERAR
HEITEE UERERL  BEEHKRBEHEETEEER
Dl ERRERETLEEAREK129,174,0007T © BIE #7!
VMEBEBAGOREFER CHERAMBARK278,952,000
7T - BNE SR B R 15 U B8 05 3R 45 AR 8 25 & B HE 1R FT IR P
EHBFEEAABENESEE -

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
completed the acquisition of group of property
management companies. Management has engaged an
independent qualified valuer to assist them in identifying
the intangible assets and to perform the valuations of the
identified assets and liabilities of the acquired group at
the acquisition date and, based on which, management
performed a purchase price allocation exercise for the
acquisition, which resulted in the recognition of intangible
assets of RMB129,174,000, being the identified property
management contracts and customer relationships.
Goodwill of RMB278,952,000, being the excess of
considerations transferred and the amount of non-
controlling interests in the acquiree over the fair value of
identified net assets acquired, was recognised.

BAFHEERFAHNBEENENBEZIEFBRENTEA

Our audit procedures to assess the purchase price allocation
for business combination included the following:

e HHEEEBEGENIIMGEMNEN  FTEREREBY
IHE o

° Assessing the competency, objectivity and
independence of the external valuer engaged by
management;

o  EREEEEFNIGEMLANEEKBERANEER
EoERABNGERS  WEFERMANAIEERK
HEEEERNGEINERTRE

o Obtaining the valuation reports in relation to the
purchase price allocation for the acquisition issued
by the external valuer engaged by management, and
engaging our internal valuation specialists to evaluate
the valuation methodologies and discount rates used
by management;
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Key audit matter

To the shareholders of Times Neighborhood Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

EMNERNTEERRERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

MEBEGIETZIEEBE DA (B)

Purchase price allocation for business combinations (continued)

ERAE G REBNDEEEANNAABENGR o  ZHMANHEBREE  INEREHRRRARKE?
EF#GE URABXFAHELNEE - ZFEAHE X BAWTER - TDERRETERBREE BB BTN
EFFBEREERRMEEREDENRAERER (X825 BRAREHERRE

FEBAZREER - EFEX - FTREX - YREESHLEFH
BRI ERFER) -

Significant judgements and estimates were involved
in the fair value assessment of the identified property
management contracts and customer relationships and
the recognition of goodwill arising from the business
combinations. These significant judgements and
estimates include the adoption of appropriate valuation
methodologies and the use of key assumptions in the
valuation (mainly annual revenue growth rates, gross
profit margins, discount rates and expected useful lives
of the property management contracts and customer
relationships).

BPBEZEE - DTAREBNYEERSHNREFPBER
EREEBEHELIHENEEZN  UREEEREZRR
EHRE MR T B ERE ST -

We focused on this area because of the magnitude of the
identified property management contracts and customer
relationships and goodwill recognised arising from the
business combinations, and the complex and subjective
management estimation made by management on the key
assumptions.

EAMESAHETZEBEER P ENERNG T EAESE
HRRE PSR RMFES - 17 %32

The significant accounting estimates and disclosures about
the purchase price allocation for business combinations are
included in notes 3, 17 and 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Examining the underlying data used, such as
management’s projection on the future revenues
and operating results by investigating whether the
forecasts were consistent with the historical financial
performance and business development plans of the
acquiree;

wHE Eﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁixﬁ&ﬁﬁm%ﬁﬁ TTEVER
BE DT

Assessing the sensitivity analysis performed by the
Group’s management on the impact of changes in
the key assumptions; and

BRECHIMEEERNOREFBRARBAENRAE
EfENHERE

Checking the mathematical accuracy of the
calculations of the fair value of the identified property
management contracts and customer relationships
and goodwill.
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To the shareholders of Times Neighborhood Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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To the shareholders of Times Neighborhood Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.
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To the shareholders of Times Neighborhood Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.
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To the shareholders of Times Neighborhood Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Hui Kin Fai, Stephen.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

31 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

HZE2021F12 8318 IEFE  Year ended 31 December 2021

ita 20214 20204
Notes 2021 2020
AR®T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
A REVENUE 5 2,719,747 1,758,427
SHE R Cost of sales 7 (1,977,687) (1,227,379)
EH Gross profit 742,060 531,048
H AU A R iz Other income and gains 6 38,108 23,546
SHE RIS HEENA Selling and marketing costs (20,561) (46,885)
THAX Administrative expenses (279,224) (180,274)
SRR ABEEREREFE  Net impairment losses on financial
and contract assets 7 (10,443) (2,154)
Hfx Other expenses (28,281) (2,322)
& KA Finance costs 8 (3,348) (8,321)
pakfay: /NS PN Share of profit of associates 18 5,482 2,101
¥ 250 Bl AR PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7 443,793 316,739
FriSfim s Income tax expense 11 (109,656) (79,865)
FEFH PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 334,137 236,874
T B IEFE - Attributable to:
[SYNEIEZEWN Owners of the parent 308,000 232,606
FEFERR MR Non-controlling interests 26,137 4,268
334,137 236,874
BRAEBEERFEA EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
FEEFRAER TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE PARENT 13
BEARREE Basic and diluted
(AFRAREBSHTR) (expressed in RMB cents per share) 31 25
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HZE2021F12A318IEFE  Year ended 31 December 2021

2021%F 20204
2021 2020
AR®T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
FEME PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 334,137 236,874
Hih 2 HEEE OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
REERETER S8 Other comprehensive income that may
EEREMEMEERA be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
BEFINTB A RIS RE Exchange differences on translation of
BIME H Z5 financial statements of
overseas subsidiaries 21,801 26,548
REBHREGTEEFHE Other comprehensive loss that will not
EEREMEMEEERE : be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
BRERNAMBHRROEL ZH Exchange differences on translation of
financial statements of the Company (35,455) (90,637)
FEAMEEER OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
FOR THE YEAR (13,654) (64,089)
FE2EEALRE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR 320,483 172,785
T3 B IEFE : Attributable to:
SREHEB A Owners of the parent 294,346 168,517
FEVE IR 2 Non-controlling interests 26,137 4,268
320,483 172,785
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B B IR R R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2021F12H31H

31 December 2021

KfaE 202145 20204
Notes 2021 2020
ARETT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FREBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
ME - BB K& Property, plant and equipment 14 95,216 51,931
EREEE Right-of-use assets 15(a) 15,911 11,621
SRS Goodwill 16 562,909 283,957
HinmEEE Other intangible assets 17 253,693 118,307
REE R B RE Investments in associates 18 72,522 64,346
FEBIEEE Deferred tax assets 19 20,949 20,997
FERFIE ~ e REAMWEUERIE Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables 23 6,939 187,296
EmBEEARE Total non-current assets 1,028,139 738,455
RBEE CURRENT ASSETS
7E Inventories 20 1,435 2,194
FEWE 5508 Trade receivables 21 1,139,996 574,082
AREE Contract assets 22 10,178 12,747
BRHIE - ZeE Rk Prepayments, deposits and
H b fE Y FRIE other receivables 23 263,334 72,770
AAREEFEXFA Financial assets at fair value
BanlemiE through profit or loss 24 - 76,000
SR EIERITIER Restricted bank deposits 25 11,324 124,964
BeMREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 25 814,329 1,047,739
B A EAERR Total current assets 2,240,596 1,910,496
REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
FENE 5508 Trade payables 26 569,447 275,467
HMEMNRIBRERIER Other payables and accruals 27 371,544 370,121
aRAE Contract liabilities 5 128,025 131,731
HEAE Lease liabilities 15(b) 8,790 9,254
FE B Tax payable 72,903 64,777
eGSR Government grants 1,915 200
mEBERRE Total current liabilities 1,152,624 851,550
REBEETFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 1,087,972 1,058,946
EEAERABER TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 2,116,111 1,797,401
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I & B AR R AR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

20214 12H31H 31 December 2021

it s 202145 20204
Notes 2021 2020
AR®ET T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
EEHAERRBERE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 2,116,111 1,797,401
FRBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
HEAE Lease liabilities 15(b) 13,537 13,096
IR I #64 Bfy Government grants 6 156
REBIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 19 43,757 22,452
B FE R AR 4 2 25 55 AR HR A Financial liability for a put option
Mot BE written on non-controlling interests 28 125,442 =
B EBRE Total non-current liabilities 182,742 35,704
EEFE Net assets 1,933,369 1,761,697
= EQUITY
BRRGER AEEER Equity attributable to owners
of the parent
f& s Share capital 29 8,868 8,868
FLAR 1D BN AT B3 A M AR (D Shares held for the share award scheme (22,198) (22,198)
s Reserves 30 1,838,121 1,733,663
1,824,791 1,720,333
I AR R 2 Non-controlling interests 108,578 41,364
A Total equity 1,933,369 1,761,697
TH5 B
Wang Meng Zhou Rui
= 5=
Director Director
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RAEEZ2B R I
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HZE2021F12 8318 IEFE  Year ended 31 December 2021

BRTEEARL
Attributable to owners of the parent

bl

EEEE EE &t
Rx mEoRR  RREE  ofRE BROBE  RERE  ERRE  BRAE ait FAREE  EREE

Shares held

for the Statutory Share Non-
Share  share award Share Merger surplus award  Exchange  Retained controlling Total
capital scheme — premium Teserve funds reserve Teserve profits Total interests equity

ARETT  ARETR ARBTR  ARETT ARETn ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000
(Wi29)  (Wi300)  (Wi30)  (Wisom)  (Wisoq)  (Wsow)  (Witoe)
(note 29) (note 30(0)) (note 30 (3) (note 30(b) (note 30(c) (note 30(a)) (note 30 (¢)

R2020F1818 At 1 January 2020 8,170 = 723,244 (26,400) 29318 = (4502) 166,162 895,992 3,239 899,231
EENE Profit for the year - - - - - - - D606 232606 4268 236,874
ERABZESE  Other comprehensive

loss for the year - - - - - - (64,089) - (64,089) - (64,089)
EE2ERALE  Total comprehensive

income for the year - - - - - - (64,089) 232,606 168,517 4,268 172,785
£ Issue of shares,

(MBER) net of expenses 698 - 706568 = = = = - 70766 - 707266
WEHBRA  Acquisitions of subsidiaries = - = = = = = = = 33,857 33,857
BRRER Transfer to statutory

BHNER surplus funds = = = = 25,649 = - (5649 = = =
BELRELER  Purchase of shares under

ROZEHE  the equity-settled

ETHRG share award scheme - (1%) = = = = = - (1%) - 1%)
WRIEEENRE  Equity-settled share

R award scheme = = = = = m = = m = I
Q19EREHRE  Final 2019 dividend - - (29,986) - - - - - (29,986) - (29,986)

R2020512 8318 At 31 December 2020

8,868 (22,198)  1,399,826* (26,400 54967 14 (68,591)*  373,119* 1,720,333 41364 1,761,697
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I mREERS R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HZE2021F12A318IEFE  Year ended 31 December 2021

BATREARE
Attributable to owners of the parent

R

#id HE v
B GEMRE  ROEE  GHEE  BHORE  HBRE  ENRE  HMBE  BEAR ait  FEREE  BEAE

Shares held

for the Statutory Share Non-
Share ~ share award Share Merger surplus award  Exchange Other  Retained controlling Total
capital scheme  premium reserve funds reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity

AR®TR  ARBTR ARETn ARMTR ARETRL  ARRTr  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARETr  ARMTR  ARETR  ARMTR
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(W) (W)  (Wse)  (WEs0m) (W) (W) (W) o (KEe)
(note 29)  (note 30(d))  (note 30(a) (note 30(b))  (note 30(c) (note 30()) (note 30(e)  (note 28)

RONE At January 2021

1A18 8868 (22,198) 1399826 (26,4000 54967 W (68s59) - IBIY 172033 364 1,761,697
EEFE  profitfor the year - - - - - - - - 308000 308,000 6,131 33137
EFAf Other comprehensive

SEEE  loss for the year - - - - - - (1365 - - (1365 - (1365

EZRE Total comprehensive
WABE  income for the year - - - - - - (1365) - 308000 294,346 6,137 3048

FAREREE Capital injecton from
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - 4,000 4,000
A7) Put option granted during

YENE
SRES the acquisiton of
i

i
TAHE  subsidiaries - - - - - - - (1504 - (1544
WEMEBAF  Acquisiion of subsidiaries

(H#32)  (ote3D) - - - - - - - - - - 60,882 60,882

(125,442)

FRETRE Tansfer to statutory
DR surplus funds - - - - 31510 - - - 1510 - - -
IR Fquitysettled share

RAZEHE  award scheme - - - - - 5,531 - - - 5537
BRFERR  Dividends paid to

BR#E non-controling

shareholders - - - - - - - - - - (23,805) (23,805)

2000ERERE Final 2020 dividend

() (o) - - (69 - - - - - - (69983)

g

5931

(69,983)

R2E  At31 December 2021
128318 8,868 (22,198) 1,329,843 (26,400 86,477 6,279* (82.245)  (125442)* 649,600+ 1,824,791 108578 1,933,369

* ZERBERBREE W BHARR TP A 3 These reserve accounts comprise the reserves of RMB1,838,121,000
HAR®1,838,121,0007T (20204 : A (2020: RMB1,733,663,000) in the consolidated statement of financial
R#1,733,663,0007T) ° position.
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mERERER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HZE2021F12 8318 IEFE  Year ended 31 December 2021

ffat 2021%F 20204
Notes 2021 2020
ARETR ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
RETHFBRERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
B 54 A LR Profit before tax 443,793 316,739
T Adjustments for:

BEKAFRE Finance costs, net 8 3,348 8,321

DEE A R FE Share of profit of associates (5,482) (2,101)

RITHSWA Bank interest income (3,837) (10,570)

ME  BERZENE Depreciation of property, plant

and equipment 14 17,718 10,226

FRESERE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 15(a) 6,816 4,983

H A& Amortisation of other intangible assets 17 41,239 12,693

cRkEREERE Net impairment loss on financial and

BiEFE contract assets 7 10,443 2,154

HENE  BER Loss on disposal of items of property,

REEEHEE plant and equipment 329 17

HEEBKEHBBENEORLE Compensation loss for contract termination

e EEE for business combination 7 30,000 =

HEARARBEFELEA Gain on disposal of financial assets at

BaremEEmia fair value through profit or loss 7 (5,328) (4,338)

BB BT Government grants released to profit or loss 7 (18,707) (2,632)

IARRRE A B B0 AR 10 12 B AT EIF 2 Equity-settled share award scheme expense 30(d) 5,537 742

K& H AR Covid- 19438 Covid-19-related rent

HEER concessions from lessors 15(b) (253) (806)

525,616 335,428

HFERD Decrease in inventories 1,390 2,737

FEU B 5 SRIEIE N Increase in trade receivables (538,974) (316,274)

EREERD Decrease in contract assets 2,958 376
BB ek Increase in prepayments,

Hoh fE Y RIEE hn deposits and other receivables (29,916) (6,622)
JEfTE 2 FRIAE N Increase in trade payables 277,913 130,560
HAibFER I8 R EETIE B (Decrease)/increase other

CRd),/ 1 m payables and accruals (29,833) 43,215
EREERD Decrease in contract liabilities (48,080) (49,523)
B B N Increase in government grants 7,934 2,438
R HIRITER (M), WD (Increase)/decrease in restricted

bank deposits (4,995) 1,873
KEMERE Cash generated from operations 164,013 144,208
BN FER Income tax paid (109,335) (56,797)
RETBRBSHESRETE Net cash flows from operating activities 54,678 87,411
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I mMEBRETRER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HZE2021F12A318IEFE  Year ended 31 December 2021

2021%F 20204
2021 2020
ARETR AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
RETBHEBEERETH Net cash flows from operating activities 54,678 87,411
REFHNBRERE CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
WELR B Interest received 3,837 10,570
BEWME  BERFZEEREE Purchase of items of property,
plant and equipment (21,251) (18,627)
HENE  BER Proceeds from disposal of items of
RETEB B FTEHIE property, plant and equipment 4,480 43
BEHEHEMEREE Purchase/development of other
intangible assets (48,648) (28,730)
EEUAAEENEWEA Purchase of financial assets at
BaNepEE fair value through profit or loss (2,435,395) (3,123,490)
HENA R BEFEILFA Proceeds from disposal of financial
BRNEREENMERIE assets at fair value through profit or loss 2,531,223 3,074,828
m—EEEAREE Capital injection to an associate (367) -
Y BB R — el & R AR B Acquisition of an investment in an associate (118,635) -
W B A A Acquisitions of subsidiaries (152,282) (425,290)
TRHIRITEZRD /(38 00) Decrease/(increase) in restricted bank deposits 118,635 (121,609)
e FEE R IR R IER Decrease in amounts due to
non-controlling shareholders (34,470) -
HEEBE A B Compensation paid for contract termination
BRI RS E for business combination (28,000) =
WEIRERE T8 Receipt of net investment in the lease 4,477 =
RETBFARSRETE Net cash flows used in
investing activities (176,396) (632,305)
METHABRERE CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
BITRDEPTIS A (FNKRFSL)  Proceeds from issue of shares, net of expenses - 707,266
FERRERITE Capital injection from non-controlling interests 4,000 =
BRAFE Interest paid (1,252) (1,071)
HENTHMAL D Principal portion of lease payments (10,876) (7,097)
ERRE Dividends paid (69,983) (29,986)
BRI R S Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders (23,805) =
B ERG ZEET IR, Purchase of shares for share award scheme - (22,198)
WETE (), s Net cash flows (used in)/from
REeREFH financing activities (101,916) 646,914
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e 20215 20204

Notes 2021 2020
ARETT AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
FeREELEEY NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH
(R2),/ EmEE AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (223,634) 102,020
FReRREEED Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year 1,047,739 971,207
HNETE R BB 2 HEE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net (9,776) (25,488)
FRBERBELEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR 814,329 1,047,739
BEeRASEEYEHRIN ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Re MIRITHE Cash and bank balances 25 825,653 1,172,703
o BRHIRITER Less: Restricted bank deposits 25 (11,324) (124,964)
HeneXkHANRE Cash and cash equivalents as stated in
RIREEEY the statement of cash flows 814,329 1,047,739
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I B %5 R R MY &
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H 31 December 2021

AAREBER
—RER

RARAB—RK2019F7A128%
MERSIMAINBER AR - &K
NEMFMEEEMIE A7 Fort
Street, PO Box 500, George Town,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1106, Cayman
Islands © "R R LMD 2019412
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RRB KB R RN HEARLM
(THFEDREREMEEERE
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REE((REEBRES ) M
) BREEBRATRRERKRESR
RAR(TERRE] EREBEE
BARESEMKL) - FRREBHN
RAIMANEEOBIAAS ST E
(TZERED2EHR -

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
General information

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 12 July 2019. The registered office address
of the Company is 71 Fort Street, PO Box 500, George Town,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1106, Cayman Islands. The Company’s
shares became listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK") on 19 December 2019.

The Company is an investment holding company. During the
year, the Company’s subsidiaries were involved in the provision
of property management and other relevant services in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding company
of the Company is Best Source Ventures Limited, which was
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), and the
ultimate holding company is Renowned Brand Investments
Limited (“Renowned Brand”), which was incorporated in the
BVI. Renowned Brand is wholly owned by Mr. Shum Chiu Hung
(“Mr. Shum”), the founder of the Company and the Group.
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REAREEER (&)

MEARZER

RRBEEMBAR ZFHIBOT -

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

VYN 2
MR, KL BRTEE RIEZEIL
8 REEHE  REXIMBRE EE 5 TEEH
Percentage of
Place of Issued equity
incorporation/ ordinary/  attributable to
establishment registered the Company Principal

Name and operations share capital  Direct Indirect activities

BNTRREECEERERATF FE RERNM, ARHE - 100 REER
(TEMmRRHE ] () 20098 H31H  1,500,000,0007T

Guangzhou Times Neighborhood PRC/Mainland China/ RMB Investment
Enterprise Management Co., Ltd 31 August 2009 1,500,000,000 holding
("Guangzhou Times Neighborhood”)

(note (a))

BMNTERYEERFRAA FE RERNM, AR - 100 MEER
(TEMMERDEESE]) (KHFDb) 19984124188  1,000,000,0007T

Guangzhou Times Property PRC/Mainland China/ RMB Property
Management Co., Ltd. 18 December 1998 1,000,000,000 management
("Guangzhou Times Property
Management”) (note (b))

BILTIERRERYEEEERRA FE S RERNM, AR - 100 MEER
([BELmAZR]) (B (D) 200247 H29H 1,000,0007%

Foshan Shunde Hetai Property PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 Property
Management Co., Ltd. 29 July 2002 management
("Foshan Hetai") (note (b))

BINEENEERBRAA FE R ERNM, AR - 100 MEER
(TEME=]) (F5EDb)) 199542 A28 H 9,000,0007C

Guangzhou Wanning Property PRC/Mainland China/ RMB9,000,000 Property
Management Co., Ltd. 28 February 1995 management

("Guangzhou Wanning”) (note (b))
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1. REAREEESN (&) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)
MEARZER (&) Information about subsidiaries (continued)
ARG EEWNBARIZFHFBNOT ¢ Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(%) (continued)
VYN 2
MR, K ERTER RAEZAIHL
8 REEHE  REXIMBRE EE L TEEH
Percentage of
Place of Issued equity
incorporation/ ordinary/  attributable to
establishment registered the Company Principal
Name and operations share capital  Direct Indirect activities
HAMRRYNEERBRAA hE RN, ARE - 100 MERER
(TRgmRR L) (MEb) 200146A6H 500,0007T
Zhuhai Yuanxing Property PRC/Mainland China/ RMB500,000 Property
Management Co., Ltd. 6 June 2001 management
("Zhuhai Yuanxing”) (note (b))
BEMRRNEERBRAT hE S HE R, AR - 100 mEEE
(NBEmERZE]) (K5Eb) 200841 A6H 5,000,0007C
Qingyuan Rongtai Property PRC/Mainland China/ RMB5,000,000 Property
Management Co., Ltd. 6 January 2008 management
(“Qingyuan Rongtai”) (note (b))
BINRENERBERAA FE RERM, AR - 100 MEERR
(TEMEREE ) (L) 20046 A3H  100,000,0007C RETBRE RS
Guangzhou Dongkang Property PRC/Mainland China/  RMB100,000,000 Property
Services Co., Ltd. 3 June 2004 management
("Guangzhou Dongkang”) and provision
(note (b)) of municipal
sanitation services
BREZEHERDA RE S RER, AR - 70 BERE
(Is=&E# ) (F7E(b) 199612 4198 10,000,0007C HE R &
Joan Elevator (Guangdong) Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China/  RMB10,000,000 Installation,
("Joan Elevator”) (note (b)) 19 December 1996 sale and

maintenance
of elevators



REAREEER (&)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

MEARZER (&) Information about subsidiaries (continued)

ARG EEWNBARIZFHFBNOT ¢ Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(%) (continued)

VYN 2
MR, K ERTER RAEZAIHL
8 REEHE  REXIMBRE EE L TEEH
Percentage of
Place of Issued equity
incorporation/ ordinary/  attributable to
establishment registered the Company Principal

Name and operations share capital  Direct Indirect activities

RMBECEERERAR HERERM, AR - 100 REER
([N e D) (BT (b)) 202046 A18H 5,000,0007%

Xuzhou Mengmu Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB5,000,000 Investment
Management Co., Ltd. 18 June 2020 holding
("Xuzhou Mengmu”) (note (b))

BN TS BB BRI AR A ) (P 3 (b)) FE FERM, AEHE - 100 BRhTE

2015412 H22H 100,000,0007T

Guangzhou Linli Zhilian PRC/Mainland China/  RMB100,000,000 Construction
Technology Co., Ltd. (note (b)) 22 December 2015 and installation

BN T B (8 B AR R B R X Al FE FERNM, AR - 100 fREESRIRS
(TEMMERBER]) (HEDb)) 20145 9A2H 10,000,0007%

Guangzhou Times Linlibang PRC/Mainland China/  RMB10,000,000 Provision of
Network Technology Co., Ltd. 2 September 2014 information
("Guangzhou Times Linlibang”) technology
(note (b)) services

BMNTRABERRMBRERAF] RE S RER, AR - 100 RURRRE
(TEMTERBRIRR]) (FH5E(D)) 201948 A26H 20,000,0007T

Guangzhou Times Neighborhood PRC/Mainland China/  RMB20,000,000 Provision of
Environmental Protection 26 August 2019 environmental
Technology Co., Ltd. protection
("Guangzhou Times Neighborhood services

Environmental Protection”) (note (b))
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1. REAREEESN (&) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

MEARZER (&) Information about subsidiaries (continued)

ARG EEWNBARIZFHFBNOT ¢ Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(%) (continued)

VYN 2
MR, K ERTER RAEZAIHL
8 REEHE  REXIMBRE EE L TEEH
Percentage of
Place of Issued equity
incorporation/ ordinary/  attributable to
establishment registered the Company Principal

Name and operations share capital  Direct Indirect activities

BMTEBYEERERAT hE S HE R, AR - 100 MmEERE
(TEMERS 1) (FfEE (b)) 2006 12A6H  100,000,0007T

Guangzhou Haogqing Property PRC/Mainland China/  RMB100,000,000 Property
Services Co., Ltd. 6 December 2006 management
("Guangzhou Haoging"”) (note (b))

BMTREDEERERAT hE S HE R, AR - 100 mEEE
(TEN R ) (KE(b)) 2003%5A7H 100,000,000

Guangzhou Yaocheng Property PRC/Mainland China/  RMB100,000,000 Property
Services Co., Ltd. 7 May 2003 management
("Guangzhou Yaocheng”) (note (b))

BNTEREREERAA FE S FERM, AR - 100 BRhTE
(TEMZ L) (P (D) 20204 R17R 10,000,0007%

Guangzhou Yigizhu Home PRC/Mainland China/  RMB10,000,000 Construction
Furnishing Co., Ltd. 17 April 2020 and installation
("Guangzhou Yigizhu") (note (b))

RS ERBERAA FE RERNM, AR - 51 MEER
(I LgRiss 1) (B (b)) 2009%7R78 20,408,2007T

Shanghai Kejian Property PRC/Mainland China/  RMB20,408,200 Property
Services Co., Ltd. 7 July 2009 management
("Shanghai Kejian") (note (b))

PRABE EMITRIEBR A A RE S RERM, AR - 80 REER
(TR EaE]D (D)) 201842 A 128 20,000,0007T

Chengdu Holytech Technology Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China/  RMB20,000,000 Investment
("Chengdu Holytech”) (note (b)) 12 February 2018 holding



REAREEER (&)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

MEARZER (&) Information about subsidiaries (continued)
ARG EEWNBARIZFHFBNOT ¢ Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(%) (continued)
VYN 2
MR, K ERTER RAEZAIHL
8 REEHE  REXIMBRE EE L TEEH
Percentage of
Place of Issued equity
incorporation/ ordinary/  attributable to
establishment registered the Company Principal
Name and operations share capital  Direct Indirect activities
KEEEMTHERBEERAAF FE FERM, AR - 80 MEER
(Ta&Em%]) (b)) 2007%7R12A8 5,000,0007T
Chengdu Holytech Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China/ RMB5,000,000 Property
("Holytech Property”) (note (b)) 12 July 2007 management
KEEEAEREERDE HE RERM, ARHE - 80 MEER
(P 7E(b)) 200211 A8H 5,000,0007C
Chengdu Hezhi Business PRC/Mainland China/ RMB5,000,000 Property
Service Co., Ltd. (note (b)) 8 November 2002 management
BMNmRRBEEEERAR FE RERM, AR - 100 BmiHE
(Pt 7E(b)) 202068 A12A 51,000,000
Guangzhou Times Neighborhood PRC/Mainland China/  RMB51,000,000 Sale of goods
Xingxuan Co., Ltd. (note (b)) 12 August 2020
BNTRREEEXERERATF FE FERM, AR - 100 R R
(Bt (b)) 2020568 A7H 10,000,0007%
Guangzhou Times Neighborhood PRC/Mainland China/  RMB10,000,000 Agency service
Zhiye Management Co., Ltd. (note (b)) 7 August 2020
BMNTERBEREFRAF HE RERM, AR® - 100 B &R
(P 7E(b)) 2020 10A 16 A 10,000,0007T

Guangzhou Times Neighborhood
Advertisement Co., Ltd. (note (b))

PRC/Mainland China/
16 October 2020

RMB10,000,000
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1. REAIREBER (F) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)
MEBARZER (&) Information about subsidiaries (continued)

AAREEZMBARZFHBRT ¢

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(%) (continued)
VYN 2
ML, KL BRTEE RIEZEIL
8 REEHE  REXIMBRE EE L TEEH
Percentage of
Place of Issued equity
incorporation/ ordinary/  attributable to
establishment registered the Company Principal
Name and operations share capital  Direct Indirect activities
ERMERBERAF FE R AR - 100 BRLE
(PRt 5E (b)) 20203A128  100,000,0007T HE R g
Guangdong Times Neighborhood PRC/Mainland China/  RMB100,000,000 Installation, sale
Electromechanics Co., Ltd. (note (b)) 12 March 2020 and maintenance
of elevators
BMTRABEEMTIRERAHE hE S HREA, AR - 100 Bk
(Pt 5T (b)) 202098 A178H  10,000,00070
Guangzhou Times Neighborhood PRC/Mainland China/  RMB10,000,000 Construction
Decoration Engineering 17 August 2020 and installation
Co., Ltd. (note (b))
BLUTRRBELHTRERAF hE S hE R, AR - 100 BRRLE
(Fit=E(b)) 202012 A28H 10,000,0007T
Foshan Times Neighborhood PRC/Mainland China/  RMB10,000,000 Construction
Decoration Engineering 28 December 2020 and installation
Co., Ltd. (note (b))
BEEBHBRAERAR (FEEH]) HE RERM, AR® - 100 BEBEED
(Bt % (c)) 202147 A20R 2,000,0007T
Hainan Qi Lin Technology Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China/ RMB2,000,000 Value-added
("Hainan Qi Lin") (note (c)) 20 July 2021 telecommunications
business
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1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(continued)

The English names of all group companies registered in the PRC
represent the best efforts made by the directors of the Company
to translate the Chinese names of these companies as they do
not have any official English names.

Notes:

(@)  Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the laws of
the PRC

(b)  Registered as domestic enterprises under the laws of the PRC

() Owned through contractual arrangements

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
(which include all International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for certain financial assets which have been
measured at fair value. These financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB") and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2021.

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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22 B BEREHRIKE 2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
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DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the first
time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
IAS 39, IFRS 7, Reform — Phase 2
IFRS 4 and IFRS 16

Amendment to IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021 (early adopted)

Other than as explained below regarding the impact of
Amendment to IFRS 16, the adoption of the above revised
standards has had no significant financial effect on these
consolidated financial statements.

Amendment to IFRS 16 issued in March 2021 extends the
availability of the practical expedient for lessees to elect not
to apply lease modification accounting for rent concessions
arising as a direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic by
12 months. Accordingly, the practical expedient applies to
rent concessions for which any reduction in lease payments
affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June
2022, provided the other conditions for applying the practical
expedient are met. The amendment is effective retrospectively
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021 with any
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendment recognised
as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits
at the beginning of the current accounting period. Earlier
application is permitted.

The Group has early adopted the amendment on 1 January
2021 and applied the practical expedient during the year
ended 31 December 2021 to all rent concessions granted by
the lessors that affected only payments originally due on or
before 30 June 2022 as a direct consequence of the Covid-19
pandemic. A reduction in the lease payments arising from the
rent concessions of RMB253,000 has been accounted for as
a variable lease payment by derecognising part of the lease
liabilities and crediting to profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2021. There was no impact on the opening balance
of equity as at 1 January 2021.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.
Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to IFRS 10
and I1AS 28

IFRS 17
Amendments to IFRS 17

Amendment to IFRS 17

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1 and
IFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 12
Amendments to IAS 16
Amendments to IAS 37

Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2018-2020

Reference to the Conceptual Framework’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture’

Insurance Contracts’
Insurance Contract**

Initial Application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 - Comparative
Informatior’

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-curren?
Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

Definition of Accounting Estimates’
Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from
a Single Transactior?
Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use'
Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract’

Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying IFRS 16, and IAS 41
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230 RMEEARERNWEE  2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSS

= = -

B3R E2E R () (continued)

! M2022F 1 A1 B ZZFABHF g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
S HAR A3

2 M2023F1 A1 B ZZFABHF 2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
S HAR A3

3 i R TE SR H A B HY - BRI LAER 2 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
ol adoption

¢ B P B BR B 7 5 5 2 A %17%{‘% 8 As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issued in June
IR 2020F 6 A MM - BRI 2020, IFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption
WELRFBAFIEL BT AERY that permits insurers to apply IAS 39 rather than IFRS 9 for annual
Fr#it - ARTRE R FIN20234F1 periods beginning before 1 January 2023

H1 B Z 31 %6 e 2 HI R e R
R & 5t 8 I 5 39 5% M 3F B R B 7%
HEAERIE IR

AEEFENFHEREAZENE] The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
R TR B RS ENNR impact of these new and revised IFRSs upon initial application.

2 -HZEER  AEBERAEZEH So far, the Group considers that these new and revised IFRSs

I RSB RTBIRR Br s s 5 2 Bl sk & may result in changes in accounting policies but are unlikely to

BYETHRES  BEFgHAE have a significant impact on the Group's results of operations

ENKEEERVBRRAEEERX and financial position.

S

%~
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES
Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investments in associates is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's share
of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates is included in the
consolidated statements of profit or loss and consolidated other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there has
been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate,
the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable,
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised
gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
investments in associates, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree's
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair
value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of
this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value
of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of
units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its certain financial assets at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or
the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, contract assets, financial assets and deferred
tax assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-
generating unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying amount
of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated
to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest
group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each of the reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount
is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary
of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies: (continued)

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Building 5%
Leasehold improvements 18% to 50%
Motor vehicles 19% to 32%
Office equipment 10% to 48%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents office equipment under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.
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POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and
the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Software, contract costs and licences

Software, contract cost and licenses are stated at cost less any
impairment loss and are amortised on the straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives of 5 to 10 years.

Property management contracts and customer
relationships

Property management contracts and customer relationships
acquired in business combinations are recognised at fair value
at the acquisition date. The property management contracts and
customer relationships have a finite useful life and are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method over the expected useful lives of
the respective contracts of 2 to 20 years.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)
Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources
to complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is expensed
when incurred.

Development cost is stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Development cost not yet available for use is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may
be impaired. Development cost is reclassified to software when
available for use.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The
cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets as
follows:

Buildings
Motor vehicles

2 to 10 years
3 to 5 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)
(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate
the lease. The variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease
is not readily determinable. After the commencement date,
the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate)
or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.
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POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of certain buildings
and motor vehicles (that is those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the
recognition exemption for leases of low-value assets to
leases of office equipment that is considered to be of low
value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception
(or when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as
either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains
lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in
revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating
nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)
Group as a lessor (continued)

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are
accounted for as finance leases. At the commencement date,
the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present value of
the lease payments and related payments (including the initial
direct costs), and presented as a receivable at an amount equal
to the net investment in the lease. The finance income on the
net investment in the lease is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss so as to provide a constant periodic rate of return
over the lease terms.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, a sublease is classified
as a finance lease or operating lease with reference to the right-
of-use asset arising from the head lease. If the head lease is
a short-term lease to which the Group applies the on-balance
sheet recognition exemption, the Group classifies the sublease
as an operating lease.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost and fair value through
profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Group's business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs.
Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient are measured at the transaction price determined
under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit
or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate
cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows
will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the
financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured
at amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income are held within
a business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not
held within the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement.

In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that
result from default events that are possible within the next
12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At the end of each of the reporting period, the Group assesses
whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date
of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 30 days or 180 days past due. However, in certain
cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in
default when internal or external information indicates that the
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts
in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held
by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified
approach as detailed below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

Stage 1 Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach
in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables and contract assets that contain a
significant financing component, the Group chooses as its
accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs with policies as described above.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial

liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of payables, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
financial liability for a put option written on non-controlling
interests and lease liabilities.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. Gains
or losses on liabilities designated at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised in the statement of profit or loss, except
for the gains or losses arising from the Group’s own credit risk
which are presented in other comprehensive income with no
subsequent reclassification to the statement of profit or loss. The
net fair value gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit
or loss does not include any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Trade and other payables are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit
or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Shares held for the share award scheme

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held by the
Company or the Group under the share award scheme are
recognised directly in equity at cost. No gain or loss is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net
realisable value is based on the estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks which are not restricted as to use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
each reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o where the deferred tax liabilities arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

o where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity
or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited
to a deferred income account and is released to the statement
of profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant
asset by equal annual instalments or deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and released to the statement of profit or
loss by way of a reduced depreciation charge.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods and services is transferred to the customer at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods and services.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in IFRS 15.

(a) Property management services

For property management services, the Group bills a fixed
amount for services provided on a monthly or quarterly
basis and recognises it as revenue in the amount to which
the Group has a right to invoice and that corresponds
directly with the value of performance completed.

For property management services income from properties
managed under a lump sum basis, where the Group acts
as a principal and is primarily responsible for providing the
property management services to the property owners,
the Group recognises the fee received or receivable from
property owners as its revenue and all related property
management costs as its cost of services.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(b)

Value-added services to non-property owners

Value-added services to non-property owners mainly
include construction site services, sales assistance services,
pre-delivery cleaning services, construction and installation
services and brokerage services provided to non-property
owners. The Group agrees the price for each service with
the customers upfront and issues the monthly bill to the
customers which varies based on the actual level of services
completed in that month. Revenue from value-added
services to non-property owners except for brokerage
services is recognised over time when the services are
rendered. Revenue from brokerage services is recognised
at a point in time when a buyer/lessee and a seller/lessor
execute a legally binding agreement and the performance
obligations are satisfied.

Community value-added services

Community value-added services mainly include daily value-
added services and brokerage services provided to property
owners and residents and the sale of goods. Revenue from
daily services is recognised when the services are rendered.
Revenue from brokerage services is recognised at a point
in time when a buyer/lessee and a seller/lessor execute a
legally binding agreement and performance obligations are
satisfied. Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at
the point in time when control of the asset is transferred
to the customer. Payment of the transaction is due
immediately when the community value-added services are
rendered to the customer.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(d)  Professional services

Professional services mainly include the installation, sale
and maintenance of elevators, intelligent engineering and
municipal sanitation. Revenue from sales commission, and
the sale of elevators and elevator parts is recognised at the
point in time when control of the asset is transferred to
the end customer and revenue from the provision of other
professional services is recognised when the services are
rendered. The Group agrees the price for each service with
the customers upfront and issues the bills to the customers
which vary based on the actual level of services completed
in that month.

Other income

Interest income is recognised, on an accrual basis, using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument of the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for
goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Group
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before
the customer pays consideration or before payment is due,
a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration
that is conditional. Contract assets are subject to impairment
assessment, details of which are included in the accounting
policies for impairment of financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services
to the customer).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as intangible assets,
costs incurred to fulfil a contract with a customer are capitalised
as an asset if all of the following criteria are met:

(@) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the entity can specifically identify.

(b) The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)
performance obligations in the future.

(c) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to
the statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis that is
consistent with the transfer to the customer of the goods or
services to which the asset relates. Other contract costs are
expensed as incurred.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share award scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is measured by reference
to the fair value at the date at which they are granted. Further
details of fair values are given in note 30 to the financial
statements.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in
equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group's best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the statement of profit or loss for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken
into account when determining the grant date fair value of
awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is
assessed as part of the Group's best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance
conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value.
Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting
conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value
of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award
unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition
is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

Other employee benefits
Pension scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain proportion
of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Other employee benefits (continued)
Pension scheme (continued)

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for the
employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the statement of
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Housing funds, medical insurances and other social
insurances

Employees of the Group in Mainland China are entitled to
participate in various government-supervised housing funds,
medical insurances and other social insurance plan. The Group
contributes on a monthly basis to these funds based on certain
percentages of the salaries of the employees on a monthly basis.
The Group's liability in respect of these funds is limited to the
contribution payable in each year. Contributions to the housing
funds, medical insurances and other social insurances are
expensed as incurred.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.
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POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies

The functional currency of the Company is the Hong Kong
Dollar while the presentation currency of the Company for
the financial statements is the RMB. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial information of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss from change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currency of the Group’s overseas subsidiaries
is HKD. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets
and liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their profit or loss are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates that approximate to those prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the exchange reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation,
the component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into RMB
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart from
those involving estimations, which has the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. Further details are included in note 19 to these
financial statements.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amount of goodwill was RMB562,909,000 (2020:
RMB283,957,000) as at 31 December 2021. Further details are
given in note 16.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwiill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Other non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the net carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when
the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds
its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less
costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the
fair value less costs of disposal is based on available data from
binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of
similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value-in-use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected future
cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., customer type and service type).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. At each reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
(continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group’s
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of a customer’s
actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs on
the Group's trade receivables is disclosed in note 21 to these
financial statements.

Useful lives of software, property management
contracts and customer relationships

The estimate of the useful life of software is based on the
purchase contract indicating that the Group can use the software
in 10 years, or in the case where no validity period is stipulated
in the purchase contract, the historical experience of the actual
useful life of software of a similar nature and functions which is
5 years.

The estimate of the useful lives of property management
contracts is based on the validity period of property management
contracts from 2 years to 8 years or, in the case where no
validity period is stipulated in the property management
contracts, the historical experience of the period of 20 years for
which the Group was engaged to provide similar services. The
estimate of the useful lives of customer relationships is based on
the historical customer attrition rates of the respective acquirees.
The estimates based on historical experience are updated as
necessary if more relevant historical experience is obtained.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Fair value assessment of the identified property
management contracts and customer relationships
and the recognition of goodwill arising from business
combinations

Significant judgements and estimates were involved in the
fair value assessment of the identified property management
contracts and customer relationships and the recognition of
goodwill arising from business combinations. These significant
judgements and estimates include the adoption of appropriate
valuation methodologies and the use of key assumptions in
the valuation (mainly annual revenue growth rates, gross profit
margins, discount rates and expected useful lives of the property
management contracts and customer relationships). See notes
16 and 32 for more details.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is engaged in the provision of property management
services, value-added services to non-property owners,
community value-added services and professional services.
Information reported to the Group’s chief operating decision
maker, for the purpose of resource allocation and performance
assessment, focuses on the operating results of the Group as a
whole as the Group's resources are integrated and no discrete
operating segment information is available. Accordingly, no
operating segment information is presented.

Geographical information

The Group’s revenue from external customers is derived
solely from its operation in Mainland China. Except for
certain property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
amounting to HKD3,997,000 (approximately equivalent to
RMB3,268,000) (2020: HKD13,000 (approximately equivalent
to RMB11,000)), the Group’s non-current assets are located in
Mainland China.
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3THIEFERARI10%A E -

5. WA - EEAE
EEAHUA
(a) DIHFWAER

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Information about major customers

For the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue from Times
China Holdings Limited (the “Times China”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Times China Group”) contributed 21.7% (2020: 24.6%)
to the Group's revenue. Other than the revenue from the Times
China Group, no revenue derived from sales to a single customer
or a group of customers under common control accounted for
10% or more of the Group's revenue for the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020.

5. REVENUE, CONTRACT LIABILITIES
Revenue from contracts with customers

(a) Disaggregated revenue information

20214%F 20204
2021 2020
AR®T T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
BERF I E BRI ¢ Services transferred over time:
Y E IR IRTE Property management services 1,576,671 1,009,483
JE E IR E RIS Value-added services to
non-property owners 367,598 393,700
tt R IEE RS Community value-added services 437,639 135,474
HERK Professional services 145,387 107,259
2,527,295 1,645,916
RE—SEXEEEM ! Goods transferred at a point in time:
FEE F IR ERTS Value-added services to
non-property owners 29,318 28,496
12 BB AR TS Community value-added services 109,505 50,679
HERS Professional services 53,629 33,336
192,452 112,511
2,719,747 1,758,427
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5. WA - EEEE (&) 5. REVENUE, CONTRACT LIABILITIES

(continued)
EFEHBA (&) Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(a) ZHFBAER (&) (a) Disaggregated revenue information (continued)
2RIAE Contract liabilities
AR ERERIA T R A KRR The Group recognised the following revenue-related
ERARE - contract liabilities:
12A31H 1H1H
31 December 1 January
20215 20204 20204
2021 2020 2020
AR®ETF T ARETT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
aR&EE Contract liabilities
—%£=F — Third parties 126,448 122,620 171,221
— [FAH - Related parties 1,577 9,111 2,393
128,025 131,731 173,614
ARENERAEEIRKRA M Contract liabilities of the Group mainly arise from the
KR £ 48 B AR ﬁ%\ﬁ'ﬂ BREF receipt in advance from customers when the underlying
A - é\ﬁ%{ﬁﬁ’i\zom iﬁ services are yet to be provided. The decrease in contract
Zozo;gﬁﬁﬁﬁ?ﬂfgmﬁéﬁé liabilities in 2021 and 2020 was mainly due to the decrease
iﬂifﬁﬁf‘ﬂ@iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ@ in short-term advances received from customers in relation
B P UCER Y A2 5 B 5 PR to the provision of property management services at the
PR - end of the year.
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5. WA - aREME (#) 5. REVENUE, CONTRACT LIABILITIES
(continued)
EFEHWA (&) Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(a) ZIHFWAESR (&) (a) Disaggregated revenue information (continued)
&SRB E (&) Contract liabilities (continued)
RBFEBAREERBERERA The expected timing of contract liabilities that would be
WARTEHAR BT - recognised as revenue at the end of the reporting period is
as follows:

12A31H 1HA1H

31 December 1 January

20214 20204 20204

2021 2020 2020

AR®ETF T ARETT ARETT

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000

—F PR Within one year 106,702 100,142 108,292

—FpE Over one year 21,323 31,589 65,322

128,025 131,731 173,614
TRBETRAREHOERAE The following table shows the amount of revenue
BEMR AR E B AEZO WA recognised in the current reporting period that was
$%F included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the

reporting period:

2021%F 20204

2021 2020

AR¥TR ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’000

Y E IR Property management services 100,142 108,292
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5. WA - eRE&E (&)

EFEHBA (&)

(b)

BEREE

TR A EEOE
AR

YFEIEIRE

rEBEREREAERENESTE
BRI - ZBRAEEEAE
Biz5 BIEE ARRERER
BAWEEBLEE - M 5uR
BREZERHRBF30E90HA
Bt - AEEEEEAIT
EEAE THEBEZEEAS
HFRBRBEOER - KDY
*¥EEREEBETEHR -

FEE T EIRFE

FEFHERSEERIERIE
ETRHNETIRSRE - W
ﬁﬁﬂlﬁ% - FARBRRG - ER

BERAS A R B 4L AR 7% o —
ﬂ Q%ﬂ?LﬂKEITﬁ
FHERBE - MFEFETRMEE
TIRBERB R EREHE L
HiR BN & 41 - ARIERR
% BERRTEREIRER
MAEE  BRSEHEER
BITERBITHNENEM - &
REFRBFESIHEAER
BHETIREMFZE - BiA
EBITIEA S (L0 BE R
7
LR AIE AEBRYE
M EEH B EE R ER
%o REBERER EEA
HMER HBEAZTAGERE
HWRINBELBITEOET
RIS BERERR, ©

B IR 5 IR B AR 75 A BE A 15 3R
BEREE PR RS2
Xfte

5. REVENUE, CONTRACT LIABILITIES
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(b) Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Property management services

The Group recognises revenue in the amount that equals
the right to invoice which corresponds directly with the
value to the customer of the Group’s performance to date
on a monthly or quarterly basis and payment is generally
due within 30 to 90 days from the billing date. The Group
has elected the practical expedient for not disclosing
the remaining performance obligations for these types
of contracts. The majority of the property management
services do not have a fixed term.

Value-added services to non-property owners

Value-added services to non-property owners mainly
include construction site services, sales assistance services,
pre-delivery cleaning services, construction and installation
services and brokerage services provided to non-property
owners. The term of the contracts for construction site
services and sales assistance services to non-property
owners is generally set to expire when the counterparties
notify the Group that the services are no longer required.
Pre-delivery cleaning services, construction and installation
services are rendered in a short period of time and there
were no unsatisfied performance obligations at the end of
the respective periods. As the customers simultaneously
receive and consume the benefits provided by the Group's
performance, thus the revenue is recognised over time
when the performance obligations are satisfied.

For brokerage services, the Group provides sales and rental
assistance services to property developers. Brokerage
commission is recognised at a point in time when a
buyer/lessee and a seller/lessor execute a legally binding
agreement and the performance obligations are satisfied.

The payment for value-added services to non-property
owners is generally due when the services are rendered to
the customer.
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5. WA - eRE&E (&)

=3

BHWA (&)

(b) EWEE (&)

B ERT

BRA % E KRR RIEHE LIRS
AR EmEEIN  LRIBER
BRBE T —FOERREA
R4t BN S EMEEREL
BABITHENEL - BZE
HEEREREARONKER
R TR % P 4R AR 75 B BB S
o

RELMenEn / AEAEER
7/ HBABETAGEENR
N WA R AT X B E R K
FEER - NRBAEFRAEP
PR AR B BB ST A o

B E WA B EE G
BEEPHRREAER - 3K
BERA1%30290 H AN EIH
A e

BXIRF

HEMS UL ER R EHIME
HERAREEZ I #ERE
B EP R REEER - I3
BERRA1%30E90HRNEIH
AT e

RHE M F X R B AR LR
HRGRER  B—RERS
HFBAAEETBRERE
B HERRGNE QAR
AERLE - NRBERAZP
PRt ARG RS BB ST A o

5. REVENUE, CONTRACT LIABILITIES
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(b) Performance obligations (continued)
Community value-added services

The community value-added services except for brokerage
services provided to property owners and residents and
sale of goods are rendered in a short period of time which
is generally less than a year and there was no unsatisfied
performance obligation at the end of the respective
periods. The payment for such community value-added
services is generally due when the services are rendered to
the customer.

Brokerage commission is recognised at a point in time
when a buyer/lessee and a seller/lessor execute a legally
binding agreement and the performance obligations are
satisfied. The payment is generally due when the services
are rendered to the customer.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point
in time when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer. The payment is generally due within 30 to 90
days from delivery.

Professional services

Revenue from sales commission, and the sale of elevators
and elevator parts is recognised at the point in time when
control of the asset is transferred to the end customer.
The payment is generally due within 30 to 90 days from
delivery.

Revenue from the provision of other professional services
is recognised when the services are rendered and the
terms of the contracts for other professional services are
generally set to expire when the counterparties notify
the Group that the services are no longer required. The
payment is generally due when the services are rendered
to the customer.
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6. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

An analysis of other income and gains is as follows:

20214 20204

2021 2020

AR®T ARBET T

RMB’000 RMB’'000

IRITHBULA Bank interest income 3,837 10,570
HENARREBEFELFA Gain on disposal of financial assets at

BanemEENWRE fair value through profit or loss 5,328 4,338

AT B Government grants 18,707 2,632

RERRFESR Tax incentives on value-added tax 7,654 4,660

HAh Others 2,582 1,346

38,108 23,546

AEEESHBAMBEZANE
MR EFEmME - SERZFME
BRARNRERIGFHHAEH

The government grants obtained by the Group were primarily
anti-pandemic subsidies and employment subsidies. There are no
unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these grants.
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7. BRBLBIFIE 7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
REBBRFATFEEME /(5 The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/
AN) AN ZIE B PTEE (crediting):
ft a7t 202145 20204
Notes 2021 2020
ARBT R AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
IR AR TSR AN * Cost of services provided* 1,863,763 1,174,524
EHEHEFTERA Cost of inventories sold 113,924 52,855
ME - BERZETE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 14 17,718 10,226
FRHEEERE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 15(a) 6,816 4,983
HAh S B B i Amortisation of other intangible assets 17 41,239 12,693
TR - Research and development costs:
BRIFEX N Current year expenditure 4,739 3,233
EEHRE S Deferred expenditure amortised** 2,407 1,647
1% B B 35 B Auditor’s remuneration 2,699 2,498
EERMAX (EFK Employee benefit expense
B={THAB® (excluding directors’ and chief
RN (F17E9)) - executive’s remuneration (note 9)):
TERES Wages and salaries 804,561 618,342
RIREFT B R~ Pension scheme contributions*** 87,005 27,298
LA HEE 48 B O AR 1 228D Equity-settled share award
FTEIFRX scheme expense 3,921 530
B At EEEEE AR Less: Amount capitalised in
k- other intangible assets (20,669) (2,487)
874,818 643,683
TR REREEDHER Net impairment losses recognised/(reversed)
(R MR EE B8 on financial and contract assets
— FEWE Z IR — Trade receivables 21 10,832 (1,247)
—&RAE — Contract assets 22 (389) 3,401
10,443 2,154
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BR % A0 RE (&) 7.

AL BB A FE LM (G
A) AT BIR B PESR « ()

PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued)

The Group’'s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

(crediting): (continued)

ft a7t 202145 20204
Notes 2021 2020
AR®T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
HEMY Rental expense
—REHHEE — Short-term leases 15(c) 15,298 13,578
—KEEEEHE — Leases of low-value assets 15(c) 837 703
16,135 14,281
RITHBUA Bank interest income 6 (3,837) (10,570)
BT B Government grants 6 (18,707) (2,632)
HEUAREEZEWEA  Gain on disposal of financial assets at
BamemEEMRE fair value through profit or loss 6 (5.328) (4,338)
FEEBAEHEMMNALKLE Compensation paid for contract
Xz H B E termination for business combination 30,000 =

& FREBREREAA (BRIERER
AR - WE - BERKETE -
HEMEFEERMEHAERS) S
FAR®716,919,0007T (2020
£ AR¥560,880,0007T) ° %
SHELBEE FXEENSERS
HEF ©

> RITEAXAERNE B HETE
HIRET AR EL EE S

e WRDORUHRAT AN R EIER R
ERRRER A HBUKFE

RRAA 8.

* Kk k

Cost of services provided for the year included an aggregate
amount of RMB716,919,000 (2020: RMB560,880,000) which
comprised employee benefit expense, depreciation of property,
plant and equipment, amortisation of other intangible assets and
rental expense. This amount was also included in the respective
expense items disclosed above.

Deferred expenditure amortised recognised in the administrative
expenses was also included in the amortisation of other intangible
assets.

There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by
the Group as the employer to reduce the existing level of
contributions.

FINANCE COSTS

2021%F 20204

2021 2020

AR¥TR ARKETFTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

HEBENFEMX Interest expense on lease liabilities 1,252 1,071
WAEHEENTBRX Interest expense arising from

revenue contracts 2,096 7,250

3,348 8,321
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9. EEREESTHAEMNEH 9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

M REMUNERATION

BEETMRA - BEERFTEHE Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
383(1)(a) * (b) * (o) R (F)E KA (H# disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b),
BESMN=ER) AOE28EED (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2
FRESENESTHRABHHOT - of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of

Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2021%F 20204
2021 2020
ARETT ARBTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
e Fee 900 900
HAth N - Other emoluments:
e ERENREYEH Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 4,655 2,873
BRAEEES Performance-related bonuses 3,754 2,145
VARG HE 45 B YR 1 SR Eh &t 2 F 2 Equity-settled share
award scheme expense 1,616 212
RIS EIEK Pension scheme contributions 320 148
10,345 5,378
&t Total 11,245 6,278
ETEZREBRARARG RBENT Certain directors were granted share awards, in respect of their
SR BEEMAEEREEAORBER services to the Group, under the share award scheme of the
TR - HE—FEHNY Company, further details of which are set out in note 30 to
BHREME30 - ERNFEBHARIE the financial statements. The fair value of such shares, which
HmERBRNZEROMOAAEER has been recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the
BREHBHET  MmAFEMBRRE vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant and the
FrEi et A Ll EEREEITH amount included in the financial statements for the current
ANEBH B E - year is included in the above directors’ and chief executive's

remuneration disclosures.
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

&) REMUNERATION (continued)
BIkHTES (a) Independent non-executive directors
BUERTESNFERS T The fees paid to independent non-executive directors
™ during the year were as follows:
2021%F 20204F
2021 2020
AR¥T T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BB E Mr. Lui Shing Ming, Brain 300 300
HIKEL Dr. Wong Kong Tin 300 300
N EELT Dr. Chu Xiaoping 300 300
9200 900
FRLEBENBLIFRITES There were no other emoluments payable to the
R E BN (20204F : &) independent non-executive directors during the year (2020:

Nil).
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9. EERBEITHAENH 9.

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

B (%) REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) EERBETHAER (b) Directors and the chief executive
20214 2021
e 2E B URELEN Bk
RENEF HE%E RORBEX HE N FMes
Salaries, Equity-
allowances Performance- settled Pension
and benefits related share award scheme Total
in kind bonuses expense contributions remuneration
ARETR AR®TR ARETR ARBETR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
WIESERER Executive director and
THAR : chief executive:
Izt Ms. Wang Meng 2,647 2,677 404 80 5,808
WTES: Executive directors:
HRRFEAE Mr. Yao Xusheng 724 337 404 80 1,545
HgExt Ms. Xie Rao 623 342 404 80 1,449
Elik:en Ms. Zhou Rui 661 398 404 80 1,543
2,008 1,077 1,212 240 4,537
FHTES Non-executive directors:
B E Mr. Bai Xihong - - - - -
Foghs Mr. Li Qiang - - - - _
4,655 3,754 1,616 320 10,345
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9. EENEBSITHRAEWNE 9.

M (%)
(b) EERBETHAS (H)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S
REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Directors and the chief executive (continued)

20204 2020
E D= B UARESEER B
REMER HERE RHEBHS HESA e
Salaries, Equity-
allowances Performance- settled Pension
and benefits related  share award scheme Total
in kind bonuses expense contributions remuneration
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARBTRT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BITEERER Executive director and
THAER : chief executive:
Tt Ms. Wang Meng 1,244 1,240 53 40 2,577
WITESE - Executive directors:
HerB Ao & Mr. Yao Xusheng 621 296 53 34 1,004
ATt Ms. Xie Rao 488 314 53 34 889
|Gk Ms. Zhou Rui 520 295 53 40 908
1,629 905 159 108 2,801
ERTES Non-executive directors:
Bt Mr. Bai Xihong = - - - _
e Y Mr. Li Qiang = = = = =
2,873 2,145 212 148 5,378

FAMEBEEERRITHRASR
WESRERETAFMHNL
BE(20204F : &) -

There was no arrangement under which a director
or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year (2020: Nil).
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10. EEREFHES 10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
FAN - hEEaFHEERE—% The five highest paid employees during the year included the
EE{THAER (2020 : =REBEK chief executive (2020: three directors and the chief executive),
EETBAER) EEFHMFEESR details of whose remuneration are set out in note 9 above.
EXMtEE9 o A - BRI (2020 Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining four
F:—R)EeFMEES GEARA (2020: one) highest paid employees who are neither a director
EEAERITHRAR) OHMFIEN nor chief executive of the Company are as follows:
S 8
20214 20204
2021 2020
AR®T T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
I R REYET Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 4,509 493
ERERE RS Performance-related bonuses 1,769 284
LA HEE 485 B 0 RR 1 22BN 7 2 Equity-settled share award expense 808 40
RS ET B Pension scheme contributions 61 6
a5t Total 7,147 823
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10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
(continued)

10. EBREFHMES (&)

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following

HFMUNATEENIFEE RIER
BITBABNZSFHMES AN

T bands is as follows:
BEAZ
Number of employees

2021%F 20204
2021 2020
£ %1,000,0008 7T Nil to HKD1,000,000 - 1
1,500,001 7C 22,000,000 7T HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 3 =
2,000,001#7C%2,500,000% 7T HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000 1 -
4 1

IETHESRERRITRAER
= MEES B ASE RN RS M
RBEFERMERENBROZ AR
BE(EEXGBHARIBaRE
R)NBELBEREE - MEARAFE
ZHMBHRERZ BN LA IFFE
ENEERRITBRAERSFHES
ZHMEES - AR REE S
M — S F BN M BRI 30
M EEF -

REARBEFE  BEZSHH
BREMEXRERELMAFH - B
AEEYEBAZESIREEABX
ERFBMESEMARIMAKRSE
1% By SR B Sk RE B 1B

The fair value of shares granted to certain non-director and non-
chief executive highest paid employees in prior years in respect
of their services to the Group, which has been recognised in
the statement of profit or loss over the vesting period, was
determined as at the date of grant and the amount included
in the financial statements for the current year is included in
the above non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees’ remuneration disclosures. Further details of the share
award scheme are included in the disclosures in note 30 to the
financial statements.

During the year and in prior years, no highest paid employees
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration and no
remuneration was paid by the Group to these members of senior
management personnel as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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11. Fi8#H 11. INCOME TAX

AREBARASENKE RBAER
REMENBBRZEERELS S
FIGHMNBERERBEEHSMNAMG
B RERNESEHEN BB RE
EMRARER  RHASHERRE
BHEBAREEEMKINAEERN
MEREBAMNTORER - A%
BREEEBBAEREN  BER
FEYENEEEE TR
A e

ANE BB R KSR E R T
BN RE IR 25% AP B EHE
BMOTEEMRER]) BEAT - B©
2021F K2020%F » REBERFRHA
HEENETHB AR ZEX15%%K
20% KB B EMREHEE -

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits
arising in or derived from the tax jurisdictions in which members
of the Group are domiciled and operate. Pursuant to the rules
and regulations of the Cayman Islands and BVI, the entities of
the Group which were incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
BVI are not subject to any income tax. The Group was not liable
for income tax in Hong Kong as the Group did not have any
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year.

Subsidiaries of the Group operating in Mainland China are
subject to the PRC corporate income tax (“CIT”) rate of 25% for
the reporting period. Certain subsidiaries of the Group operating
in Mainland China enjoyed a preferential CIT rate of 15% or
20% during 2021 and 2020.

20214 20204

2021 2020

ARET T AREF T

RMB’000 RMB’'000

BVERFTS Current income tax 110,326 81,351
BEEFTSH (F15E19) Deferred income tax (note 19) (670) (1,486)
FAT B Total tax charge for the year 109,656 79,865
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11. INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which the
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to
the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as follows:

20215 20204
2021 2020
AR®T % ARETT %
RMB’000 % RMB'000 %
BRI AT FIE Profit before tax 443,793 316,739
WEATERERFEMHE  Tax at the statutory tax rate 110,948 25.0 79,185 25.0
H77 EPIMEME Lower tax rates enacted
BEHE by local authorities (10,471) (2.4) (1,296) (0.4)
BERRAIHBER Tax incentives on eligible expenses (1,498) (0.3) (2,449) (0.8)
—ME L AR EMLFIE  Profit attributable to an associate (1,371) (0.3) (525) (0.2)
LIkt ba Expenses not deductible for tax 6,727 1.5 4,701 1.5
RERTIEEE Tax losses not recognised 371 0.1 249 0.1
BB A B AR DR Taxes on undistributed profits of
FEzHIE the subsidiaries in the PRC 4,950 1.1 = =
BEAREERBIX Tax charge at the Group's
HENRE effective rate 109,656 24.7 79,865 25.2
B 12. DIVIDENDS

EEERZAZT2021F12A31H
FFERABRESRLERARE
4.7% Bt AR¥46,327,0007T
(20204 : AR#69,983,0007T) °

FERRK < R EBERNREK
RREBRITHRRBFRS L4t
R - TTRIEE -

The board of directors recommended a final dividend of RMB4.7
cents per ordinary share totalling RMB46,327,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: RMB69,983,000).

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.
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20214 12H31H 31 December 2021

1B3.BRAREEESFAAR
EERER

EREXRBFEBIIRES QA
TERSFAABGFEEFNBA
FFEEEBITETBERAMNETF
##982,323,000% (20204 :
942,845,0000%) 5+ °

BREAREERM LA TEUR

| A

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the parent and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 982,323,000 (2020: 942,845,000) in issue during the
year.

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based on:

Al -
2021F 20204
2021 2020
B Earnings
BRAREBEREA ARG Profit attributable to ordinary equity
FMEARETT) holders of the parent (RMB'000) 308,000 232,606
AR 17 Shares
FREEITEBRA INE Weighted average number of ordinary
T (AFED) shares in issue during the year
(in thousand) 982,323 942,845
BRAR Earnings per share
EXREE (FRARED) Basic and diluted (RMB cents per share) 31 25

R FT Ko A B 40 SR B FT 8145 B O AR
MHBERT  SRETRNEESR
PTIg N - Bk A SRR AT 8135 B /Y
BOHERNERERNBN AR RE
SBUE - R EEREETERNEZ
BETET

Since the diluted earnings per share amount is increased when
taking shares held for the share award scheme into account,
the shares held for the share award scheme had an anti-dilutive
effect on the basic earnings per share for the year and were
ignored in the calculation of diluted earnings per share.
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14. Y% - BMERRE 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

BT HENELE nE BARE ERIR &3t
Leasehold Motor Office  Construction
Building improvements vehicles  equipment in progress Total

AR®TR  AR®TR  AR®TR  AREBTR AR®TR  AR®TR
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

2021512A318 31 December 2021
R021E1 /18 At 1 January 2021:
R Cost - 22,362 4,531 48,510 6,867 82,270
2ithE Accumulated depreciation - (11,548) (1,096) (17,695) - (30,339)
REFE Net carrying amount - 10,814 3,435 30,815 6,867 51,931
R2021E1 818 At 1 January 2021, net of
EMBRZsNE accumulated depreciation - 10,814 3,435 30,815 6,867 51,931
nE Additions - 4,179 2,592 8,765 3,936 19,472
WEEMB AR (F15E32)  Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 32) 43,047 1,051 769 1473 - 46,340
ik Disposals (387) - (214) (125) (4,083) (4,809)
g7 Transfer - - - 2,859 (2,859) -
FREHRNE Depreciation provided during the year (2,024) (7,355) (1,437) (6,902) - (17,718)
M2021%€12A318 At 31 December 2021, net of
BB ZHE accumulated depreciation 40,636 8,689 5,145 36,885 3,861 95,216
®2021F128318 © At 31 December 2021:
A Cost 42,660 27,592 6,750 60,873 3,861 141,736
2itir& Accumulated depreciation (2,024) (18,903) (1,605) (23,988) - (46,520)
REFE Net carrying amount 40,636 8,689 5,145 36,885 3,861 95,216
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14. Y13 - BEREE (E&) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
HEMERE AE NS TRTE At
Leasehold Motor Office  Construction
improvements vehicles equipment in progress Total

ARBTT ARETE ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

20205128311 31 December 2020

R202061 718 : At 1 January 2020:

KA Cost 18,649 1,945 35,806 = 56,400
ZiHE Accumulated depreciation (7,298) 912) (12,727) = (20,937)
EEFE Net carrying amount 11,351 1,033 23,079 - 35,463

R202051 418 - At 1 January 2020, net of

Bk REE accumulated depreciation 11,351 1,033 23,079 = 35,463
RE Additions 3,317 2,509 11,608 2,784 20,218
YRR B A7) Acquisitions of subsidiaries 396 782 1,275 4,083 6,536
& Disposals - (49) (1) = (60)
FRERITE Depreciation provided during the year (4,250) (840) (5,136) = (10,226)
#2020F12 8318 At 31 December 2020, net of

BB ERENE accumulated depreciation 10,814 3,435 30,815 6,867 51,931
720209128318 ¢ At 31 December 2020:

AR Cost 22,362 4,531 48,510 6,867 82,270

ZEME Accumulated depreciation (11,548) (1,096) (17,695) = (30,339)

REFE Net carrying amount 10,814 3,435 30,815 6,867 51,931
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15. #HE 15. LEASES

rEBEEREABEA The Group as a lessee
AEEERARHEXEBEENET - The Group has lease contracts for various items of buildings,
AERBARBELEBENHEES motor vehicles and office equipment used in its operations.
B BFHEHELHBBER2E10 Leases of buildings generally have lease terms between 2 and 10
F-MABEZHHBERIZLF - years, while motor vehicles generally have lease terms between
MARBo BT RTHERBI12ME 3 and 4 years. Office equipment generally has lease terms of 12
AR/ S ERIZEHEERE months or less and/or is individually of low value.
(@) EREEE (a) Right-of-use assets
FRNREEGCAEEE KRB The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets
BERESHOT and the movements during the year are as follows:
B RE &t
Motor
Buildings vehicles Total
AR®TF T AR%T T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
1K2020F1A1H At 1 January 2020 8,666 159 8,825
= Additions 4,652 927 5,579
R BB AR ZAE Additions as a result of the
acquisition of a subsidiary 2,200 - 2,200
mEER Depreciation charge (4,607) (376) (4,983)
K2020F12 A31H K At 31 December 2020 and
R2021E1A1H at 1 January 2021 10,911 710 11,621
E Additions 7,995 3,111 11,106
meEBH Depreciation charge (6,019) (797) (6,816)
K2021412 A31H At 31 December 2021 12,887 3,024 15,911
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15. HE (&) 15. LEASES (continued)
AEBEREBA (E) The Group as a lessee (continued)
by HEEARE (b) Lease liabilities
FRNHEEEBECREERE The carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements
wmr during the year are as follows:
20214 20204
2021 2020
AR®T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
M1 A1 B ZREE Carrying amount at 1 January 22,350 17,457
MHE New leases 11,106 5,579
ARENB A ZAE Additions as a result of the
acquisition of a subsidiary - 7,217
FAEERNEEE Accretion of interest recognised
during the year 2,095 2,025
A HE AR Covid-19 Covid-19-related rent
EREE S E R concessions from lessors (253) (806)
(BN Payments (12,971) (9,122)
®12 A31 B ZERMEE Carrying amount at 31 December 22,327 22,350
DA Analysed into:
TENEE Current portion 8,790 9,254
JERENEL 7 Non-current portion 13,537 13,096
HEAGZIHBEIMHEER The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note
B #5 3R R I 5E38 © 38 to the financial statements.
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15. 7 E (&) 15. LEASES (continued)

AEBEREBA (E) The Group as a lessee (continued)
(0 MREZFTBEIANEEMERIE (¢ The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to
N leases are as follows:
20215 20204
2021 2020
AR®T T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
REtE KA RN EE Interest expense on lease liabilities
BENTERMX recognised in finance costs 1,252 1,071
A E MU A R a5 T RR Y Interest expense on lease liabilities
HEBENFERX recognised in other income and gains 843 954
TREEENITEERR Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 6,816 4,983
OB EEENRAY Expense relating to short-term leases 15,298 13,578
HIREEEELERHN Expense relating to leases of
i3 low-value assets 837 703
RIBEF RERA B 45 Total amount recognised in profit or loss 25,046 21,289
(d) FHEZRERHEBEFEENY (d) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 33(c)
TEMFMIEE33() ° to the financial statements.
AEBEEREHBAA The Group as a lessor
AEEREREHELHEBEET The Group sub-leases certain properties consisting of two
WE(BEMNETREEDE) B commercial properties in the PRC under finance lease
FHHEEI10F - HEKRBEEE arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms of six to ten
KHBPEIMERIZESURIERT™ years. The terms of the leases generally require the tenants to
SEITEHESFHE - R2021F12 pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
A318 - AEBZEBAKREFER according to the then prevailing market conditions. The Group
ANER#7,424,0007T (20204 : AR had a net investment in subleases amounting to RMB7,424,000
#11,901,0007T) ° 2B FHEFE Y as at 31 December 2021 (2020: RMB11,901,000). The changes
B R N A U B pE IR & AR R of net investment were a result of a decrease of RMB4,477,000
W ANRHE4,477,0007T ° due to the receipt of lease payment receivables during the year.
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I B 7% 83k MY A

15. #HE (&) 15. LEASES (continued)
AEEERAHBA (E) The Group as a lessor (continued)
M2021%12A318  ZEERKNR At 31 December 2021, the undiscounted lease payments
HARI AR 4% B B 7B P 5T 32 &9 1 AT B8 receivable of the Group in future periods under non-cancellable
KR TH S 8 E MR 3T IR A E A FUA operating leases with its tenants and the reconciliation between
RAFRAENRNEHEREFHE the undiscounted lease payments to the net investment in the
HIEERINT - lease are as follows:
20215 20204
2021 2020
AR®T T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—FLAR Within one year 3,549 5,343
—FREMERN After one year but within two years 1,303 3,549
MERB=FRA After two years but within three years 1,356 1,303
=FERBNFR After three years but within four years 1,411 1,356
MFERERAFR After four years but within five years 1,113 1,411
HFEMR E Over five years - 1,113
8,732 14,075
=RESLERON Future finance income (1,308) (2,174)
HEREFE Net investment in the lease 7,424 11,901
16. & 16. GOODWILL
2021%F 20204
2021 2020
AR®T T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
M ATBZRAREEE Cost and carrying amount at 1 January 283,957 68,841
IR BB B~ 7] (BisE32) Acquisitions of subsidiaries (note 32) 278,952 215,116
W12 A31B 2R REREE Cost and carrying amount at 31 December 562,909 283,957
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16. & (&)
R B 5

AEBBBEREHRFHEER
PEREATNHERSEEEM ([H
TEEBM]) ETRERR © %
FHeELABUMAKRESRETIE
REREEERENAFHY KR
BWReRERAAEEREEE

E o

MA2021F12A831H

16.

GOODWILL (continued)
Impairment testing on goodwill

The Group’s goodwill acquired through business combinations
was allocated to the following ten cash-generating units
("CGUs") for impairment testing. The recoverable amounts
of these CGUs have been determined based on a value-in-
use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering a five-year period prepared by management.

As at 31 December 2021

BBz FHALR/

REE (RE) % TRE

Annual

revenue

Carrying growth/
amount of  (recession) Discount
BeELEN CcGU TEEY Principal business goodwill rate rate

AR®Fr
RMB'000
EMEE Guangzhou Wanning by ESBL Property management 22,462 (9.0%)-0% 18.77%
BILTE% Foshan Hetai MEER Property management 3,607 10.0% 16.32%
TR R Zhuhai Yuanxing L ELg: Property management 2,429 (20.0%) 16.37%
BB Joan Elevator BERTER Elevator installation
g and maintenance 18,732 (36.6%)-0% 22.50%
BEERMER Qingyuan Rongtai EE Property management 2,543 0% 18.06%
BMER Guangzhou Dongkang ~ ¥¥EE Property management 19,068 0%-6.5% 18.39%
BNER Guangzhou Haoging TR Property management 12,662  (9.8%)-0% 18.82%
& 3, Guangzhou Yaocheng MEER Property management 2,467 (90.0%)-0% 19.08%
M B Xuzhou Mengmu NEER Property management 199,987 14.7% 18.00%
9 perty 9

G E Chengdu Holytech MEER Property management 278,952 4.5% 16.75%
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16. B & (&) 16. GOODWILL (continued)

BERERNR (&)

7202012 A31H

Impairment testing on goodwill (continued)

As at 31 December 2020

HEZEAE FRAERE i x
Carrying Annual
amount of revenue Discount
BeEEBN CGU FTEER Principal business goodwill  growth rate rate
ARETT
RMB'000
BHEE Guangzhou Wanning MEER Property management 22,462 0% 18.95%
HBILTAT Foshan Hetai NEER Property management 3,607 0%-30% 18.76%
g R Zhuhai Yuanxing MEERE Property management 2,429 0% 19.01%
HBREH Joan Elevator ERHRER Elevator installation
#iE and maintenance 18,732 1% 20.26%
BEMER Qingyuan Rongtai mEER Property management 2,543 0% 18.39%
BMRE Guangzhou Dongkang ES Property management 19,068 0% 18.83%
BN RS Guangzhou Haoging MEEE Property management 12,662 19% 17.71%
BM 2R Guangzhou Yaocheng MEER Property management 2,467 0% 18.93%
RN BB RE Xuzhou Mengmu NEER Property management 199,987 14.8%-17.5% 17.70%

FE FR2021F12A8318 K&
2020F 12 A31BR e ELEMMNE
AEERCERAREK EEEARE
TRERENAMENSENES
EXBEMNBRESREMKRENSEE
ZREOT -

FRE-FAFTRXBBATTER
o WRRERBECABNEE
R o

FRAER (FR)FE - RFEA
HERAEFENRSELEUMNTE
BIWA R /(FR) XTARGE
EREEMNERRZ— -

Assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculations of
the above mentioned CGUs for 31 December 2021 and 31
December 2020. The following describes each key assumption
on which management had based its cash flow projections
of the respective CGUs to undertake impairment testing of
goodwill:

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and reflects
specific risks relating to the relevant unit.

Annual revenue growth/(recession) rate — The predicted revenue
growth/(recession) rate of CGUs for the five years subsequent
to the date of assessment is one of the assumptions used in the
value-in-use calculations.
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16. & (&) 16. GOODWILL (continued)

EmERERNR () Impairment testing on goodwill (continued)
AEEEEECHEERENRE Management of the Group has undertaken sensitivity analysis on
FTRBEMEDN - TERBIATEME the impairment test of goodwill. The following table sets forth
HEMEBERFTENBERLTIES the hypothetical changes to discount rate or annual revenue
EHN2021F12A31BZERESE growth rate that would, in isolation (with all other variables
ABEMMAIE S ERSERNEERR remained constant), have caused the recoverable amount of
BRI FRAERENREK each CGU to be equal to its carrying amount as at 31 December
28 2021:
FRABE
(RR)Z/D>
3 hn g ES Yl
Decrease/
increase in
annual
revenue
growth/ Increase in
REEEEN CcGU (recession) rate  discount rate
BMNEE Guangzhou Wanning 2.98% 2.51%
HFHILTAE TR Foshan Hetai 7.05% 4.93%
g R Zhuhai Yuanxing 1.90% 2.03%
LB Joan Elevator 2.30% 2.58%
BRI Qingyuan Rongtai* TEAN/A TEAN/A
J& M 3R * Guangzhou Dongkang* T3 FAN/A TEAN/A
BNERE Guangzhou Haoging 3.49% 2.61%
JE& I R Guangzhou Yaocheng 2.14% 5.72%
RN SRR Xuzhou Mengmu 2.91% 1.56%
EE Chengdu Holytech 4.07% 2.70%
* FEABEFENEERZNEME @ Any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions of the
BRI T g EUREAERAR value-in-use calculation would not cause the carrying amount to
PEABMAKEEHE - exceed the recoverable amount of the CGU.
HZE2021F %2020 1283181k During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
FE AEEEREEEBETHEMNRSR management of the Group determined that no impairment of
SEEBEREERE - goodwill should be recognised for the CGUs.
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20214128318 31 December 2021

17. At B EE 17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

NEERAR

G REFBE BRAE BRRE 34 &t
Property
management
contracts

and customer Development Contract
Software  relationships costs costs Licences Total

AR®TR  ARBTR  AR®Tn  ARETR AR®TR  AR®TR
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

2021%12831R 31 December 2021

R021E1 /18 At 1 January 2021:
KA Cost 37,290 92,097 5,954 1,422 6,830 143,593
REEH Accumulated amortisation (11,052) (13,567) - (316) (351) (25,286)
REFE Net carrying amount 26,238 78,530 5,954 1,106 6,479 118,307

R2021E1 8182 Cost at 1 January 2021, net of

A BABZ5ESE  accumulated amortisation 26,238 78,530 5,954 1,106 6,479 118,307
RE Additions 1,857 - 20,580 - - 22,431
AE - NBHRE Additions - internal development - - 22,350 - - 22,350
Rt B AR (f13E32)  Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 32) 2,664 129,174 - - - 131,838
g% Transfer 2,630 - (2,630) - - -
FREHRE Amortisation provided during the year (8,412) (31,535) - (609) (683) (41,239)
R2021512 A31H At 31 December 2021 24,977 176,169 46,254 497 5,796 253,693

M2021F128318 ¢ At 31 December 2021:

A Cost 44,441 21,271 46,254 1,422 6,830 320,218
REEH Accumulated amortisation (19,464) (45,102) - (925) (1,034) (66,525)
REFE Net carrying amount 24,977 176,169 46,254 497 5,796 253,693
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17. H B EE (&

17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

NEERAR
g REPEBE BN A BRKA R Bt
Property
management
contracts
and customer  Development Contract
Software  relationships costs costs Licenses Total
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTR AR®Tx
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
202012 A31H 31 December 2020
#2020 118 © At 1 January 2020:
AR Cost 25,836 16,423 2,652 1422 = 46,333
R Accumulated amortisation (6,304) (6,289) = = = (12,593)
EHFE Net carrying amount 19,532 10,134 2,652 1,422 = 33,740
1202041 R 1B ZBA » Cost at 1 January 2020, net of
B0 Rty accumulated amortisation 19,532 10,134 2,652 1,422 = 33,740
RE Additions 184 - 12,006 - 6,830 19,020
RE - RPRE Additions - internal development - - 2,487 = = 2,487
WERB AR Acquisitions of subsidiaries 79 75,674 = = = 75,753
g% Transfer 11,191 = (11,191) = = =
FERETIREH Amortisation provided during the year (4,748) (7,278) = (316) (351) (12,693)
2020128318 At 31 December 2020 26,238 78,530 5,954 1,106 6,479 118,307
72020128318 © At 31 December 2020:
A Cost 37,290 92,097 5,954 1,422 6,830 143,593
s 3 Accumulated amortisation (11,052) (13,567) = (316) (351) (25,286)
RESE Net carrying amount 26,238 78,530 5,954 1,106 6,479 118,307
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18. REFE RN RINRE 18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
20215 20204
2021 2020
ARBTT AR¥ETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
EBEEEFRE Share of net assets 72,522 64,346
AEBHERBEARFBEROT - Particulars of the Group’s material associate are as follows:
rEBEGFERE
£18 R R St B EmEDHL FEEK
Percentage of
ownership
Place of interest
registration attributable Principal
Name and business  to the Group activity
BMmRRRE N EERROBRA R (EMEE ) RE B A 30 W&
Guangzhou Times Rongxin Micro-credit PRC/ Money
Co., Ltd. (“Guangzhou Rongxin”) Mainland China 30 lending
BMNEERANEE B EER Guangzhou Rongxin is a strategic partner of the Group engaged
o REREEL - WHEAER in money lending and is accounted for using the equity method.
ABR ©
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18. REFE R RINIRE (1R)

TERHABRMNBENTHERR
2 ZEEHNCHSFBERZEM
ZRELAR  YERESVHR
REOFRHEEH R -

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of Guangzhou Rongxin adjusted for any
differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial statements:

20214 20204
2021 2020
ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
mBEE Current assets 263,677 251,607
FEREBEE Non-current assets 93 126
mEaE Current liabilities (34,150) (37,247)
BEFE Net assets 229,620 214,486
el S ThA =N D) Reconciliation to the Group's
e ¥ B8R interest in the associate:
REBE P T A RELL B Proportion of the Group’s ownership 30% 30%
REBELEEAREEFE Group's share of net
assets of the associate 68,886 64,346
KEREE Carrying amount of the investment 68,886 64,346
WA Revenue 31,180 30,624
FAFERZEIMALRRE Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year 15,133 7,003
BEEIRRE Dividend declared - 8,277

RGN (8 B I T B K 7R 5= B B
BREINELITEER

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group’s associates that are not individually

material:
20215 20204
2021 2020
ARBTR AR¥ETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REFEREE R RNRER Aggregate carrying amount of the
REAE Group's investments in the associates 3,636 =

HZE2021F12A31BILFE © D1k
AR T E KA A& B 5 E N F R
BT TERK -

The share of the losses of the Group's associates that are not
individually material for the year ended 31 December 2021 was
not material.
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19. EEHEEERAR 19. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
EEHBEE Deferred tax assets
RBERHANEERIBEEEZ SN The movements in deferred tax assets during the reporting
s period are as follows:
SERLNAM Eitef
RABER SHEE il RAR
RERE  AERNE BEFERE  AERWA  TNREX LGt HEaR GE
Unrealised  Provision for Accrued
profit arising  impairment  Unrealised liabilities
from losses on revenue  and future
Tax  intra-group financial  receivedin  deductible ~ Government Lease
losses  transactions assets advance  expenses grants liabilities Total

ARBTT  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR ARETR  ARETR ARMTR
RMB'OO0  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

R2020F1 818 At 1 January 2020 1,090 - 3,378 2,940 13,849 83 4364 25,704
WEnELA Acquisition of subsidiaries = = = = = = 1,804 1,804
EREA/ Deferred tax credited/

(kg Ea (charged) to profit or

MERERE loss during the year (478) - 476 920 (1.231) (30) (580) (923)
20208124318 At 31 December 2020

R2021%E1A1H and 1 January 2021 612 - 3,854 3,860 12,618 53 5,588 26,585
WERELR Acquisition of

(Hi332) subsidiaries (note 32) - - 1Al - - - - m
EREA/ Deferred tax credited/

(ke Ea (charged) to profit or

MELRE loss during the year 9% 2,91 1839 (3,860) (1,731) (30) (6) ()
R021F Gross deferred tax assets at

1283188 31 December 2021

EEHAEEER 708 2,921 6,410 - 10,887 3 5580 26531
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PDEZEHBEERER

(%)
BIERAS

R R MR B R EEB N
T

Deferred tax liabilities

19. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(continued)

The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the reporting
period are as follows:

KEREAR HEHEAR
ERAREER SIBMAR RAEHE
HERERE BERZ ZHE &t
Fair value Taxes on
Right-of-use adjustment undistributed
assets and arising from profits of the
net investment acquisitions subsidiaries
in the lease of subsidiaries in the PRC Total
ARETR ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
#202051A18 At 1 January 2020 4,364 2,275 3,000 9,639
WEHB AR Acquisitions of subsidiaries 1,804 19,006 = 20,810
FMEABRE Deferred tax credited to
ERHE profit or loss during the year (580) (1,829) - (2,409)
1202086128318 At 31 December 2020
R2021E1A18 and 1 January 2021 5,588 19,452 3,000 28,040
WEERB AR (F1532)  Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 32) - 22,740 - 22,740
ER(TN)/41%BE  Deferred tax (credited)/charged to
BRENELRE profit or loss during the year (6) (6,385) 4,950 (1,441)
M2021F12 83184 Gross deferred tax liabilities at
BREHEAELR 31 December 2021 5,582 35,807 7,950 49,339

REJBEMME A TEREREER
ERBBEERMBIRRNKREHE - T
REANEERMBEHREB M E A
B TAEHRDIT -

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the statement of financial position.
The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the
Group for financial reporting purposes:

2021 % 20204
2021 2020
AR®T R ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
RERA BB R R Net deferred tax assets recognised in the

RIERIEEEFE consolidated statement of financial position 20,949 20,997

RERA BB R R Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the
ELERIEAEFE consolidated statement of financial position 43,757 22,452
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19.

ELEHBAEERE R

(%)
JEIEB A S (4)

REBREBEENRBEEBAR
#18,912,0007C (20204 : AR
#17,213,0007T) A1 AR & R BB 4K
SHEE & BT 1B A0 R B HY K 2R FE AR A A
e R2021F12A31H » A&EH
RAEBEAMEENE TRIBESEA
R#3,720,0007T (20204 : AR
#2,104,00070) R —ERHF AT
AR AR R ERTLFE om0 Mt
BRrEE—BEHEBEESEELRE
SR R BE O] BE AR RN K N R IE B
B MR ZEEERERELH
HEE -

BERBECEEMBRE) - Ba
SR Y AVA: N RS- S DN ST
HEESROBREABK10%TE
M - ZEEN2008F1A18AE
o WiEAMN2007F12 A31 8%
BEF - MR B A EIIEREE
FREREE SR ] LIS L - 8l
AIREEERTENRE - iAEE
ms @ BAMEAE10% (20204F :
10%) o NEERE M AR ZFRH
A b A S B9 BT B A R Bt B 2008 & 1
B 1B E 4/ 2T ATIR 3 % S 840
FEHOF o

202112 A31H » iAEBERF
B A AR S B T B A R FE SR AN TE D
i ry R & F A R#602,583,000
(20204 + AR¥ 368,226,000
TC) MEMNTENBME - WARERE
AEERTE - EERE - ZEWEB
AREA BB RETEDIREHER
o

19. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(continued)
Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
RMB18,912,000 (2020: RMB17,213,000) that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. The Group had certain
tax losses arising in Mainland China of RMB3,720,000 as at 31
December 2021 (2020: RMB2,104,000) that will expire in one to
five years for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as
they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for
some time and it is not considered probable that taxable profits
will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 10% (2020:
10%). The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes
on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January
2008.

No deferred tax has been recognised for withholding
taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings
of RMB602,583,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
RMB368,226,000) that are subject to withholding taxes of
the Group's subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the
opinion of the directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries
will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future.
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20. € 20. INVENTORIES

2021F 20204
2021 2020
AR¥TR AREEFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
EEIRE Work in progress - 80
H A # Other materials 1,435 2,114
1,435 2,194
=hH

21. EWE 5 7R 21. TRADE RECEIVABLES
2021%F 20204
2021 2020
AR¥TR ARKEFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BAR 77 (KisE(a)) Related parties (note (a)) 761,565 388,456
F=7 (b)) Third parties (note (b)) 398,085 197,600
1,159,650 586,056
B Impairment (19,654) (11,974)
1,139,996 574,082

Bt et - Notes:

(a) MEWEEHHESHRELCHELAERE (a)  Trade receivables from related parties are due in twelve months
BET—EARNDE - upon the issuance of demand notes.

(b) FMEBEREOENKE SHHIEM (b)  For trade receivables from property management services, the
o AEBERFESAGKEE Group charges property management fees on a quarterly or
ERE  BRTEZFHAHRERE monthly basis and the payment is generally due upon the issuance
HEANK - REMBREOERE S of demand notes. For trade receivables from other services, the
HEME @ AREEREFPHNRZHE Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit and
REEREFEE AEEHR-—KAR the credit period is generally within three months.
=EAR -

2N 55 [ 77 SROBRAR ¥ 1) HL R Wi 1m0 ) fE The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding

WHIE  -ERECHEETBHE receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by

e AEBERERKEZIRENEES management. The Group’s concentration of credit risk of trade

HE B I B N B S R 3R 38 o fE receivables is disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements.

WE S HRIERTEE ° Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.
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21. BIRE 5 RIE (&) 21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
RmEHRERNEEE B I An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
BRBIEBENEKE ZFIBERRD reporting period, based on the demand note date and net of
T - loss allowance, is as follows:

20214 20204
2021 2020
AR®T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
—F AR Within 1 year 1,013,727 557,653
—EWE 1 to 2 years 119,164 11,394
ME=F 2 to 3 years 5,639 3,970
==NE 3 to 4 years 1,256 922
MERF 4 to 5 years 210 143
1,139,996 574,082
FEWE 5 R IE R EE B E The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
N receivables are as follows:
20215 20204
2021 2020
AR®TT ARBETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
F9) At beginning of year 11,974 13,340
BERR,(BE)NREEBE Net impairment losses recognised/

FEE (M3E7) (reversed) (note 7) 10,832 (1,247)
HsH AT ] IR B 3RI8 Amount written off as uncollectible (3,152) (119)
FR At end of year 19,654 11,974
MEmE B RERABRERRETR An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
BEBoth et E2TEHEEEE - # using a provision matrix to measure ECLs. The provision rates
BEDERAFEREUEEERXNZ are based on days past due for groupings of various customer
AxEFoEMA7 A HEEE (A segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., customer type and
REPRARRGEREE) - ZFTER service type). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
M AERMELER  SBERELER outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
WERHAGENBERBESIE - 2 supportable information that is available at the reporting date
AIAR S R R RSB AR TE R B & 18 about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
RAISEEH - economic conditions.
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21. EWE S8 (8F)

TS #5 BE FR AR E E  E 1
AEBERENE S FOREEERNE
B

21.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure
on the Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix:

£=7 (R8H) =5 (EaH) BEA
Third parties - Related
not past due Third parties - past due parties
8 -F0k  -EmE  WEZE ZERE  MERE  RENL At
Less than 1t02 2t03 3tod 4to5 Over
Current 1 year years years years years 5 years Total
20215128318 At 31 December 2021
REEEERE Expected credit loss rate - 570%  12.94%  2845%  62.19%  8538%  100.00% 0.79%
FEAE(ARETI)  Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) 286,299 8084 17,014 7,881 332 1436 1300 761565 1,159,650
REEEEE Expected credit losses (RMB'000)
(A\R®FT) - (46100 (2201 (2242  (2066) (12260 (1309 (6,000  (19,654)
20208128318 At 31 December 2020
BFERRE Expected credit loss rate -+ 970%  1459%  3040%  5442%  87.96%  100.00% -
SEAE(ARET)  Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) 123610 50483 13340 5,704 203 1,187 1253 3884% 586,05
BHEERR Expected credit losses (RMB'000)
(A\R®TT) - (4896)  (1946) (1734 (1,100 (1,044 (1253 - (M9

* K70.01%

> Less than 0.01%

22. ERAEE 22. CONTRACT ASSETS

12A31H 1H1H
31 December 1 January
20215 20204 20204
2021 2020 2020
ARBT T ARETTT AR¥TTT
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

BERBEEDN Contract assets arising from
aREE professional services 13,190 16,148 16,524
A Impairment (3,012) (3,401) =
10,178 12,747 16,524

EREETZHAEENSHRES
RUBERTImMARAARETRER
BENENER ESHEEFKAE
GH - GREEFERERIKE S
FIE - AEBETFHRZERKL
EEBRREERMBHRERME21 -
ARIEENR2021F K2020F B ATk
DIERFREESREENY °

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s rights to
consideration for work completed but not billed at the end of
each reporting period. The contract assets are transferred to
trade receivables when the rights become unconditional. The
Group’s trading terms and credit policy with customers are
disclosed in note 21 to the financial statements. The decrease
in contract assets in 2021 and 2020 was the result of the
settlement of contract assets during the years.
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22. EREEE (&)
SERIEERBEEEENES T

22. CONTRACT ASSETS (continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of contract
assets are as follows:

20214 20204

2021 2020

AR®T AREF T

RMB’000 RMB’'000

F4 At beginning of year 3,401 =
B (BE),/ EREEEE Impairment losses (reversed)/

(fzE7) recognised (note 7) (389) 3,401

FR At end of year 3,012 3,401

RE&HmE B HRBBRERERETH
ﬁ;ﬁ A ERMEEER - &
EAREERBEEBENRER
TERBREZRANBEEE - ]
RAReREEREYEZFHIATIIR
BHEREFE - AREEMNBER
TREABEUBEBRREANZEE
FoEAaRanRKE %KAM S
REGTE (ARiplE - ERfER - &
FERIEFR - ERE &E{ﬂﬂ*,\
REEAZFRES D) - ZAtERR
HAKRINIEL B E RN ER
SHMAIBNBEREBEEE - B8
AL BR KA BRI TR Y& 38 I
AISEERY -

TXEINABERBREEREGTER
AEBEAREEFERRIER :

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The
provision rates for the measurement of the expected credit
losses on the contract assets are based on those of the trade
receivables as the contract assets and the trade receivables
are from the same customer bases. The provision rates of
contract assets are based on days past due of trade receivables
for groupings of various customer segments with similar loss
patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type, customer
type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit or other forms
of credit insurance). The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure
on the Group’s contract assets using a provision matrix:

20215 20204

2021 2020

TEEEEEEX Expected credit loss rate 22.84% 21.06%
BRERE(ARETT) Gross carrying amount (RMB’000) 13,190 16,148
EHEERE (ARETT) Expected credit loss (RMB'000) 3,012 3,401
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23. FETRIE - HE R HME  23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

WRRE RECEIVABLES

20214 20204

2021 2020

AR%TR ARETTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

Bt E Prepayments 17,213 192,085

REEFELHAR Payments on behalf of property owners 32,379 16,169

Ze Deposits 27,178 22,227

AEREF5 (M3E15) Net investment in the lease (note 15) 7,424 11,901

H e 08 Other receivables 12,105 5,391

JRE LS S 12 i A% 3R R IE Amounts due from non-controlling shareholders 157,771 =

JRE Ut R BEE 77 B (MY EE35) Amounts due from related parties (note 35) 16,203 12,293

&t Total 270,273 260,066

BIERED & Current portion 263,334 72,770

JERNHERER Non-current portion 6,939 187,296

At Total 270,273 260,066

MN2021%F12A31H ' BHEKREZ
BN HhEWRGIBEAERE - T
FTERIRERERE -

FFA LA SRS B E E BT B
45 95 /R 50 8% K 18 HR SRR A R R IE
B - 12021F % 20205F 12 A 31
H - BEBEETTEARE -

24,

Except for the net investment in the lease, other receivables
were unsecured, non-interest-bearing and repayable on demand
as at 31 December 2021.

The financial assets included in the above balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default and
past due amounts. As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the loss
allowance was assessed to be minimal.

ADsuEEREWST AR 24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
mHNEMEE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

20215 20204

2021 2020

AR¥T T AREF T

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ELEMIRE  BAREE Unlisted investments, at fair value - 76,000

LA SE ETRE RSP EAMIRTE
THEMER - ERIBE/URA
BEAEYFABENSREE -
REREANRERELIFERX
RS RFE

The above unlisted investments were wealth management
products issued by banks in Mainland China. They were
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as
their contractual cash flows are not solely payments of principal
and interest.
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I B 7% 83k MY A

25. BENBELEEYWNRZPR 25.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

R 1T F K RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS
20215 20204
2021 2020
ARET T ARETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
Re MIRTTAS 84 Cash and bank balances 825,653 1,172,703
B LR BIRITIER Less: Restricted bank deposits (11,324) (124,964)
ReRBEEFED Cash and cash equivalents 814,329 1,047,739

MR2021412 8318 » KEBMUA
REBAEMNR S REBTEHRAEAR
#777,846,0007C (20204 : AR
#514,791,0007T) * mLABITEHE
Al A AR®E47,807,0007T (2020
F£: AR¥657,912,0007T) © A
RETATEAEIBKEMES K
i - AR 4 R B A b CHMNEE B 3R R 191 )
M(KERE  EBERMNESERTE)
AEEREBBEREETINESE
BHRTBARB LB AHMEE -

RITBSRETHRITERNEEZ
FEBAEREAE - RITERTFN
EEERI  OHRARHTEN
RIT

R2021F12 A31 BRIZREHIR1T77
REZBEFEEABRLELORENIE
HRAIRITIRESFR - MR2020F
12A31BNZBHRITFREEZER
FEABRLBARIBNEFERAOR
TBREEFARUNEEBZEFTA
EEMERFEHEBBARENI
BB ARMELANREBNER -

As at 31 December 2021, the cash and bank balances of the
Group denominated in RMB amounted to RMB777,846,000
(2020: RMB514,791,000) and denominated in HKD amounted
to RMB47,807,000 (2020: RMB657,912,000). The RMB is
not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

The restricted bank deposits as at 31 December 2021 mainly
comprised of cash deposits in the banks as security for issuance
of performance bonds while the restricted bank deposits as at 31
December 2020 mainly comprised of cash deposits in the banks
as security for issuance of performance bonds and deposits in
the designated escrow accounts in the name of the Group which
would be subsequently paid to settle the considerations arising
from acquisitions of subsidiaries.
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26. EHE FIE

REREHRERNBRZAHNEN
B RERE DT

26. TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of each
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

20214 20204

2021 2020

AR®T T AREF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

—FE AR Less than 1 year 495,195 263,941
—FE Over 1 year 74,252 11,526
569,447 275,467

ENESREBRIEERORANE
EMNEMNEBIOENRKEAR
#2,518,0007T (20204 : AR
4,355,0007T) - BRI TH
ENESRENE—TEBIHRNY
TEMARMIFESS ©

FENESFESBEEAMETFE -

Included in the trade payables are payables of RMB2,518,000
(2020: RMB4,355,000) due to related parties which are
repayable within 60 days. Further details of trade payables
due to related parties are included in note 35 to the financial
statements.

Trade payables are unsecured and non-interest-bearing and are

BimEIR60 AERAEH - normally settled based on terms of 60 days.
27. Hitt B FRIB R ESTIEE  27. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
2021%F 20204
2021 2020
AR¥TR ARKETFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
R T & RiEH Payroll and welfare payables 174,238 180,285
At FE AT R Other tax payables 22,110 14,618
REEENIES RERRIA Deposits and temporary receipts from
property owners 85,628 64,549
FEETIA B R E A e FA Accruals and other payables 85,819 105,846
A BAEsE 5 2 A (FsE35) Amounts due to related parties (note 35) 3,749 4,823
371,544 370,121
MR2021F &2020F 12 A31H » & Other payables were unsecured, non-interest-bearing and
o ROE A SRR - TEHE &R repayable on demand as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.
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28. FRIEFEIRES S FALE  28. FINANCIAL LIABILITY FOR PUT OPTION

EHERAas

WRITTEN ON NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

2021%F 20204
2021 2020
AR¥TR ARKETFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
LIRS M 2 25 B R0 BAAE Financial liabilities for put option
HeRas written on non-controlling interests 125,442 =

RIE U B B S E N 5B E - X
HEENRREERFAR2023F
12A31BEMEARMEAEE T
Sk E A E R 20 % BAEH R 0E HA
o ZWENREBEDNERKE S E
HZE2023F12 A31 HILEEMNIH
KIRBT - MR LEEEITE - A
E B FIAKEBA E100% H AR HE o
FAEZFHS  H2HMBREMN
F¥32

POFERES R B REMENE R
BENGBERABEAEZTHITRER
EREZXEE - EATAIBREGA
BB TIINRL AR TE X
MmBERFTREABBEEERED
= fE B %5 FRBI A5 R T Y IR AR R pn A
AAENTEESEE  RERERN
BETERABEENEATREXE

E °

FOFERES R B REMENE R
BEZEHFIIWT :

Pursuant to the agreement for acquisition of Chengdu Holytech,
the original shareholders of Chengdu Holytech were guaranteed
a put option under which they can sell the remaining 20%
equity of Chengdu Holytech to the Group within 2 months
after 31 December 2023. The consideration of such acquisition
is based on Chengdu Holytech’s financial performance for the
year ending 31 December 2023. If the put option is exercised,
the Group would control 100% of equity interests in Chengdu
Holytech. See note 32 to the financial statements for more
details.

The valuation of the financial liabilities for the put option
written on non-controlling interests was determined using the
discounted cash flow method under the income approach. The
significant unobservable inputs are expected discount rate as at
the exit date which was determined by the probability-weighted
average of floating premiums under three financial projection
scenarios prepared by management, and the expected discount
rate which was determined using the capital asset pricing model.

The movement of the financial liabilities for the put option
written on non-controlling interests is set out below:

2021%F

2021

ARBT

RMB’000

M2021F1A1H At 1 January 2021 -
U B Y B8 1 B HA R 4% HH M R )8R Put option at initial recognition granted

TR YRR 4 HA4E during the acquisition of subsidiaries 125,442

M2021%12A31H At 31 December 2021 125,442
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29.

30.

RN

29. SHARE CAPITAL

20214 20204
2021 2020
AT Authorised:
2,000,000,000 % 2,000,000,000 (2020: 2,000,000,000)
(20204 : 2,000,000,000f%) ordinary shares of HKD0.01 each 20,000,000 7T 20,000,000/8 7T

BREEC.0VETHEBR

HKD20,000,000

HKD20,000,000

BEITRAR
985,672,747 %
(20204 : 985,672,7470%)
FREE0.01E A LB

Issued and fully paid:
985,672,747 (2020: 985,672,747)
ordinary shares of HKD0.01 each

9,856,727 & T
HKD9,856,727

9,856,727 87T
HKD9,856,727

HER

Equivalent to

AR8,868,0007T
RMB8,868,000

AR #8,868,0007T
RMB8,868,000

MR RBE EFENR
10 K ikt

AEEREAMRBEFENRER
BREEH BN GRARSED
i‘%o

(a) R#BEE

AEERMDGERELZERFRR
HEE (R ©

(b) EOHEE

B Ot REEE AR B R TIREE
B8 2 Al e R B A E B SR
SEETEARARBKRER
iSEqE TNl = PN g
RZBEHZEH o

30. SHARES HELD FOR THE SHARE AWARD
SCHEME AND RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

(a) Share premium

The share premium of the Group represents the capital
contribution premium from its then shareholders.

(b) Merger reserve

The merger reserve represented the difference between
the Company'’s shares of the nominal value of the paid-up
capital of a subsidiary acquired and the Company's cost of
acquisition of a subsidiary under common control upon the
Reorganisation undergone by the Group.
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2021512 A31H

30. M {7 R B3

31 December 2021

B H R

10 K fst e ()

(c)

(d)

EEBRBRLARE

RIEFBECRBE) REF BT
TR SZ B B B8 1% B RO 4B 4 = 72
AR REEARBREBRIRA
ERERENBES 2 TIANEER
ERiEE - FEBASEDEEM
BRANBEAIZATH  AIRA
FIRER - AR BUER M A
SEAMSREARIFmESE TR
HERRT - XERBFEEA
RIAT M EE - RERIE M
BRARMERA - EABERE
MESRTRFIREFEMER
WBEDZ-1THh - ZH#ETA
REERI B 8y 2 SNy E i
#® o NTERREREETD
i e

WA 40 SR B T &I K AR 40 B2
REFENERG

M2020F9 8238 ([HE#HB
H]) » KRR EHEADEE
BhETE ([ RDSEEETE)) - 8§
ERABETREELHERIT
BT HREEE - UBEREE
BRRERBRAEER - RHHE
Bhat 8l B R4 A BifR AT T 1
AR RMERFRS -

RIER D B2 R AT B R R e £ 7
MRA E=gRBRAE R
BiIFRENERNSEBRA LS
HEXD - AEARD (RER
REEMNHE) BBOEL -
Bt # e B £0 2R Bh =t &1 69 B 3L
REATZFEADRTSH LK
ARmRHOHESEE - WR
R SRR AT B IR SIAE S
TARERSEERS -

30. SHARES HELD FOR THE SHARE AWARD
SCHEME AND RESERVES (continued)

()

(d)

Statutory surplus funds

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the articles
of association of the subsidiaries incorporated in the
PRC, the Group is required to appropriate 10% of its net
profits after tax to the statutory surplus reserves until the
reserve balance reaches 50% of its registered capital.
Subject to certain restrictions set out in the relevant PRC
regulations and in the articles of association of the Group,
the statutory surplus reserves may be used either to offset
losses, or to be converted to increase the share capital
of the subsidiaries, provided that the balance after such
conversion is not less than 25% of the registered capital of
them. The reserve cannot be used for purposes other than
those for which it is created and is not distributable as
cash dividends.

Shares held for share award scheme and share
award reserve

On 23 September 2020 (the “Adoption Date”), the
Company announced to adopt the share award scheme
(the “Share Award Scheme”) with objectives to recognise
the contribution by certain employees and give incentives
thereto in order to motivate them for the continual
operation and development of the Group. The Share
Award Scheme shall be valid and remain in force for a
term of ten years commencing from the Adoption Date.

Subject to the terms of the Share Award Scheme and
the Listing Rules, the board of directors may at any time
make an offer to any eligible person it may at its absolute
discretion select to accept the grant of an award over
such number of shares as it may determine. Shares will
be acquired by the independent trustee (the “Trustee”) of
the Share Award Scheme on the market out of the funds
contributed by the Company and be held in trust for the
relevant participants in accordance with the provisions of
the Share Award Scheme.
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30. B R BB EFFHR
R ()

(d) mIRGRBETERKRDERR

30. SHARES HELD FOR THE SHARE AWARD
SCHEME AND RESERVES (continued)

(d) Shares held for share award scheme and share

REFENERSG (&)

HE2020F12 8318 IE5F
B ERAAREBREBEH Y
7.75% L (FHERARY6.63
TT)MFEHEBRRTHEA
3,350,000/%f% 1D - A& 5B A
25,967,0008 T (FHERAR
#22,198,0007T) ° H £2021
F12A31BILFE  Z5TAH
EmRTISE ARG °

7202011 A13H - 3,350,000
A& B 10 B AR IR AR 10 8RB &1 B 3%
TFRTERIES (BRES) -
FIR R D8 THIRIRE E
BEEMBMA &%  XRER
HEAESEMNERMERE - &
ZE2021F12A31BIEFE -
RIBAR D BB ET B - SRR (D
ERTETHIRE (BREE
%) B2 844 #£250,000 %
HEIRG -

RAEES (PEES) BHOK
MmE - RERMDKR2024%F
SATABEBRARA - A
Rz EAR NER R D REF
EIRNEESEHHNR TFRMER
FRE] AR AT E BB (B3
BARNRFIERBERIBER)
FAER -

MN2020F 11 A13BKXFH
D AREEART.865 T (48
BENARK6.99T) - "ER
REZ2021F12A318 1k
FERRMN IR ERRK
mHiEE M= AR®5,537,000
g0 (20204F : AR® 742,000
JL) °

award reserve (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, 3,350,000
shares were purchased by the Trustee from the market at
an average price of approximately HKD7.75 (equivalent
to RMB6.63) per share, with an aggregate amount of
HKD25,967,000 (equivalent to RMB22,198,000). No shares
were purchased by the Trustee from the market in the year
ended 31 December 2021.

On 13 November 2020, 3,350,000 shares were granted
to selected current employees (including directors) under
the Share Award Scheme. The number of shares granted
is determined based on the selected employees’ position,
experience, performance and contribution to the Group.
No shares were granted to selected current employees
(including directors) and a total of 250,000 award shares
were forfeited under the Share Award Scheme in the year
ended 31 December 2021.

For shares granted to employees (including directors),
the awarded shares will be vested to the grantees on 31
March 2024, provided that all vesting conditions (including
but not limited to all relevant performance targets) of the
Share Award Scheme or stipulated in the letter of award
received from the board of directors are satisfied by such
grantees.

The fair value of the shares granted on 13 November
2020 was HKD7.86 (equivalent to RMB6.99). The Group
recognised a share award expense of RMB5,537,000 (2020:
RMB742,000) during the year ended 31 December 2021 in
relation to the Share Award Scheme.

BRBBIERERAR /2021 £ 241



I B %5 R R MY &
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214128318 31 December 2021

30. ?ﬁﬂﬁfﬁiﬁﬁbﬁ Z1FE/MEK  30. SHARES HELD FOR THE SHARE AWARD

7 K& (&) SCHEME AND RESERVES (continued)

(e) ERfEE (e) Exchange reserve
A R E G B A B E I The functional currency of the Company and its overseas
BEEBAATT - Fi&iﬁ}ﬁi subsidiaries is HKD. As at the end of the reporting period,
ZEEBENEERBERY the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
HARMIBEITERRE 7%)\& into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of
B MEBSZAIZEIFHAE the reporting period and their profit or loss are translated
TEXEIMNEERBREASAR into RMB at the exchange rates that approximate to
ko Rt mMEEMERZER those prevailing at the dates of the transactions. The
b 2 T U A E SR I FA B resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
CES comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange

reserve.

B1. EEE RFEIEREZMWIE  31. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH

EENBELFE MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS
$E.ﬁﬁﬁ§j@ﬁ P 4 25 ) PR BB Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material non-
NRIFEFHIINT controlling interests are set out below:
20214 20204
2021 2020
FERERSRIER D Percentage of equity interest held by
non-controlling interests:
LRSS Shanghai Kejian 49% 49%
EEME Holytech Property 20% =
20214 20204
2021 2020
ARETT AR¥ETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ZIERERHNEENHE - Profit for the year allocated to
non-controlling interests:
EgRES Shanghai Kejian 10,388 2,959*
HEWME Holytech Property 3,114 =
BT IEERR SRR R Dividends paid to non-controlling interests:
EIBRER Shanghai Kejian 23,000 =

JEfERR ks A SRS B EAM R5H4E %4 © Accumulated balances of non-controlling
interests at the reporting date:

LERE Shanghai Kejian 24,271 36,883
BEWE Holytech Property 39,649 =

242 TIMES NEIGHBORHOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2021



31. BEERFERMEEMIE  31. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
2EMBAE (F) MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS (continued)
T%\%E\Fﬁﬁﬂ Lﬂm#%@ﬁgﬂﬁ%%ﬂﬁﬁ% The following tables illustrate the summarised financial
Bt e Eﬁﬁé@m@ﬁﬁﬂiﬁ&&ﬂ@ information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed are
RIS - before any inter-company eliminations:
LERlE; GEME
Shanghai Holytech
Kejian Property
AR®T T AR®TT
20214 2021 RMB’000 RMB’000
WA Revenue 321,032 194,428
M 8% Total expenses (300,091) (178,856)
FEMNHE Profit for the year 20,941 15,572
FEXEMBALE Total comprehensive income for the year 20,941 15,572
MEEE Current assets 105,172 265,208
EREBEE Non-current assets 54,300 111,519
REE A Current liabilities (73,113) (163,391)
FRBAME Non-current liabilities (13,371) (15,089)
KESEBATE (FTHR) BEmEFE Net cash flows from/(used in)
operating activities 40,216 (28,089)
REETBMEHREFHE Net cash flows from investing activities 752 8,745
BMEESARESRE FRE Net cash flows used in financing activities (43,065) -
Be MRS EEBYR A FE Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (2,097) (19,344)
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31. BEEARFERBERNIE

31. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH

EENEAT (&) MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS (continued)
EgRET
Shanghai Kejian
ARETT
20204 2020 RMB'000
WA Revenue 110,904
F > 4858 Total expenses (107,945)
FENH Profit for the year 2,959
FEXEMBALE Total comprehensive income for the year 2,959
MENEE Current assets 89,507
ERBEE Non-current assets 64,941
mEaE Current liabilities (63,446)
JEmBIAE Non-current liabilities (15,955)
K ESHAEReREFHE Net cash flows from operating activities 26,543
KERYMGIREREFH Net cash flows from investing activities 21,296
RekIREEEBYIGINFEE Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 47,839
3 RIEAEBE SR FFRIETIFERAY R S Pursuant to the agreement between the Group and the non-

MtE - EBRETEIE2020%F12
A31BIEEENERFEED R
F LRISTIEEARARE o

controlling shareholders of Shanghai Kejian, all the profit of
Shanghai Kejian for the year ended 31 December 2020 should be
distributed to the non-controlling shareholders of Shanghai Kejian.
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32. ¥ a0t

2020128 AEBEBEBIE=
FEIREEREG S UREAR
#296,587,000 70 W BE Ak &1 & =AY
49% AR HE - WIEE R2021F1 A5E
ﬁ °

MR2021F4 8 AEEEBYE=
FHE— I U REEERE - AA
R #194,492,000 7T B9 4% (B U B8 B
WMEE3I1%MER - BEAREEZR
MR EZRERELHEER2021F4A
T BREBEWERZE - KEBEED
RS RIER BRI R 2023F 12 A31H
EWMEAANBAEBHERE S E
FIER20% IRAEM RO HA b - sZ UK BB
MREDNERKBEEEZ20234F
12A31THIEFENPBERFETE -
iR EARE T - AREE TS
FRERE 1 100% I AXHE o 3200 Bt Ay
e REEE A AR 125,442,000
= &

RE R ER/IEER AT - HH B
RERFEEEREDEEER
%o 2B AKENE - FEE
MEEIRER o

32. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

In December 2020, the Group entered into an equity transfer
agreement with independent third parties for the acquisition
of 49% equity interest in Chengdu Holytech at a consideration
of RMB296,587,000. The acquisition has been completed in
January 2021.

In April 2021, the Group further entered into an equity transfer
agreement with independent third parties for the acquisition
of 31% interest in Chengdu Holytech at a consideration of
RMB194,492,000. The business registration and arrangement
of such equity transfer were completed in April 2021. Pursuant
to the acquisition agreement, the original shareholders of
Chengdu Holytech were guaranteed a put option under which
they can sell the remaining 20% equity of Chengdu Holytech
to the Group within 2 months after 31 December 2023.
The consideration of such acquisition is based on Chengdu
Holytech's financial performance for the year ending 31
December 2023. If the put option is exercised, the Group would
control 100% of equity interests in Chengdu Holytech. The
initial amount of the put option is valued at RMB125,442,000.

Chengdu Holytech is an investment holding company and
its subsidiaries are involved in the provision of property
management service in the PRC. The acquisition allows the
Group for further business expansion on property management
business.
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32. ¥ 50t (&)

REGZER KB RN HREE
REENAREBEARDT

32. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

The aggregate fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of Chengdu Holytech, as at the date of acquisition, were as

follows:

Uit B BF B R AR

HAREE

Fair value

recognised

on acquisition

ARBET T

RMB'000

ME - BERZE Property, plant and equipment 46,340
Hih L& Other intangible assets 131,838
REEE R AINIRE Investments in associates 3,270
BXERIBEE Deferred tax assets 717
TEATFRIE © e R H A EWGRIE Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 158,578
F&a Inventories 631
FEWE 558 Trade receivables 37,772
AR BEFEFFABZMNSEEE  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 14,500
Re RIRITH Cash and bank balance 42,570
JEHE S 508 Trade payables (16,067)
EAth eI RIB R FEETIR B Other payables and accruals (61,706)
aRaE Contract liabilities (42,278)
BT FR Tax payables (7,135)
AT B Government grants (12,338)
FEEHBEE Deferred tax liabilities (22,740)
EWEAISRREEFEN AR EE Fair value of net identifiable assets acquired 273,952
FEVERR R 2 Non-controlling interests (60,882)
213,070

W B Ry Goodwill on acquisition 278,952
492,022

LATR & 2 1 Satisfied by cash 194,492
REE RN RERN AR EE Fair value of the interest in the associate 297,530
492,022
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HERKBEAENRERIREEE
YIRHDFRAIT AT -

32. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the above acquisition is as follows:

AREETFTT

RMB’'000

RENE Cash consideration (194,492)

EUIEIR € RIRTTERH Cash and bank balance acquired 42,570
HEBEHEENReRRESE Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents

BYRt F58 in respect of business combination (151,922)

REEENERE S RBEREAM
FERFTEREUBAERNAAER
DRlAEANR®37,772,000T A
R# 154,545,000 - [EWE S
HERHEMEKRRENEGOBED R
BAREAL1,264,000T K AR
154,545,0007T °

NEBAWBERKEBE EMEENR
SR B ARE2, 494,000 © %25
REKAELZH Wit AFaEE
KEITHR Y »

EHMERZBERAERME T
AT AR o

BWEUR  KEEERLAEE
HE2021F12A31HIEFE®
WARZEN B EBRIARE
313,438,000 T & A R# 54,394,000
= -

ME B E2021F12A31HIEFE
ZEET  AARKEEHEZE2021F
12 A31 B IEFERARFEE S
B AANRE2,823,914,000L AR
#341,430,0007T °

The fair values of the trade receivables and other receivables of
Chengdu Holytech as at the date of acquisition amounted to
RMB37,772,000 and RMB154,545,000, respectively. The gross
contractual amounts of trade receivables and other receivables
were RMB41,264,000 and RMB 154,545,000, respectively.

The Group incurred transaction costs of RMB2,494,000 for the
acquisition of Chengdu Holytech. These transaction costs have
been expensed and are included in administrative expenses in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible
for income tax purposes.

Since the acquisition, Chengdu Holytech contributed
RMB313,438,000 to the Group’s revenue and RMB54,394,000
to the consolidated profit for the year ended 31 December
2021.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year
ended 31 December 2021, the revenue and the profit of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 would have been
RMB2,823,914,000 and RMB341,430,000, respectively.
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33. REBRERERWE 33.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
() EXFRERS (a) Major non-cash transactions

REA AEBREFRAE During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to
MEELHD BIREAEEE right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB11,106,000
MEEREETHNIRSAE (2020: RMB5,579,000) and RMB11,106,000 (2020:
ABARE11,106,0007T (2020 RMB5,579,000), respectively, in respect of lease
F: AR#¥5,579,0007T) A arrangements for buildings and motor vehicles.

K#11,106,0007T (20204 :
AR#5,579,0007T) °

(b) MEEBRELENEEED (b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities
20214 2021
Hth (S RE HEEE
Other Lease
payables liabilities
AR®TT AR®T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
M2021F1A1H At 1 January 2021 - 22,350
MEREREE Changes from financing cash flows (93,778) (12,128)
HEE New leases - 11,106
FERXE Interest expense - 2,095
DERLERETEN Interest paid classified as
BfFIE operating cash flows - (843)
KA H AR Covid-19 Covid-19-related rent
HEEEER concessions from lessors - (253)
EEIRRE Dividend declared 93,778 -
$2021412 A31H At 31 December 2021 - 22,327
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33.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

SEHEERERHE
) STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
METEMEENEEE (b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing
(&) activities (continued)
20204 2020

HAth fETRIE HEBE

Other Lease

payables liabilities

ARBEFTT AR¥ETTT

RMB'000 RMB’000

M2020F1A1H At 1 January 2020 - 17,457
MEREREE Changes from financing cash flows (29,986) (8,168)
HEE New leases = 5,579
FERXE Interest expense = 2,025

DERKEEEREN Interest paid classified as
SXRRAIESS operating cash flows = (954)
KA H AR Covid-19 Covid-19-related rent
HEEEER concessions from lessors = (806)
W — KM B A A Increase arising from the

FfT /2 HE 38 0 acquisition of a subsidiary - 7,217
BEEIRRE Dividend declared 29,986 -
72020512 A31H At 31 December 2020 - 22,350
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33.@?%%;&%%%% 33.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

(& STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(c) HERSRHALE (c) Total cash outflow for leases
FABRERERNEERESR The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement
HAAZENT ¢ of cash flows is as follows:
20214 20204
2021 2020
ARET T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
K TRENA Within operating activities 16,978 15,235
BEESNA Within financing activities 12,128 8,168
29,106 23,403
34. &I 34. COMMITMENTS
REEBRREHRNEAEENT ¢ The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of

the reporting period:

202145 20204
2021 2020
AR¥TR ARBTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEETAVERIEL B - Contracted, but not provided for:
WiE— KB R A Acquisition of a subsidiary - 118,635
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35. @ AR5
(a) EBREE
ZIN/NET = GRS 3 2827 3/N

BEAF -

(b) EXBEBLRS

RE|EHA - EEAM T ETTIA

AIRER
KB - BHRPBEBERRER
B o BMBRESAKEN—F

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Name and relationship

The ultimate holding company of the Company is
Renowned Brand. Times China is controlled by Renowned
Brand. Guangzhou Rongxin is an associate of the Group.

(b) Significant related party transactions

The following transactions were carried out with related

TR : parties during the reporting period:
20215 20204
2021 2020
ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
M E IR R Property management services
— BARRPEEHINELE — Entities controlled by Times China 64,563 70,416
— R EAEEE QA — Associates of Times China 579 =
—RRPENEERE — Joint ventures of Times China 10,901 6,960
—ARRENEEEERAER - Key management personnel of
the Company 308 140
76,351 77,516
FEFE IR ERTES Value-added services to
non-property owners
— AR EERNEE — Entities controlled by Times China 233,629 266,463
— R R A E Q) - Associates of Times China 22,946 10,162
—BRAPENEELE — Joint ventures of Times China 54,938 75,222
311,513 351,847
HRIBERS Community value-added services
— FREE A B I A B g2 — Entities controlled by Times China 205,237 49,820
— RPN —HEBE AT — An associate of Times China 16,315 777
—RRPENEERE — Joint ventures of Times China 16,325 3,050
237,877 53,647
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35. BBt AR5 (&) 35.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(b) EXBHAERS (&) (b) Significant related party transactions
(continued)
2021%F 20204F
2021 2020
AR¥T T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HERE Professional services
— EEBRP RN ES - Entities controlled by Times China 86,231 46,583
— B AR B A — R B R | — An associate of Times China 6,304 5,448
—EBRPENEEDLE — Joint ventures of Times China 3,274 9,916
95,809 61,947
MEHERRE Additions of lease liabilities
—HERFEERHNESR — Entities controlled by Times China 7,995 2,071
LR EREMR HHER The prices for the above service fees and other transactions
TRBE N8 T HERE G were determined in accordance with terms mutually agreed
HETE © by the contract parties.
FatE TR AR S IMEK L Certain of the above related party transactions also
MHRBIE1AAEFIER 2 & constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
RGHIFEMERS o transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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35. @Bt AR5 (1) 35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
(o) EEEBEERSHIREELER (c) Outstanding balances with related parties
202145 20204
2021 2020
ARETR AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
W E 5 FIA Trade receivables
= EBEﬂJt':F‘ HiZFINERE — Entities controlled by Times China 621,383 310,005
— BRAPEREE QR — Associates of Times China 43,958 12,327
—KRRPEHNEEDLE - Joint ventures of Times China 96,224 66,124
761,565 388,456
BE Impairment (6,000) =
755,565 388,456
TE A FRIE K H b E U GRIE Prepayments and other receivables
— A AR B I 7Y a”% — Entities controlled by Times China 5,525 3,604
—KRRPENEEDLE - Joint ventures of Times China 299 284
— FEC AR B Ay — TG 2 A A — An associate of Times China 919 128
— —EBERT — An associate 9,460 8,277
16,203 12,293
HEAE Lease liabilities
— ARRAPBREHNELRE — Entities controlled by Times China 7.822 4,435
ARAE Contract liabilities
— HERFEERNESR — Entities controlled by Times China 1,577 9,048
—BRPENHEELE — Joint ventures of Times China - 63
1,577 9,111
FEfTE S RIR Trade payables
— ERE o AR — Entities controlled by Times China 154 164
—EBRAPEN—EEELE — A joint venture of Times China 2,364 4,191
2,518 4,355
H fth FE S 5RIE Other payables
— FRE oo A R — Entities controlled by Times China 3,617 4,618
—BRAPBENEED: — Joint ventures of Times China 41 129
—RRAPEN—EBE QR — An associate of Times China 91 76
3,749 4,823
FRHEBEI  LlEHRARE Except for lease liabilities, the above balances are unsecured,
R NEER— Ex)?é‘f BE==% interest-free and generally payable from three to twelve months.

+_@EARSH -
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35. @A RS (&) 35.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(d *EBEZEERABNE (d) Compensation of key management personnel of
B the Group:
20214 20204
2021 2020
AR®TR AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
e R REVEF Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 6,591 4,289
ERER S Performance related bonuses 4,589 2,660
LA B 48 & 00 AR 1 22D A <2 Equity-settled share award expense 2,525 332
RIREET BT Pension scheme contributions 365 168
14,070 7,449
EHRESEHENE—PFBHE Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in
RIS FREMIFEQ © note 9 to the financial statements.
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36. RERETHEMTA

ERERTARBEMRNEEE

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

R instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
20214 20204
2021 2020
ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RBERATTENEREE Financial assets at amortised cost

W8 5 FIA Trade receivables 1,139,996 574,082

FFATERRIE - Re REM Financial assets included in prepayments,

FERFIENCREE deposits and other receivables 253,060 67,981
SRR HERTTIF X Restricted bank deposits 11,324 124,964
RERREEFEY Cash and cash equivalents 814,329 1,047,739

2,218,709 1,814,766
AR EEFELFABZN Financial assets at fair value through

CREE profit or loss - 76,000
RBHRATTENSREE Financial liabilities at amortised cost
FEFTE 5308 Trade payables 569,447 275,467
HERE Lease liabilities 22,327 22,350
T AE AL RRIE K IR B Financial liabilities included in

HeRas other payables and accruals 175,196 175,218

766,970 473,035
UARBEFTELTA Financial liabilities at fair value

BENERas through profit or loss
BLIEFEAR W o 25 B SR0H R Financial liability for a put option

HeRaRk written on non-controlling interests 125,442 =
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37.EMITENAREBERD

REEERK

M20219F % 202056128318 » &
EENEREEREBREBENR R
BEEESEMERAEBEMES -

BEEECDHMGE RekREFE
W RRHBITER - BRE S
A GFABRNRE e RHEME
WRENEREE  BNEZHA
VA Ko 5t A E A JE A 5R08 K FEFT IR B
MERBENAABERAEREE
HE RARELREARZSETIA
B2 HIRAR -

HERENAAEEBBERR
TEABEEGR - EERR RFH
AN EFBRBARRIRER

= Ak
EATH °

AREER20205F12 A31BUARARE
B2Vt A BENEREEAT
NI IRTEE TR AE Gy o I G
ERNAABEDNBARBERER
B = (AIERE KA BRE AH
BRr2)  WRBGERKRRES R
TEMNMBANERANREASRE
HMERAEITHE - R20215F12 A
318 » AEBWELNAREBEE
WEt ABZSRMEE -

7 % [ 5 JF 4R PR 2 2% B RRUA HI R
MERBENGEERBERAETH
FHRASREELEE - EXTAE
S A BB EL BB ERFT
B MBEHFRFABEEEE
fm L) = B 9 75 FROR 45 R T B0t
EMEAEN T IR HE - RE
RERNEEEEEAETENEIT
BERBE - SAIFERER R ERE
HEgEnNeRABENAABEDNER
REBEEBENE =M -

37.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the fair values of the
Group’s financial assets or financial liabilities approximated to
their respective carrying amounts.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, restricted bank deposits, trade receivables, financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
trade payables, and financial liabilities included in other payables
and accruals approximate to their carrying amounts largely due
to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair value of lease liabilities has been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

The Group's financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
as at 31 December 2020 were wealth management products
issued by banks in Mainland China. The fair values of wealth
management products are categorised within level 2 of the
fair value hierarchy which is measured based on significant
observable inputs and has been estimated by using a discounted
cash flow valuation model based on the market interest rates
of instruments with similar terms and risks. The Group had
no financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as at 31
December 2021.

The valuation of the Group's financial liability for put option
written on non-controlling interests was determined using the
discounted cash flow method under the income approach. The
significant unobservable inputs are expected discount rate as at
the exit date which was determined by the probability-weighted
average of floating premiums under three financial projection
scenarios prepared by management, and the expected discount
rate which was determined using the capital asset pricing model.
The fair value of the financial liability for the put option written
on non-controlling interests is categorised within level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy.
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37Z.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable input to the
valuation of financial instrument together with a quantitative
sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2021:

ERFT DRRABEHEA

SEITA fHERM BaEn ABE InREF g E FENHRE
Valuation Significant Weighted Sensitivity of fair

Financial instrument technique unobservable input average value to the input
IR R ER TR\ SRE T BT IR & 4.55% S 51| - R
THHENEREE BB AR BEEMN,
B AR #2,740,0007T

Financial liability for a put Discounted Expected 4.55% 1% increase/decrease
option written on cash flow discount rate in rate would result

non-controlling interests

in increase/decrease in fair
value by RMB2,740,000

HE2021F12A31BILEE  £—
BEFE _HETENLBETE
B NEEASELAEE=H -

There were no transfers of fair value measurements between
Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3
during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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38. I ERMEEBENRBE 38.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

AEENTIESRIABTERAESN
MHER - ZEF2RMTANTEAE
MERRARBRNELRE - I %
EHEAEHEMEReMEENRAE
mESREMERE  BEHRE
i &S FRIR B RE B U7 SRR I
WRAB T E - ZEeREENRE
BEREEEMERES

AEEeRTAEENTIZARAS
EERRERBERR - —KRM
C AEE Y ERE R E R RERRST
B o 73 A &2 B P I R A R 5 L
AR RE - AEEILEEREM
TEREMTREES AN - A%
BAFAERBITERZRENITE
CRIE - ARFEESRILMA
BRERREERK - EffanT

AR o

(a) EERR

R ER 18 T e 1 EL R MR 5 R
REMEYFIE AREE
RakReSEWURZRH
RITFFAENEERR -

AEEBEARSMASEEY
DA 52 R ) SR 1T 17 SR N7 7
EXFEERR  ARBEBER
RBOEREARTREMAK
REETWERTT o EEERAS
TERAZERHHFENMK
HEBREX -

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash
and short term deposits. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
trade and other receivables, trade and other payables, amounts
due to related parties and amounts due from related parties,
which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are credit risk and liquidity risk. Generally, the Group introduces
conservative strategies on its risk management. To keep the
Group’s exposure to these risks to a minimum, the Group has
not used any derivatives and other instruments for hedging
purposes. The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial
instruments for trading purposes. The board of directors of the
Company reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below:

(a) Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its trade
receivables and other receivables, contract assets, cash and
cash equivalents and restricted bank deposits.

The Group expects that there is no significant credit risk
associated with cash and cash equivalents and restricted
bank deposits since they are substantially deposited at
state-owned banks and other medium or large-sized
listed banks. Management does not expect that there
will be significant losses from non-performance of these
counterparties.
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38. i EMEEEHEREE 38.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(&) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(a) EERMR (&) (a) Credit risk (continued)

NS B TR AT B R U B B T A R
I E 5 kI8 K E b e W IR A
AHNEERBRE  EABH
FEEHANEHERENETS
NS RESEWNEEN - B
FABREADREERNE R
TRRKIFE21 K23 °

REEEHEERTREERY
ME=-FETEE - FEEYF
ERBRAER /RXRHHFH
DHTRERE - R2021F12 A
31H » B/ 53.6% (20204 :
52.9%) MEWRE HHIAKRE
BAAPEEEN84.8% (2020
F:26.0%) K HE B GRIR
A — KM B A A #)FEIE R A
(20204 : BRABISH) -
TEERNEESETRRBERK -
FIEELIT EWGRIB K 6f o
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The Group expects that the credit risk associated with
trade receivables and other receivables due from related
parties to be low, since the related parties have strong
capacity to meet contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term. Information about the impairment provision
recognised during the year is disclosed in notes 21 and 23.

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. Concentrations of credit risk are managed
by analysis by customer/counterparty. The Group had
significant concentrations of credit risk as 53.6% (2020:
52.9%) of the trade receivables were derived from
Times China Group and 84.8% (2020: 26.0%) of other
receivables were derived from non-controlling shareholders
of a subsidiary (2020: Times China Group) as at 31
December 2021. Receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless
other information is available without undue cost or effort,
and year-end staging classification as at 31 December. The
amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial
assets.
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38. i EMEEEHERBEE 38.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(%) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
(a) FERMR (&) (a) Credit risk (continued)
ESRBHMORFERD R Maximum exposure and year-end staging
(&) (continued)
7A2021%12A831H8 As at 31 December 2021
12{BAFEH
=EER BENAENEEESE
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
P — B = BER= a3 st
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total

ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR AR®TR
RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000

JEW B 5 FRIE * Trade receivables* - - - 1,159,650 1,159,650
aREE" Contract assets* - - - 13,190 13,190
SPAFEMFE - #€  Financial assets included in

R EAth FE W R IE prepayments, deposits

HEmERE and other receivables

= ek o0 — Normal** 253,060 - - - 253,060
ZRFIBITER Restricted bank deposits

— AR — Not yet past due 11,324 - - - 11,324
RekBReEEY Cash and cash equivalents

— MR - Not yet past due 814,329 - - - 814,329

1,078,713 -

1,172,840 2,251,553
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38. YK EREEEERBE

(%)
(a) fEEEMR (H)

EEREBR®ORERD KR
(&)

7202012 A31H

38.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging
(continued)

As at 31 December 2020

1218 A 1888
=EEiE FEAEREERE
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
P& ER— PEER = PEER= EX Pz et
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
JEYE 5 FIE Trade receivables* - - - 586,056 586,056
AREE* Contract assets* - - - 16,148 16,148
S AFENFIE - € Financial assets included in
N ELAth FE W R IE prepayments, deposits
HEmERE and other receivables
= Mgk 5% — Normal** 67,981 — - - 67,981
SR HIRITFR Restricted bank deposits
— MR — Not yet past due 124,964 = = = 124,964
RekBRLEEY Cash and cash equivalents
— MR - Not yet past due 1,047,739 = = - 1,047,739
1,240,684 - - 602,204 1,842,888
Hia Notes:
* AR B P e R E R 5 & For trade receivables and contract assets to which the Group

EMEWE ZHRERERE
Ems  ERBHEEENHE
BRZETHREMT21 &
22 HEE -

= FTARNFEIR - HEREM
FEWRIR M £ B A E W (E
EHER H KB B ER
RIEF] - B MER KA
BRERARZERMEE
MEERREREER - B
A ZeWMEENEEES
WS AIRE] o

BERASERKESREBEL
MIEERRNE - P EERRE
BERMEHRRME21 -

applies the simplified approach for impairment, information
based on the provision matrix is disclosed in notes 21 and
22 to these financial statements.

**  The credit quality of the financial assets included in

prepayments, deposits and other receivables is considered
to be “normal” when they are not past due and there is
no information indicating that the financial assets had a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is
considered to be “doubtful”.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are
disclosed in note 21 to the financial statements.
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38. UHKEREEEERBE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(%) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
(b) RENEREBE (b) Liquidity risk
mBERERRANEEAE SR Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter
BRmELBITHBEEEHR difficulty in meeting financial obligation due to shortage
%o AEBHERAREMERR of funds. The Group's exposure to liquidity risk arises
FERBSREERABENEH primarily from mismatches of the maturities of financial
REER - AEEMBEZRAB assets and liabilities. The Group's objective is to maintain
FTREAEERBERHEEE a balance between continuity of funding to finance its
BeH R EMBEEENERH working capital needs as well as capital expenditure in
TIRHESHESHENHNE respect of its development projects, and flexibility through
a2 ERE T - the use of stand-by credit facilities.
TRAMBIES HRTBARK The tables below analyse the maturity profile of the
B AEERBEHARNE Group's financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting
B E &R BRR - period, which is based on contractual undiscounted
payments.
20214 2021
Ik SR—F —FFZREF AEHNE &t
On Less than 1to Over
demand 1 year 5 years 5 years Total
ARBTT AR®TRT AR®TRT AR®TRT AR%®TxR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
[ERE 5 %A Trade payables 244,580 324,867 - - 569,447
HEAR Lease liabilities - 9,753 14,099 31 23,883
STAEAMEMZE  Financial liabilities
REEFTIER &) included in other
=R payables and accruals 175,196 - - - 175,196
IR AR A B Financial liability for a
RLEEN SR put option written on
=N non-controlling interests - - 143,797 - 143,797
419,776 334,620 157,896 31 912,323
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38. YK EREEEERBE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(&) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
(b) FENERBS () (b) Liquidity risk (continued)
20204 2020
BIER PR—F —FELF HERE =)
On Less than 1 to Over
demand 1 year 5 years 5 years Total
ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
[ERE 5 %A Trade payables 109,465 166,002 = = 275,467
HEARE Lease liabilities - 10,224 12,808 962 23,994
FTAE M ER IR Financial liabilities
RFEFTIEE & included in other
SHARE payables and accruals 175,218 = = = 175,218
284,683 176,226 12,808 962 474,679
(c) EXEE (c) Capital management

REBEKREE 2 BIZAHER
REBEETEBISREAIRFE
WEREERECE  FRBER
BlEBMEREH  BRE
HRERNDR - AEBREE
2021 % 202012 A31 81t
FENEERBAERTE -

REBFERABEL X (EKF
BHRAEARNMER F58) BT
BRGERE - BB FEPIEEN
BSHIA - B ENRIERE
FTIEE c HESEBERIIEER
BaEERLENSRE
B RBAERESEEY -
M2020F12A318 * ~%EH
WRERFHE BEAEERE
BE o

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged during the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020.

The Group monitors capital structure using a gearing
ratio, which is net debt divided by the capital plus net
debt. Net debt includes trade payables, other payables
and accruals, lease liabilities and financial liability for a put
option written on non-controlling interests less cash and
cash equivalents. The Group did not have net debt as at 31
December 2020. Capital represents total equity.
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38. M EREEEERBUER
(&)

(c)

EXEE (8

AEEERETE BRI EAR
B XEEEAKAREZE
BEARMERORR - ABBIK
B BITHRIARBEITHES
HEOMRAEY - FEHEER
BN -

38.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(c) Capital management (continued)

The management of the Group reviews the capital
structure periodically and considers the costs of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital to balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends
and new share issues as well as the issue of new debts or
the redemption of existing debts.

20214

2021

AR%T T

RMB’000

FERTE 5508 Trade payables 569,447

HAbFE RIB R FEET IR B Other payables and accruals 371,544

HESRE Lease liabilities 22,327
PLIFIEAR R B B A BV £ BB (E  Financial liability for a put option written on

non-controlling interests 125,442

B B RIREEEY Less: Cash and cash equivalents (814,329)

B FHE Net debt 274,431

=N Capital 1,933,369

BARRGEHFE Capital and net debt 2,207,800

AafEt = Gearing ratio 12%
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39. AR A BISIRR R

BRA R BN HRE RPN K

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

RERIT ¢ Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
20214 20204
2021 2020
AR¥T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ERBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
M - BB REE Property, plant and equipment 9 11
FREEE Right-of-use assets 3,250 -
KRB A RHIRE Investments in subsidiaries 6,279 742
IEMEBEERRE Total non-current assets 9,538 753
MENEE CURRENT ASSETS
TERRIE - e REAMEWEIR Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables 1,137,241 636,515
ReERREEFEEY Cash and cash equivalents 38,161 650,508
MENEELREE Total current assets 1,175,402 1,287,023
MENEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
HAbFERIB R FEET IR B Other payables and accruals 2,236 3,082
HEaE Lease liabilities 665 =
mENBEREE Total current liabilities 2,901 3,082
mENEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 1,172,501 1,283,941
BEERERRSBE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,182,039 1,284,694
FEREBAE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
HEaE Lease liabilities 2,587 =
BEFE Net assets 1,179,452 1,284,694
HEam EQUITY
[N Share capital 8,868 8,868
AR B ET IR B MRS Shares held for the share award scheme (22,198) (22,198)
s (faE) Reserves (note) 1,192,782 1,298,024
e A EE Total equity 1,179,452 1,284,694
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39. AR RHBMRE ()

40.

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

P&k - Note:
RARFEEBAMET - A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows:
RDGRE IR RENAE R REER &t
Share
Share award Exchange Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
ARETT AR®TT ARETT AR%®TR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
7202051818 At 1 January 2020 723,244 - (4.134) (2,830) 716,280
FALEEELE Total comprehensive
loss for the year - - (90,637) (4,943) (95,580)
PRIDEETT Issue of shares,
(L) net of expense 706,568 - = = 706,568
LARR A E i Equity-settled share
B& 5 5E B 5+ 2l award scheme = 742 = = 742
EEIK2019% Final 2019 dividend
REBE declared (29,986) - - - (29,986)
720204124318 At 31 December 2020 1,399,826 742 (94,771) (7,773) 1,298,024
FALEEERE Total comprehensive
loss for the year - - (35,455) (5,341) (40,796)
PARRIE R E Y Equity-settled share
B fn £2 @t &l award scheme - 5,537 - = 5,537
EEIk2020% Final 2020 dividend
KERR B declared (69,983) = = = (69,983)
120214128318 At 31 December 2021 1,329,843 6279  (130226)  (13,114) 1,192,782

HER RS R

B smRJIN 2022463 A31 HEE

SR MIRETE -

40. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 31 March 2022.
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£$Mﬁﬁ§|
FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and equity
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
audited financial statements and the Company’s prospectus dated 9
December 2019, is set out below:

BZE12A31HLFE
Year ended 31 December

20215 20204 20195 2018% 20174
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
ARBTR ARETT ARBTET ARBTIT AREBTRT
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000

E$ RESULTS

A REVENUE 2,719,747 1,758,427 1,081,341 695,752 518,995
SHE AR Cost of sales (1,977,687) (1,227,379)  (776,044)  (505,254)  (389,484)
EF Gross profit 742,060 531,048 305,297 190,498 129,511

H A A R Wz Other income and gains 38,108 23,546 6,078 2,055 2,745

HEENTHBHERERA  Selling and marketing costs (20,561) (46,885) (10,380) (8,466) (7,416)

THAX Administrative expenses
EBMAREERE  Net impairment losses on

(279,224)  (180,274)  (124,945) (89,717) (70,106)

BEFE financial and contract assets (10,443) (2,154) (3,473) (1,714) (2,697)
Hifx Other expenses (28,281) (2,322) (26,893) (4,901) (2,655)
BERAFE Finance costs, net (3,348) (8,321) (13,539) (4,606) (4,836)
SaR ot kAN Pl bE Share of profit of associates 5,482 2,101 3,393 3,437 2,317
BB A1 F PROFIT BEFORE TAX 443,793 316,739 135,538 86,586 46,863
FriSfix Income tax expense (109,656) (79,865) (40,214) (22,422) (12,688)

FERNE PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 334,137 236,874 95,324 64,164 34,175

THIE EREL Attributable to:
ISUNSIEZEPN Owners of the parent 308,000 232,606 96,313 63,524 33,797
FEIE AR R Non-controlling interests 26,137 4,268 (989) 640 378
334,137 236,874 95,324 64,164 34,175
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LIFEMBRE
FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BE  BERER ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

M®12H31H
As at 31 December

20215 20204 20195 2018% 20174
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
ARBTR ARETT ARBTET ARBTIT AREBTT
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000

EE#E TOTAL ASSETS 3,268,735 2,648,951 1,500,942 3,646,410 876,323
EEAE TOTAL LIABILITIES (1,335,366)  (887,254)  (601,711) (3,538,964)  (832,684)
AR TOTAL EQUITY 1,933,369 1,761,697 899,231 107,446 43,639
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